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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 29" Annual General Meeting of the Members of “Bharat Serums and Vaccines
Limited” (formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited) (Company) scheduled to be held on Friday,
September 9, 2022 at 3.00 p.m. I.5.T. (Cyprus time 11:30 a.m.) through Video Conferencing(‘vC’)/Other Audio-
Visual Means {‘OAVM’), at shorter notice to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements (including Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements), for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and the Reports of the Auditors and Board
thereon.

2. To declare dividend on Preference shares of the Company for the Year ended March 31, 2022.

3. Toappoint Ms. Shweta Jalan (DIN 00291675), as Director of the Company who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. Kirit Mehta & Company- Cost Auditors for the F.Y. 2022-23.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 4,50,000 (Rupees four lakhs fifty thousand only) plus
applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses payable to M/s. Kirit Mehta & Company (Firm Registration No.
000353), who are appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct cost
audits relating to cost records of the Company for the year ending 31st March, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director and/ or secretary of the Company, be and is hereby authorised to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give
effect to this Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified extract/true copy of this Resolution be issued under the signature of
any of the director or secretary of the Company.”

5. Approval of payment of commission to Non Executive Directors of the Company:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198, read with Schedule V and rules made
thereunder and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the Members be and is
hereby accorded to pay the remuneration by way of Commission to the Non-Executive Directors of the
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Company, in addition to the sitting fees for attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees
thereof, as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine, not exceeding in aggregate five (5%)
percent of the net profits of the Company for each financial year, as computed in the manner laid down in
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including Nomination and Remuneration
Committee) be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper
or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Pou
By order of the Board of Dir, ctow

Place: Mumbai An ai
Date: August 26, 2022 Company Secretary
Membership No-A21454
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1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) stating material facts and reasons for the proposed resolution is annexed hereto.

NOTES:

2. Members may note that since the Meeting is being conducted through VC/OAVM, the proceedings shall
be deemed to have been made at the place of the Meeting.

3. In view of difficulties faced by stakeholders on account of the threat posed by Covid-19, the ministry of
corporate affairs (“MCA”) has permitted companies to hold Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video
Conferencing(“vC”) or Other Audio Visual Means(“OAVM”) , and issued General Circular No. 02/2022 dated
05/05/2022 read with General Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, General Circular No 20/2020 dated
May 5, 2020, General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and General Circular No 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020 (“MCA Circulars”).

4, A Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on
his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since the meeting is being held in
accordance with the MCA Circulars through VC, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not
be available.

5% Participation of Members through VC will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the meeting as
per section 103 of the Act.

6. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing
their representative to attend and vote at the Meeting.

7. Relevant documents referred to in the notice and the accompanying statement will be open for
inspection by the Members on the website of the Company up to the date of the meeting and the Registered
Office of the Company on all working days, during business hours up to the date of the meeting.

The Company has made arrangements to allow members to participate through VC. Members are requested to
log in to the link https://zoom.us/j/98374700167?pwd=azd)cnBrS1EreHpSVFhabWNPZUZ2Z209 and enter the
meeting id 983 7470 0167 and passcode 120570 in order to attend the meeting. Members can also download
the Zoom mobile application from their App store or play store available on their mobile phone and attend the
Meeting.

8. For any queries in relation to attending the AGM through VC or need any assistance with using the
technology to attend the AGM, you may reach out to Mr. Alwin Lopes at 91 22 45043434 and
Alwin.Lopes@bsvgroup.com

9. The facility to join the AGM is kept open from 3.00 P.M. IST and shall not be closed till the expiry of
fifteen minutes after the scheduled time of Meeting. :

10. The Notice is being sent to Members in electronic form to the email addresses registered with the
Company / their depository participants (in case of electronic shareholding)/the Company’s Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents (in case of physical shareholding). Members whose email IDs are not registered, are requested
to contact Ms. Anupama Pai +91 22 45043492 and Anupama.Pai@bsvgroup.com to register the same. In view
of extraordinary circumstances due to pandemic caused by Covid-19, and in line with the MCA Circulars, physical
copies of the notice are not being despatched.
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11. Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of equity shares registered in the name of the
members as on the date of this Meeting. Only those Members whose names are recorded in the Register of
Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the date of this Meeting will be entitled
to cast their votes.

12, Voting at the Meeting will be done by way of show of hands. In case a Poll is required, members can
cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending emails through their email addresses which are registered with
the Company. The said emails can only be sent to Ms. Anupama Pai at Anupama.Pai@bsvgroup.com. Members
casting their vote through email should do so only during the Meeting and not at any time before the
commencement of the Meeting. If any email is received after the closure of the Meeting, it will be considered
that no reply from the member has been received. Additionally, please note that the vote cast through email
shall be considered invalid if:

(i) it is not possible to determine without any doubt the assent or dissent of the Member; and/or

a competent authority has given directions in writing to the Company to freeze the voting rights of the Member;
and/or

(ii) the Member has made any amendment to the Resolution set out herein or imposed any condition

while exercising his vote.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all the material facts relating to the Special Business under ltem
No. 4 & 5 of the accompanying Notice dated August 26, 2022.

In respect of item No. 4

The Board had approved in their meeting held on August 26, 2022 the appointment and remuneration payable
to M/s. Kirit Mehta & Company, Cost Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 000353) for conducting the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the F.Y. 2022-2023.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors should be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Iitem No. 4 of the
Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested
in the resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution set forth in tem No. 4 for the approval of the Members.
In respect of Item No. 5

The Board in their meeting held on August 26, 2022 approved the commission payable to Non-Executive
Directors up to 5% of the net profit of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 197, 198 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) approval of Members is required
for payment of commission to Non-Executive Directors of the Company not exceeding 5% of the net profit of
the Company as calculated as per section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, consent of the Members
is sought for passing Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

Except Independent Directors, None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution set forth in Item No. 5 for the approval of the Members 0

By order of the Board D ‘
W
CMW .
" -

Ar)/u Pai

Place: Mumbai -/Company Secretary

Date: August 26, 2022 Membership No.:- A21454
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BHARAT SERUMS AND VACCINES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited)
BOARD'S REPORT AS ON MARCH 31, 2022
To,
The Members,
Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited.

Your Director’s take pleasure in presenting the 29t Board Report of the Company together with
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE.

The financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized
below:

1. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company: ( Standalone)

On Standalone basis, total income of the Company was INR. 1,07,703 lakhs (PY INR 81,692 lakhs)
and after deducting total expenses of INR. 83,254 lakhs (PY INR. 78,258 lakhs), the operating profit
before finance costs, depreciation and tax for the period was INR. 24,449 lakhs (PY INR. 3,434
lakhs) and the profit before tax was INR. 2,460 lakhs (PY Loss INR. 61,978 lakhs). The operations
during the period resulted in Total Comprehensive Income {net Loss (after tax) including other
comprehensive income} of INR. 1,326 lakhs (PY INR. 49,986 lakhs).

PY — previous year.

2. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company: ( Consolidated)

On Consolidated basis, total income of the Company was INR 1,26,353 lakhs (PY INR. 93,782lakhs)
and after deducting total expenses of INR. 98,898 lakhs (PY INR. 77,411lakhs), the operating profit
before finance costs, depreciation and tax for the period was INR. 27,455 lakhs (PY INR. 16,371
lakhs) and the profit before tax was INR 4,838 lakhs (PY Loss INR 57,715 lakhs). The operations
during the period resulted in Total Comprehensive Income {net profit (after tax) including other
comprehensive income} of INR. 5,76 lakhs (PY Loss INR. 44,236 lakhs).

PY — previous year.

3. State of affairs of Company:

Your Company believes in ‘Bringing life to life” and is anchored to a passion that has made us
preserve, protect and enhance quality of life.

For over four decades now, your Company has used its scientific resources to develop a range of
biological, biotech and pharmaceutical products. Today, your Company influences patient
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outcomes in the therapeutic areas of Women'’s health and Critical Care and IUI-IVF. Your
Company has the privilege of being a partner of choice.

4. Covid-19: (Impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s performance):

FY’22 was a very challenging year for the organization in terms of the operations and business.
Considering the onset of Covid Wave 2 in India and Globally, there was an unprecedented
requirement surge in key covid portfolio products.

BSV being pioneer and one of the largest national Amphotericin manufacturer, had to step up to
support the nation in these challenging times. Over the year we had 120 crs+ sales in the covid
portfolio in the domestic market alone. This one- off requirement for the Covid portfolio of product
in domestic market was predominantly focused in the first half of the year and towards the end of
the year, considering the macro situations, the primary demand stabilized at pre-covid levels

International markets had challenges in the first half of the year considering the Government
sanctions on Amphotericin exports, however during second half the business returned to normal
in most of the countries. As we step into FY'23, geo-political and economic challenges in multiple
countries seem to emerge as a new challenge to manage for the international markets.

The increased demand in Covid portfolio led to a challenge demand on the manufacturing,
procurement, supply chain and distribution resources. While the teams stepped up to ensure no
patient goes untreated to the best of the organizational ability, these challenging times and external
constraints led to cost escalations on each of these fronts.

Despite these multiple challenges the organization delivered the topline and the profitability
expectations which it had set for itself during the start of the year and is geared up to meet all the

new challenges in FY'23 to new successes.

DIVIDEND.
a. Equity Shares:

Considering the current pandemic situation that has adversely impacted the overall business,
and to sustain long term growth objectives of the Company, it is recommended not to declare
any dividend on Equity Shares of the Company.

b. Preference Shares:

In accordance with the terms of Preference shares the Board recommends a Preference
dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 at the rate of: -

a. 0.001% per Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series I (CCPS)
on each CCPS on pro-rata basis coupon rate (dividend) to be paid on 6,576 CCPS of
INR. 100/- each, amounting to INR. 6.58
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b. 0.001% per Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series on each CCPS on pro-
rata basis coupon rate (dividend) to be paid on INR. 100/- each, 35136619 CCPS of
INR. 100/- each, amounting to INR.35,136.62;

The dividend is subject to the approval of members at their ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The dividend will be paid to Preference Shareholders whose names appear in the Register of
Members as on record date i.e. August 30, 2022 and in respect of shares held in dematerialized
form, it will be paid to members whose names are furnished by Depository Participant, as
beneficial owners as on that date.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, it is not mandatory to transfer any sum to
General Reserve of the Company before declaration of any dividend in any financial year.
However, your Directors propose to keep the entire retained earnings in Profit & Loss account.

SHARE CAPITAL.

The paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was INR. 351,72,19,700/-
consisting of: -

a. 29,002 Equity Shares of INR. 100/- each;
b. 6,576 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of INR. 100/- each;
¢ 3,51,36,619, 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of INR. 100/- each;

SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURE & ASSOCIATE COMPANY.
Your Company has 3 (Three) wholly owned subsidiaries, namely: -

(i) BSV Biosciences, Inc., formed in the State of California, United States of America;
(i) BSV Bioscience GmbH., formed in Germany;
(iii) BSV Bioscience Philippines Inc., formed in Philippines; and

Other than as stated above, no other Subsidiary Companies were formed or divested during the
year under review. In compliance with Section 129 of the Act, a statement containing requisite
details including financial highlights of the operations of the aforesaid Subsidiary / Joint Venture
/ Associate Company is annexed in ANNEXURE - III to this report.

Financials are in accordance with Accounting Standard AS 21 — Consolidated Financial Statements
read with Accounting Standard AS 23 — Accounting for Investments in Associates, and Accounting
Standard 27 - Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements are provided in the Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Your Company has been constantly reassessing and benchmarking itself with well-established
Corporate Governance practices besides strictly complying with applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 your Board has adopted policies such as
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, Risk Management Policy, Remuneration Policy, Anti
Sexual Harassment Policy, Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy. These policies are
available on the website of the Company and can be viewed on www.bsyv group. com,

The Audit Committee of the Board has been vested with the powers and functions relating to Risk
Management which inter alia includes (a) review of risk management policies and business
processes to ensure that the business processes adopted and transactions entered into by the
Company are designed to identify and mitigate potential risk; (b) laying down procedures relating
to risk assessment and minimization; and (c) formulation, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management plan.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company
has, pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder has approved a CSR
Policy. Your Company shall also undertake the other CSR activities Listed in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013. The details of CSR activities undertaken during the period, by the Company
is annexed to this report as per ANNEXURE - II.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.

Your Board comprises of six directors, which consists of one Managing Director and seven Non-
Executive Directors out of which three directors are Independent Directors. All directors including
Independent Directors have provided their declarations both at the time of appointment and
annually. Independent Directors have also confirmed that do they meet the criteria of
Independence as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.

In compliance with the requirements of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sanjiv
Navangul Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Chirag Mehta, Chief Financial Officer and Ms.
Anupama Pai, Head- Legal & Company Secretary are Key Managerial personnel of the Company.
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APPOINTMENT AND DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS.

All the Independent Directors have declared and affirmed their compliance with the independence
criteria as mentioned in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of their position as
an “Independent Director” of the Company.

AUDIT & AUDITORS REPORT.

1. Statutory Auditor.

Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN NO.. 117366W/W-100018), are
Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of five years from the conclusion of 28% Annual
General Meeting (AGM) of the Company till the conclusion of 331 Annual General Meeting (for
the Financial Year from 2021 - 2026). Company has however obtained confirmation from the said
Auditors about their eligibility to continue to hold the office during the current Financial Year.

The Statutory Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse
remarks or disclaimer.

2. Cost Auditor.

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Kirit Mehta & Company, Cost Accountants, Mumbai,
as Cost Auditor of the Company having Firm Registration No. 000353. for F.X. 2022-23. The
Company is seeking the ratification of the Shareholders for the remuneration to be paid to the cost
auditors vide Resolution No. 4 of the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

3. Secretarial Auditor.

During the year, Secretarial Audit was carried out by M/s. JHR & Associates — Practicing
Company Secretaries, in compliance with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The
Secretarial Audit Report submitted by the Secretarial Auditor M/s JHR & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary, Mumbai, in the prescribed form MR-3 is attached as “Annexure — IV” and
forms part of this Report. Observations and suggestions of the Secretarial Auditor have been
considered by the management of the Company.

MEETINGS & COMMITTEE.

1. Board Meeting Chart.

During the year, 5 Board meetings were held on the following dates: -
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July 17, 2021, July 22, 2021, September 16, 2021, November 11, 2021 & March 10, 2022. Details of
attendance of the Meeting are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap
between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Audit Committee Meeting Chart.

During the year, 1 Audit Committee meeting was held on November 10, 2021, details of attendance
is provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting.

In compliance with the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of your Board had fixed various criteria for nominating a person on the Board which
inter alia includes desired size and composition of the Board, age limits, qualification / experience,
areas of expertise and independence of individual. Your Company has also adopted a
Remuneration Policy. The Copy of the Policy has been uploaded on the Company’s Website at

wiww. bsveroup.com.

During the Financial Year, 1 (one) meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held
on March 10, 2022, details of attendance is provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meeting,.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure
- II of this Report in the format prescribed in the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014. The Policy
is available on Company’s website at www bsvgroup.com.

During the Financial Year 1 (one) Meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were
held on March 10, 2022, details of attendance is provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

5. Meeting of Independent Directors performance review.

During the Financial Year 1 (one) meeting of Independent Directors was held details of which is
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

6. Meeting of Risk Management Committee.

The Company has a Risk Management Committee, wherein Mr. Sanjiv Navangul, Mr. Pankaj
Patwari and Mr. Jayesh Merchant are the Members of this Committee. There was no Meeting
scheduled or held till March 31, 2022.
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The Company has a Shareholders Committee wherein Mr. Sanjiv Navangul and Mr. Bhaskar Iyer
are the Members of this Committee. There was no meeting scheduled or he_ld till March 31, 2022.

7. Meeting of Shareholders Committee.

8. Performance evaluation of Board and its committees:

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors have approved a framework, which lays down a structured
approach, guidelines and processes to be adopted for carrying out an evaluation of the
performance of all the Directors, the Board as a whole and its committees. The evaluation process
has been separately explained in this Annual Report, as a part of its Report on Corporate
Governance.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY.

As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, a comprehensive Whistle Blower and Vigil
Mechanism Policy has been approved and implemented within the organization. The Policy
enables the employees and directors to report instances of any unethical act or suspected incidents
of fraud or violation of Company’s Code of conduct. This mechanism /Policy provides adequate
safeguards to whistle blowers against reprisals or victimization. The copy of the Policy has been
uploaded on the Company’s Website viz. wiww bsvgroup.com,

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY.

Your Company has established a written Risk Management Policy. Board of Directors are overall
responsible for identifying, evaluating, and managing all significant risks faced by the Company
and the Board of Directors are continuously ensuring efficient risk management and monitoring
potential risks faced by the Company, internally as well as externally.

DISCLOSURES.

1. Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under section 186:

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments made by the Company required under Section
186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 are contained in Note No. 8, 9 & 35 to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

2. Transactions with Related Parties.

In terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014, all contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company
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(formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited)

R & D Centre | Ambernath Factory

Corporate Office Registered Office ]|

3rd Foor, Liberty Tower, Airoli, 17th Floor, Hoechst House, 3rd Floor, Liberty Tower, Plot No. K-27, Anand Nagar,
Navi Mumbai - 400708. | Nariman Point, Mumbai - | Airoli, Navi Mumbai - 400708 Additional M.I.D.C.,
Maharashtra, india ‘ 400021, Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India Ambernath East - 421501
Tel. ;: +91-22-4504 3456 CIN : U741 10MH1993PLC0O75088 Tel. : +91-22-4504 3000 Tel. : 0251-262 7000

Fax : +91-22-4504 3200 | Fax : +91-22-4504 3200 Fax :0251-262 7008



YBSV

with its related parties, during the year under review, were in the ordinary course of business of
the Company and on an arm’s length basis.

There were no material Related Party transactions during the year, therefore disclosure in Form

AOC-2 is not required.
3. Deposits.

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits and as such no amount on account of
principal or interest on public deposits under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, was outstanding as on the date of the Balance
Sheet.

4. Extract of Annual Return.

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-7 is available on the website of the Company and can
be viewed on www bsveroup.com.

5. Obligation of Company under, The Sexual Harassment of Women At Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on
prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of The Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. During the year the Company has not received any
Complaints of such harassment which required attention and to be dealt with, as per the procedure
laid down in the Act and in line with Company Policies. The Company has complied with
provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee to redress complaints
received on sexual harassment.

6. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report:

During the period under review no significant and material commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company have occurred between the Financial Year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report.

7. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

During the period under review no significant and material orders have been passed by any
regulators or courts or tribunals against the Company impacting the going concern status and
Company'’s operations in future.
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8. Maintenance of Cost Records:

During the period under review cost records were made and maintained as specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.

The information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as ANNEXURE - L.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT.

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), in relation to the Audited Financial
Statements for the Financial Year 2021-2022, your Directors confirm that:

a. The Financial Statements of the Company comprising of the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date, have been prepared
on a going concern basis following applicable Accounting Standards and that no material
departures have been made from the same;

b. Accounting policies selected were applied consistently and the judgments and estimates
related to the financial statements have been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022,
and, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act, to safeguard the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d. Requisite internal financial controls were laid down and that such financial controls are
adequate and operating effectively; and

e. Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

COMPLIANCE IN RESPECT OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS.

Your Director’s confirm that the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India have been duly complied with.
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DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS.

No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

The Directors express their appreciation for the contribution made by the employees during the
year. The human resources have always been the Company’s valuable asset and the Company’s
thrust area is to attract, develop and retain talent. The Company continues to operate the open
culture and has maintained congenial work atmosphere and healthy industrial relations.

The total headcount of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was 1821.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has adequate internal financial controls with respect to its financial statements. The
Company believes that a strong internal control framework is very much essential and is part of
good corporate governance practices. The Company has in place well defined and adequate
internal financial control framework commensurate with the size and complexity of its business.
The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame,
implement and monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The Committee is responsible
for monitoring and reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The Audit
Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. The major risks
identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions
on a continuing basis. There are no risks identified which may threaten existence of the company

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

After the merger of the Company with Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited(erstwhile) & BSVLife
Pvt. Ltd the Company has also adopted the main activity/object of the erstwhile Bharat Serums
and Vaccines Limited.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT.

The statements in this Report and annexures to this Report which describes the Company’s
objectives, projects, estimates, expectations may contain “forward looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. The success in realizing these depends on various
internal and external factors. The actual results may be different from what the Directors /
Management envisage in terms of future performance and outlook.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS.

Your Board takes this opportunity to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and
commitment of employees shown at all levels that have contributed to the success of your
Company. Your Directors also express their gratitude for the valuable support and co-operation
received from the Central and State Governments including Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers,
Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Ministry of Human Resource Development and other

stakeholders including Bankers, Financial Institutions, Investors, Service Providers as well as
regulatory and government authorities.

For BhaTat Sepu’:ns and Vaccines Limited For Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited

b7 Jeppn

Pankaj Patwari Sanjiv Navangul

Director Managing Director & CEO
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: August 26, 2022 Date: August 26, 2022
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ANNEXURE INDEX
Annexure No. Content
L Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
earnings and outgo.
L. Corporate Social Responsibility
. Form AOC-1
Iv. MR-3.
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ANNEXURE -1
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY

ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.
(The information required to be provided under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.)

Conservation of Energy:

For energy conservation following steps taken to run utility
with close monitoring of equipment’s: -

a. Utility operations are carried out in accordance with
process requirements, such as the number of chillers,
the AHU's cooling system, and other utilities, resulting
in efficient Energy utilization.

b. Implementation of an energy-efficent screw air
compressor, which reduces losses due to lower power

Steps taken or impact on usage.

conservation of energy. c. Installation of an auto-tube condenser cleaning system
for chiller systems to prevent scale accumulation in heat
exchangers, resulting in energy savings, has been
completed.

d. Successful conversion from electrical CFL fitting to LED
fitting, resulting in reduced electrical energy use.

e. Running alternate small capacity systems during extra
extended working hours.

a. PNG (Piped Natural Gas) was successfully deployed
(Mar-22) as a replacement for Biodiesel/LDO.

b. Group Captive - Substituting Conventional Electricity
to Solar Energy. Acquired stake (Mar-22) in AMP
Energy C&I One to support green energy requirements

Steps taken by the
Company through capital
investment on energy

ii. . . for BSV manufacturing facility
conservation  equipment . . .
. ¢. CETP Strainer would be installed post commissioning
and/or utilizing alternate ¢ CETP
o .

sources of energy.
8y d. Inhouse Nitrogen Storage and Distribution System -

Feasibility completed. Execution planned in FY22-23.

Technology Absorption:

a. Capacity enhancement by addition of Lyophilizer and
. The efforts made towards Marcllufatctzxji'lurllg lje:s ga.m-BZZf to .11\4a11‘)-213) for gelr;;eral category
. . products photericin B family, Polymyxin

technology absorption. b. Installation of Auto loading system (Jan-22 to Mar-23) in
General category production lines.
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. Capex Execution planned for GnRH Filling and formulation

line upgradation by new technology absorption (Shutdown
scheduled from Apr-22)

The benefits derived like
product improvement, cost
il. | reduction, product
development or

substitution.

import

Company made efforts towards better process controls and
batch size standardization which resulting substantial yield
improvement and cost savings.

a. Successful launch of rAnti-D 300 mcg Liq and
Foligraf 1200 IU Cartridge.

b. Commercial manufacture of Lonopin
20mg/40mg/60mg in PFS has begun successfully in
Ambernath.

c. ASVS Lyophilized - Batch size enhancement from
8823 units to 17000 units effective from Aug-21.

d. Alternate vendor development for Anti thymocyte
globulin (Thymogam 250 mg)

e. Rabies antiserum - Successfully scaled up Virus
validated approach in process Manufacturing
(addition of Nano Filtration step).

f.  Ampholip 50 mg Liquid - Batch size enhancement
from 2870 to 5740 units.

g. Ampholip 100 mg Liquid- Batch size enhancement
from 1462 to 2924 units.

h. Raw Material of Amphonex- Alternate vendor
developed for Export market (Dec-21)

i. successfully completed Contract Manufacturing
arrangements to cater domestic requirement for
general Category product -Amphonex, Polymyxin B
and Amphotrate.

Reduction in rejects at various stages of washing, filling,
and sealing by standardization of primary packaging
material.

The optimization and trend analysis of sampling places
and timepoints helps reduce water testing costs and
external testing.

Execution initiated for Implementation of e-QMS
(electronic Quality Management System), e-DMS
(electronic Document Management System) and e-LMS
(electronic Learning Management System) which help in
Strengthening data integrity principles to bring real time
audit readiness.

Execution initiated for Implementation LIMS system which
increase lab productivity and efficiency.

Shelf-life of finished products enhancement based on real
time stability data of several existing products.
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imported [Company has not imported any technology hence information
(imported pelow is not applicable.

during the last three years
reckoned from the

In case of
technology

beginning of the financial

year): -

(a) the detai.ls of NA
iii. | technology imported

(b) the year of import NA

(c) whether the technology [NA

been fully absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, NA
areas where absorption has
not taken place, and the
reasons thereof

the expenditure incurred [NA
iv. | on Research and
Development

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:
During the year under review, there were INR. 30,714 lakhs as Foreign Exchange Earnings and
INR. 14,891 lakhs as foreign exchange outgoing.

For Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited

Nora Al

For Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited

\

s

Pankaj Patwari Sanjiv Navangul
Director Managing Director & CEO
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: August 26, 2022 Date: August 26, 2022
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Company Secretaries

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited
17t Floor, Hoechst House,
Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited
(formerly known as ‘Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited’) (hereinafter called ‘the Company’).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conduct / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31% March 2022 (hereinafter called ‘audit
period’), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2022
according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter called ‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

i. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
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iii. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investments.

The following Regulations and Guidelines are prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014. / Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations 2021.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; / Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations
2021.

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
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i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015.

j.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013.

k. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018.

We report that, being an Unlisted Company during audit period, all of the above Regulations
/ Guidelines from (a) to (k) as listed above were not applicable to the Company.

As per information provided to us following regulations specifically apply to the type of
activities undertaken by the Company.

- Drugs (Price control) Order 2013.
- The Prevention of Crueity to Animais Act, 1560

We have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India as applicable to the Company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines,
standards etc. except for holding of Annual General Meeting (Section 96) and adoption of
Financial statements (Section 129) for the financial year 2020-21 within the due date, non-
filing of Form MGT-7 required even when Annual General Meeting is not held and delayed
filing of e-forms DIR-2 (2 Nos) and form CRA-2 during the Audit period.

We further report that: -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to all Directors to schedule the Board
Meetings wherever required consents of the Directors were obtained for holding the Board
Meetings with shorter notice. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent generally seven
days in advance or shorter period as the case may be, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company which
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period, pursuant to the order of NCLT Mumbai, the
Company has:

i.  Changed its name from Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited to Bharat Serums and Vaccines
Limited.

ii.  Re-classification of 12,15,900 unissued Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each into 12,15,900
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each.

iii. Increased its authorised share capital from Rs. 24,30,00,000/- to Rs. 3,51,72,20,000/-.

iv.  Allotted 7,140 Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each and 3,51,36,619 Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- each, to the respective shareholders of erstwhile Bharat Serums and
Vaccines Limited as per Scheme of Amalgamation.

Place: Thane For JHR & Associates
Date: 26-08-2022 Company Secretaries
UDIN: FO04317D000966333

Digitally signed by

JAYANT HARI javanT HaRI RANADE
RANADE Date: 2022.08.26

21:42:18 +05'30"

J. H. Ranade
(Partner)
FCS: 4317, CP: 2520
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY:

The Company’s vision is to be innovative, caring and trustworthy partner in bringing life to life
and the philosophy on Corporate Governance is to conduct its business in an efficient, responsible,
honest, transparent and ethical manner. The Company’s vision becomes the guiding principles in
all face of operations which helps the Company to achieve/exceed its objectives. Corporate
Governance goes beyond compliance and it involves Company wide commitment. This
commitment starts with Board of Directors, which executes its corporate governance
responsibilities by focusing on the Company’s strategic and operational excellence in the best
interest of all our stakeholders.

The Company believes that sound corporate practices based on transparency, accountability and
high level of integrity, in the functioning of the Company, is essential for the long term
enhancement of the shareholders/stakeholders value and interest. It encompasses achieving the
balance between shareholders’ interest and corporate goals through the efficient conduct of its
business and meeting its stakeholder obligations. Corporate Governance is about commitment to
values and about the ethical business conduct.

Our endeavour is to adopt the best governance and disclosure practice by giving the timely and
accurate disclosure of information regarding the financial situation, performance, ownership and
governance of the Company by following the statutory provisions including the Secretarial
Standards. We believe that the good Corporate Governance practices, is a key driver of sustainable
corporate growth and long-term value creation for the shareholders/stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a) Composition and Category of Directors:

The total strength of your Board presently is eight Directors, which consists of one Managing
Director and seven Non-Executive Directors out of which three are Independent Directors. Mr.
Sanjiv Navangul is a Managing Director & CEQO, of the Company. Mr. Sanjiv Navangul conducts
day-to-day business of the Company, subject to the supervision and control of the Board of
Directors. The Independent Directors on the Board are professionals and technocrats, who are
senior, competent and highly respectable persons from their respective fields of medical research,
finance and law. All the Directors have an in-depth knowledge of the industry.

The brief profile of the Directors of the Company is as under:-

i. Mr. Sanjiv Navangul is a Managing Director & CEO of the company has been involved with
the business affairs of the company since February 6, 2020. Mr. Sanjiv Navangul has led a
host of global pharmaceutical companies to operational success. His mentorship and
contribution towards a values-based culture is widely acknowledged by business leaders.
Mr. Navangul has served on the board of Johnson & Johnson Private Limited, India. Mr.

BHARAT SERUMS AND VACCINES LIMITED
(formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited)

Corporate Office Registered Office 'l R & D Centre | Ambernath Factory

3rd Floor, Liberty Tower, Airoli, | 17th Floor, Hoechst House, 3rd Floor, Liberty Tower, Plot No. K-27, Anand Nagar,
Navi Mumbai - 400708. Nariman Point, Mumbai - Airoli, Navi Mumbai - 400708 Additional M.1.D.C.,
Maharashtra, India | 400021, Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India Ambernath East - 421501
Tel. : +91-22-4504 3456 | CIN:U74110MH1993PLC0O75088 Tel. : +91-22-4504 3000 Tel. : 0251-262 7000

|
Fax : +91-22-4504 3200 | | Fax:+91-22-4504 3200 Fax: 0251-262 7008
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Navangul has held several leadership roles through his 30 years career such as Managing
Director for Janssen (Pharmaceutical Division of Johnson & Johnson) in India and South
Asia; Managing Director for MSD Pharmaceuticals, Philippines; Commercial Director for
MSD India and South Asia.

ii.. Mr. Bharat V. Daftary, Non- Executive Director of the Company, Bharat Daftary has
successfully led the business for three decades until Advent International’s takeover in
February 2020. Mr. Daftary has been spearheading the strategic planning of the company
and has played a key role in the development of global relationships and the marketing
function of the company.

ifi. Dr. Gautam Daftary, a medical doctor by training is the Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Dr. Daftary has primarily been responsible for R&D over the past three decades
until Advent International’s takeover in February 2020. His deep knowledge and expertise
in the fields of microbiology, oncology, allergies and psychiatrics were leveraged to boost
research initiatives, develop niche products and address unmet clinical needs.

iv.  Mr. Pankaj Patwari, Non-Executive Director Pankaj Patwari is a Non-Executive Director of
the company w.e.f. February 06, 2020. Mr. Patwari is a Chartered Accountant by profession
and he holds an MBA from the Indian Institute of Management (Lucknow). Mr. Patwari as
a Director of Advent India PE Advisors Private Limited (Advent) has been managing
Advent's investments in Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals Limited from 2014 apart
from Manjushree Techno-pack Limited, QuEST Global and Bharat Serums and Vaccines
Limited. He has also been a Director at Manjushree Techno-pack Limited and Gokaldas
Intimatewear Private Limited. Previously, Mr. Patwari had spent six years with Bain Capital
working on several transactions in the pharmaceutical and industrial sectors. Prior to his
stint at Bain, Mr. Patwari spent four years with McKinsey & Co., focusing primarily on
financial services.

v.  Ms. Shweta Jalan, Non-Executive Director of the company, w.e.f. September 22, 2021. Ms.
Jalan is BSC(Hons.) and MBA in Economics from National Institute of Management, Kolkata.
As the Managing Director of Advent India PE Advisors Private Limited (Advent), Shweta
Jalan has been associated with Advent since 2009. Before joining Advent, Ms. Jalan worked
with ICICI Venture, the largest private equity firm in India then. Prior to that, Ms. Jalan had
spent a year with the corporate finance division of Ernst & Young. Ms. Jalan is also a Director
at ASK Investment Managers Private Limited, Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals
Limited, Dixcy Textiles Private Limited, Manjushree Techno-pack Limited and QuEST
Global. Ms. Jalan has experience in sourcing and negotiating transactions and has worked
across a wide range of sectors including industrial, media, business services to IT/BPO. She
also offers her counsel on managing investments and planning successful exits, viz. sale to
strategic buyers and the listing of companies.

vi.  Mr. Jayesh Merchant, is an Independent Director of the company w.e.f. on September 22,
2021. Mr. Jayesh is a qualified chartered accountant from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, a qualified company secretary from the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India and has a law degree and Bachelor of Commerce degree from Mumbai University. Mr.
Merchant retired from Asian Paints Limited in November 2019 after a long stint of 17
years. He was the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Compliance Officer and
President of Industrial Joint Ventures of Asian Paints Limited. He was a member of the
management board / executive council which supervised the operations of Asian Paints
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Limited. Mr. Jayesh was overseeing the Industrial and Automotive Joint Ventures with PPG
Limited, the largest coatings company in the world, and was actively involved in strategy
and execution of the Joint Ventures. He was also involved with the Asian Paints international
business and was the chairman of the holding company before retirement. Prior to joining
Asian Paints Limited in 2002, Mr. Jayesh has worked in leadership roles in finance, legal,
company secretarial and general management in the manufacturing and service industries
namely, Castrol (India) Limited, Ion Exchange (India) Limited and UTV Limited.

During his career span of 37 years, Mr. Jayesh specialized in corporate governance and
compliances, working capital and treasury management, mergers and acquisitions,
intellectual property rights with a strong background in accounting, tax, legal and cost
controls. Mr. Jayesh is highly respected in the corporate world and has been named BW
Business world’s “Best CFO in the Sustained Wealth Creation” category in 2012 and 2017.
The Compliance and Legal team of Asian Paints Ltd. under his leadership won the Legal
Era “Corporate Governance Excellence Award” in 2018-2019. Mr. Jayesh currently serves as
an Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee in Manjushree Technopack
Limited and Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited.

vii. Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee is an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. September 22,
2021. A chemical engineer from IIT-Kharagpur, Mr. Mukherjee superannuated from Dr.
Reddy’s Laboratories Limited in March 2018 after playing varied senior roles there for 15
years; the last stint at Dr. Reddy’s was as COO from 2014 to 2018. Prior to that, Mr.
Mukherjee had worked with Hindustan Lever Limited for 13 years and with Atul Limited
for nine years. He is currently an Operating Partner at Advent International. He has been
involved in two of Advent’s acquisitions. Apart from serving on the Board of Bharat Serums
and Vaccines Limited, Mr. Mukherjee is on the board of ICE in Milan, Italy and Slayback, a
company incorporated in New Jersey, USA. Mr. Mukherjee is also Member of Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited.

viii. Mr. Bhaskar Iyer, is an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. September 22, 2021. He
is a strategic business leader with over four decades of experience in the pharmaceutical and
healthcare industry spanning country management, global leadership and Board
Directorship roles. Since 2007 he has been managing teams comprising of Managing
Directors and Function Heads and in the last role at Abbott India, the leading healthcare
company in India, he managed a team of 12,000 employees and a turnover of a billion US
dollars. Mr. Iyer currently works as an Operating Partner at Advent International in a
specialist advisory capacity. Prior to that, he was a Corporate Officer with Abbott for the
India region, leading Sales, Manufacturing and R&D operations. Mr. Iyer has also held
global leadership positions for Wockhardt Limited in India, AstraZeneca in Asia-Pacific
based in Singapore and country management positions in AstraZeneca, Nicholas Piramal
India Limited, ICI Pharmaceuticals and senior roles in Glaxo India Limited. Mr. Iyer is also
an Operating Advisor at a healthcare-focussed Private Equity firm, Quadria Capital. Mr. Iyer

- is also Member of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Bharat
Serums and Vaccines Limited.
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b) Composition of the Board as on March 31, 2022: -
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Category of Directors No. of Directors % to total No. of Directors
Executive Directors 1 12.5
Independent Directors 3 37.5
Non-Executive Directors 4 50
Total 8 100

Particulars of Directors, their attendance at the Annual General Meeting and Board Meetings held
during the financial year 2021-22 and also their other directorships in other Public Companies
(excluding Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies of Companies Act, 2013) and
Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee of
other Public Companies as on March 31, 2022 are as under:

Attendance at No. of
Board 78th Directorship of
Meetings | AGM other
(Total 5 | held Companies
. Meetings) | on (Other than
Name of Director Junes, Bharat Serums
2022 and Vaccines
Limited)
Public | Private
Mr. Bharat Daftary Director (Non-Executive) 1 No - 5
Dr. Gautam Daftary Director (Non-Executive) 1 No - 5
Mr. Sanjiv Navangul Managing Director & CEO 5 No S
Ms. Shweta Jalan Director (Non-Executive) 0 No 2 4
Mr. Pankaj Patwari Director (Non-Executive) 2 No 4 -
Mr. Bhaskar Iyer Independent Director 2 Yes 4 -
Mr. Jayesh Merchant Independent Director 1 No 3 3
Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee Independent Director 2 No 2 -

c¢) Board Meetings & Procedures: -

During the financial year 2021-2022, 5 (five) meetings of the Board were held. The intervening
period between the Board Meetings were well within the maximum time gap of 120 days. The
details of the meetings held during the year are as under:
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DATE OF BOARD MEETINGS
NAMEOFDIRECTOR 97707751 [ 22/07/21 | 16/09/21 | 11/11/21 | 10/03/22
Mr. Bharat Daftary NA NA NA PT AB
Dr. Gautam Daftary NA NA NA PT AB
Ms. Shweta Jalan NA NA NA AB AB
Mr. Pankaj Patwari PT PT PT PT PT
Mr. Sanjiv Navangul PT PT PT PT AB
Mr. Jayesh Merchant PT PT PT PT PT
Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee PT PT PT PT PT
Mr. Bhaskar Iyer PT PT PT PT PT
Mr. Akshay Alladi ** AB PT PT NA NA

PT= Present, AB = Absent

Mr. Bharat Daftary, Dr. Gautam Daftary, Ms. Shweta Jalan, Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee, Mr. Jayesh Merchant
& Mr. Bhaskar Iyer appointed as director w.e.f. September 22, 2021

Mr. Akshay Alladi resigned from his position w.e.f. September 22, 2021

The Board Meetings of the Company are governed by a structured agenda. The Meetings are
generally held at the Registered Office of the Company at Mumbai or through Other Audio-Visual
Means (OAVM). The Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairman, Executive Directors
and Chief Financial Officer finalizes the Agenda of the Committee and Board Meetings. All major
Agenda items backed up by comprehensive background information are sent to the Board
Members well in advance of the date of the Board Meetings to enable the Board to take informed
decision. Any Board Member may, in consultation with the Chairman, bring up any matter for
consideration by the Board. Senior Management personnel are invited from time to time to the
Board Meetings to make requisite presentations on relevant issues or provide necessary insights
into the operations/working of the Company and corporate strategies.

The Board periodically reviews Compliance Reports in respect of various laws and regulations
applicable to the Company.

The Executive Directors are also entitled for Company’s contribution to provident fund,
superannuation, gratuity at the end of the tenure as per Company’s policy.

Presently the Company have approved scheme for grant of stock option for Directors and
Employees.

Disclosure of Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors:

Sr. No. Name of the Non-Executive Director Share held as on March 31, 2022
1 Mr. Bharat Daftary 2490
2 Dr. Gautam Daftary 1055
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3 Mr. Pankaj Patwari NIL
4 Ms. Shweta Jalan NIL
5 Mzr. Jayesh Merchant NIL
6 Mr. Bhaskar Iyer 68
7 Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee 14

During the year, no Independent Director resigned before the expiry of his/ her tenure.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMMITTEES:

The Board of Directors the Company has constituted the various Committees to focus on specific
areas and to make informed decisions within their authority. All the decisions and
recommendations of the Committee are placed before the Board for their approval.

The various Board level Committees are as under: -

I Audit Committee;

II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
III.  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;
v Risk Management Committee;

V.  Shareholders Committee.

VI. Management Committee

I) AUDIT COMMITTEE:

a) Constitution and Responsibility:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is as per section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and
includes such functions as may be assigned to it by the Board of Directors from time to time. The
Audit Committee has been entrusted with all the required authority and powers to play an
effective role as envisaged under Companies Act. The primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are to:
Supervise the financial reporting process.
¢ Review financial results before placing them before the Board.
o Review the adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, including the scope and
performance of the internal audit function.
¢ Hold discussions with Statutory Auditors on nature and scope of audit.
Ensure compliance with Accounting Standards
e Recommend the appointment and removal of Internal and External Auditors and determine
their fees.
e Review related party transactions.
Ensure that adequate safeguards have been taken for legal compliance by the Company.
Review the Company’s financial and risk management policies.

b) Composition:
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has
constituted the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

The following Directors are the Members of the Audit Committee: -

Mr. Bharat Daftary-Non-Executive Director*
Mr. Jayesh Merchant - Independent Director
Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee - Independent Director
Mr. Bhaskar Iyer - Independent Director

Mr. Pankaj Patwari - Non-Executive Director

G L=

*Resigned from his position w.e.f. June 9, 2021
¢) Meetings:

The Members of Audit Committee met 1 (One) time during the year and the following table gives
the details of attendance of Members in their meetings held during the financial year 2021-2022:

Sr. . Committee No. of Directors | No. of Independent
Date of Meeting :
No. Strength present Directors present
1 10/11/2021 4 4 2
Sr. Members Audit Committee Meetings during 2021-22
No. Held Attended
1 | Mr. Jayesh Merchant 1 1
2 | Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee 1 1
3 | Mr. Bhaskar Iyer 1 1
4 | Mr. Pankaj Patwari 1 1

All the Members on the Audit Committee have the requisite qualification for appointment on the
Committee and possess sound knowledge of finance, accounting practices and internal controls.

Audit Committee Meetings are generally attended by the Managing Directors, Chief Financial
Officer as invitees. The representative of the Statutory Auditors of the Company remain present
during the finalisation of the Annual Accounts. Internal Auditors have attended Audit Committee
Meetings wherein the Internal Audit Reports were considered by the Committee. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

II) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

a) Constitution and Responsibility:

Pursuant to the provision of section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has
constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Directors of the Company. The
said Committee has been entrusted with all the required authority and powers to play an effective
role as envisaged under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The primary responsibilities of

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are:
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e To identify and determine the persons to be appointed as Directors and Members of Senior
Management of the Company.

e To evaluate of performance of Directors of the Company.

e To formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence
of Director.

e To recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees.

b) Composition:

The following Directors are the Members of the Committee: -

1. Mr. Bhaskar Iyer - Independent Director
2. Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee - Independent Director
3. Mr. Pankaj Patwari - Non-Executive Director

) Meetings:

During the financial year, 1 (one) meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
convened and held:

Sr. . Committee No. of Directors | No. of Independent
Date of Meeting .
No. Strength present Directors present
1 | March 10, 2022 3 3 2
S Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Nl(: Members Meetings held during 2021-22
) Held Attended
1 | Mr. Pankaj Patwari 1 1
Non-Executive Director
5 | Mr. Bhaskar Iyer Independent 1 1
Director
3 | Mr Abhijit Mukherjee Independent 1 1
Director

d) Remuneration:

The remuneration paid to the Managing Director during the year, was approved by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and shareholders of the Company. The Independent
Directors only are paid sitting fees of INR. 1,00,000/- per board and all other committee meetings.

The following table gives the detail of remuneration and sitting fees paid to each Director during
the Financial year 2021 — 2022:
(INR in Lakhs)
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Directors Salary Provident Fund Sitting
Contributions Fees
Mr. Bharat Daftary Nil Nil Nil
Dr. Gautam Daftary Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Sanjiv Navangul 497.15 Nil
Ms. Shweta Jalan Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Pankaj Patwari Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Jayesh Merchant Nil Nil 12.00
Mr. Bhaskar Iyer Nil Nil 15.00
Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee Nil Nil 16.00

III) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

a) Constitution and Responsibility:

Pursuant to the provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under, the Company has set up the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Directors of
the Company. The primary responsibilities of the Committee are:

o formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company those are qualified as per the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 & rules thereunder;

e recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities along with the
calculation of the same;

o Prepare a ftransparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the
projects/programmes /activities proposed to be undertaken by the Company;

e monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

b) Composition:

The following Directors are the Members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: -

1. Mr. Sanjiv Navangul - Managing Director & CEO
2. Mr. Jayesh Merchant - Independent Director
3. Mr. Abhijit Mukherjee - Independent Director

¢)  Meetings:
Sr. No. Date of Meeting Committee Strength No. of Directors present
1 March 10, 2022 3 3

IV)  RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

a)  Constitution and responsibility:
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The Company has Risk Management Committee of the Directors of the Company.
The primary responsibilities of the Committee are:

o To formulate the policies and measures for identification of new risk or changes in the risk
probability of its occurrences, impact of the said risks on the organization financials.

* To formulate the appropriate policies to reduce the risk.

e To monitor on regular basis the effectiveness of risk controls implemented by the committee.

b) Composition:

The following Directors are the Members of the Risk Management Committee:

1. Mr. Sanjiv Navangul - Managing Director & CEO;
2. Mr. Pankaj Patwari - Non-Executive Director;
3. Mr. Jayesh Merchant - Independent Director.

During the year, no meeting of the Committee was held and convened.

V) SHAREHOLDERS COMMITTEE:

a)  Constitution and responsibility:

The Company has the Shareholders Committee of the Directors of the Company. The primary
responsibility is to resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company.

b) Composition:
The following Directors are the Members of the Risk Management Commiittee:

1. Mr. Sanjiv Navangul - Managing Director & CEO;
2. Mr. Bhaskar Iyer - Independent Director.

During the year, no meeting of the committee was held and convened.

VvI) MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

a) Constitution and responsibility

The Company has set up Management Committee. The primary responsibility of the Committee
is to authorise employees for the following purpose:
a. To appear before government authorities with reference to company matters on behalf of
Company;
b. To file applications before various government authorities;
c. To authorize applying for tenders;
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To authorize opening of bank account;

To authorize to do forex forward booking and signing forward contract agreements;

To authorize signing documents relating to export and import;

To authorize sale of merchandise export incentive schemes;

To authorize anyone to sign suit, plaint, document and appear before judicial and quasi-
judicial authorities for civil and criminal cases;

To authorize appointing lawyers, tax consultants, and any other consultant;

To authorize signing of any other request of customers which arises from time to time,
including amalgamation or merger consent required by customer;

k. To authorize appointment and removal of a distributor and carrying and forwarding
agent;

To authorize and approve pricing for all material contracts and procurement deals;

m. To authorize entering into or exiting any in-licensing and out-licensing deals; and

To take notice of any government and compliance notices and promptly communicate to
the Board for critical matters.
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b) Composition
The following are the Members of the Shareholders Committee:

1. Mr. Pankaj Patwari-Member
2. Mr. Sanjiv Navangul-Member
3. Mr. Atin Jain-Member

During the year, no Meeting of the Committee was held and convened.
GENERAL MEETINGS:

The 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 will be held on
September 9, 2022 through Video Conferencing(‘'VC’) /Other Audio Visual Means (‘'OAVM') at 3+
Floor, Reliable Plaza, Plot no. K-10, behind Reliable Plaza, Kalwa Ind. Estate, Airoli, Navi Mumbai
400708 at 3:00 p.m.

The following table gives the details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company
held:

Financial Day, Date
Year and Time Special Resolutions Location
of AGM
1. Approval of the alteration of Articles of NA
. . f 1 At |
June 27, Association of the Company Meeting was held
2020-21 2022 2. Approval for grant of Employee Stock throush Video
Appreciation Rights equal to or more than 1% &
A o P Conference/ OAVM
of Issued Capital to the identified employee
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under ‘BSVL - Employee Stock Appreciation
Rights Plan 2021" (“ESARP 2021”/ “Plan”)
17t Floor, Hoechst
2 , Nari
2019-20 August 26, NIL House arm.lan
2020 Point, Mumbai 400
021
17t Floor, Hoechst
August 30, House, Nariman
2018-19 N
2019 N Point, Mumbai 400
021

None of the Resolutions proposed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting needs to be passed by
Postal Ballot in terms of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 22 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.

MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All the Related Party Transactions are forming part of the notes to the Balance Sheet. Other than
those there was no materially significant related party transaction with its promoters, relatives,

directors, management, wholly owned subsidiary etc. which may have a potential conflict with

the interest of the Company at large.

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

No. of complaints received during the year if any: - NIL
Day, Date and Time of AGM : September 9, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. L.S.T.

Venue

Financial Year
Record Date
Registered office
Compliance officer
E-mail Address
Website address

\ {’ |
Pankaj Patwari
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 26, 2022

: Through Video Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual Means.

: April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022

: August 30, 2022

: 17th floor, Hoechst House, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021
: Company Secretary

: cs@bharatserums.com

: www.bsvgroup.com

For BTat Serums and Vaccines Limited For Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited

Hpnnhy

Sanjiv Navangul
Managing Director & CEO
Place: Mumbai

Date: August 26, 2022

(formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited)

Corporate Office | Registered Office ‘ R & D Centre Ambernath Factory

3rd Floor, Liberty Tower, Airoli, | 17th Floar, Hoechst House, 3rd Floor, Liberty Tower, |  Plot No. K-27, Anand Nagar,
Navi Mumbai - 400708. Nariman Point, Mumbai - | Airoli, Navi Mumbai - 400708 Additional M.L.D.C,,
Maharashtra, india 400021, Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India Ambernath East - 421501
Tel. : +91-22-4504 3456 CIN : U74110MH1993PLC0O75088 | Tel.: +91-22-4504 3000 Tel. : 0251-262 7000

Fax : +91-22-4504 3200

| Fax:+91-22-4504 3200 Fax: 0251-262 7008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
{Formerly Known as Aksipro Diagnostics P limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
(Formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at 31%t March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 313 March 2022, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standaione financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Therecn

+ The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the other information. The other information
comprises the information inctuded in the Board’s report in the Annual Report for the year ended
31t March 2022, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

» Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

+« In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiaily inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or cur knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

e Imternational Center, Tower 3, 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
ai o, AAB-8737)
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for cne resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i) of the Act, we are also
respansible for expressing cur opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal financiat controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.
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+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a materiat uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in cur auditor’'s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financiaf statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative materiality and qualitative
factors (i} in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali refationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3} of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those hooks.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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g)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A", Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adeguacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial centrols over financial reparting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the
remuneration paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements.

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

jli. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“*Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)
and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. As stated in note 32A to the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the
Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subiject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS &SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

e

;22 Vo It

Manoj H. Dama

Partner
{(Membership No. 107723)
(UDIN; 22107723APYEBI7882)

Place: Mumbai @
Date: 26™ August 2022 /v
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bharat Serums and Vaccines
Limited (Formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited) (“the Company”} as of 31% March 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interna!l financial controls based
on the internal controf over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financiat information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted cur audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audif of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controis. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cobtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinicn on the Company's internal financial contreols system over financial repoerting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is & process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Company
has, in ali material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 315 March 2021, based
on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

i/f"‘m
{ s
i o

Manoj H. Dama

Parther

(Membership No. 107723)
{UDIN: 22107723APYEBI7882)

Place: Mumbai @;
P

Date: 26™ August 2022
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ANNEXURE "B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BHARAT SERUMS
AND VACCINES LIMITED (Formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics P Limited)

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that;

i
a)
{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and reievant details of right-
of-use assets.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b} The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, so te cover all the items
once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, no such assets were due for physical verification
during the year. Since no physical verification of property, plant and equipment was due during the year
the question of reporting on material discrepancies noted on verification does not arise.

¢} The Company dees not have any immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the [ease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) and hence reporting under
clause (i){(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued any of its
property, plant and equipment (inciuding Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

e} To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31 March 2022 for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder.

a) The inventories except for (stocks held with third parties), were physically verified during the year by
the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and based on information and explanations
given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. For stocks held with third parties at
the year-end, written confirmations have heen obtained. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks on
the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the quarterly returns or statements comprising (stock statements, book debt statements)
filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company of the respective quarters , except for the following:
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the | Sanctioned Details of discrepancies Remarks
guarter | amount to
ended which Nature of Nature of Amount
discrepancy | current discrepancy
relates asset As per As per Difference
quarterly unaudited
returns and | books of
statements | gccount
June 14,700 Trade Difference in| 38,409 40,081 1,672 The bhank returns
2021 receivable | amount as were prepared and
and per filed before the
Inventory [ quarterly completion of all
statements financial statement
filled te closure  activities,
bank and which led to these
unaudited differences between
books of the final books of
accounts account and the
hank return which
were  based on
provisional books of
account.
Sept 14,700 Trade Difference in| 38,648 39,417 769 The bank returns
2021 receivable | amount as were prepared and
and per filed before the
Inventory | guarterly completion of all
statements financial statement
filled to clesure  activities,
bank and which led to these
unaudited differences between
books of the final books of
accounts account and the
bank return which
were  based on
provisional books of
account.
Dec 14,700 Trade Difference in| 40,882 40,575 (307) The bank returns
2021 receivable | amount as were prepared and
and per fiied before the
Inventory | quarterly completion of all
statements financial statement
fitled to closure  activities,
bank and which led to these
unaudited differences between
books of the final books of
accounts account and the
bank return which
were  hased on
provisional books of
account,
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{Rs. In Lakhs)
For the | Sanctioned Details of discrepancies Remarks
quarter | amount to
ended which Nature of Nature of Amount
discrepancy | current discrepancy
relates asset As per As per Difference
quarterly unaudited
returns and | hooks of
statements account
March 14,700 Trade Difference in| 42,199 41,500 (699) The bank returns
2022 receivable | amount as were prepared and
and per filed before the
Inventory | quarterly completion of all
statements financial statement
filled to ciosure  activities,
bank and which led to these
unaudited differences between
books of the final books of
accounts account and the
bank return which
were based on

provisional books of
account,

iii. The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted unsecured loans to companies
and other parties during the year, in respect of which:

a) The Company has provided loans and guarantee during the year and details of which are given below

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Loans Guarantees
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:
- Subsidiary Nil 2,964.54
- Others 46.76 Nil
B. Balance cutstanding as at balance sheet date:
- Subsidiary 2,235.11 4,227.84
- Others 38.43 Nil

The Company has not provided any advances in nature of loan or security to Subsidiaries and any other
entity during the year.

b) The investment made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned {oan and
guarantee provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s

interest.

c)

In respect of loans granted by the Company to its subsidiaries as stated in sub-clause (iii){a) above, the

schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated and in the absence
of such schedule, we are unable to comment on the regularity of the repayments of principal amounts
and payment of interest. (also refer reporting under sub-clause (iii)(f) below). However, interest in
respect of loans granted to one of its subsidiary aggregating Rs. 175.74 lakhs has been received during
the current year for the period from April 1, 2018 to September 30, 2021 and interest aggregating Rs.
28.23 lakhs is accrued as at the balance sheet date for the period October 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022




Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

d)

e)

f)

vi.

and interest in respect of loans granted to another subsidiary aggregating Rs. 611.97 lakhs has not been
recognised and received for the period from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2022.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, subject to our comments under sub-ciause (iii}{c) above,
there is no amount overdue for more than 90 days as at the balance sheet date. The Company has not
provided any advances in nature of loan to any entity.

During the year loans aggregating to Rs. 379.00 lakhs fell due from certain parties which has been
renewed. The details of such leans that fell due and renewed during the year are stated below:

Name of the party Aggregate amount of dues | Percentage of the aggregate to
of existing loans renewed | the total loans granted (including
(Rs. In lakhs) renewed) during the year
Sri Anantha Padmanabha 379.00 89.12%
Swamy Pharma Pvt Ltd

The Company has granted Loans or advances in the nature of loans which are repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment details of which are given below:

Particulars Related Parties
(Rs. In lakhs)

Aggregate of ioans/advances in nature of loans
- Repavyable on demand (A)

- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment (B) 2 935 1N1I|
Total (A+B) 2,235.11
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of lecans to the total loans 84.36%

The Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans granted and investments made, as applicable. The Company has not provided any
guarantee or securities that are covered under the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit from the public in accordance with the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder and hence reporting under clause (v) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are
of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the
Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.




Vii.

Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

(a)

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Geods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on

viii.

iX.

March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of | Nature of Amount | Period to which | Forum where Dispute is
Statute Dues {Rs. in | the Amount | Pending

lakhs) | Relates
Finance Act, | Service Tax 721.88# | 18.04.2006 to | Central Excise and Service
1994 28.02.2011 Tax Appellate Tribunal
Central Sales Tax | Central 107.06 | FY 2012-13 Maharashtra Sales Tax
Act, 1956 Sales Tax Tribunal
Central Sales Tax | Central 107.49 | FY 2013-14 Maharashtra Sales Tax
Act, 1956 Sales Tax Tribunal
Central Sales Tax | Central 130.49 | FY 2014-15 Maharashtra  Sales Tax
Act, 1956 Sales Tax Tribunal
Central Sales Tax | Central 114.79 | FY 2015-16 Maharashtra Sales Tax
Act, 1956 Sales Tax Tribunal
Central Sales Tax | Central 285,31 | FY 2016-17 Maharashtra Sales Tax
Act, 1956 Sales Tax Tribunal
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 226.18 | FY 2017-18 CIT (A}
1961
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 49.59 | FY 2017-18 CIT {A)
1961

# Net of Rs. 75.00 lakhs paid under protest and amount includes penalty of Rs.400.00 lakhs

There are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax as
on 315 March 2022 which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
disputes.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961} during the
year.

(a) Loans amounting to Rs. 6,017.98 lakhs outstanding as at 31 March, 2022 are repayable on demand.

According to the information and explanations given to us, such loans thereon have not been
demanded for repayment during the financial year. Considering the above, in our opinion, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of {oans or other borrowings, or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

government or any government authority.
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(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised term loans at
the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the funds raised on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

{f) The Company has not raised any lpoans by way of pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries
companies during the year and hence reporting on clause (ix}(f) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

X.

{a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {(including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

{h) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures {fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x){(b) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XE.
(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year and up to the date of report.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Xiv.
(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors or directors of its subsidiaries and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
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xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c} of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

As represented by the management, the Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC)
as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of paragraph 3 of
the Order is not applicable,

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

xvili. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on cur examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section
(6} of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx} of paragraph 3 of the
Qrder is not applicable,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

¢

7278

Manoj H. Dama
Partner
(Membership No.107723)
(UDIN: 22107723APYEBI7882)
Place: Mumbai @

Date: 26™ August 2022 /
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Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Lid")
Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022
{Curreney @ Indian rupees in Lakhs)
MNofe As ot Asat
MNa. 31 March 2022 31 Maurch 2028
1 ASSETS
| Non-current sssety
{a) Property, plant and equipment 5 14,696.56 13,711,240
(b Right-of-tlse Assets 54 4, 797061 4751 48
(o) Capital work in progress 3 1,394.14 1314940
{d) Goodwill k1 20620049 208462014
(wh Other Intangebe asscty gl 1,080,863 .45 100,834 .74
(0 Intungible assets under development 7 2407787 1592
{1} Financial asyets
{11 Tnvestments A 4,892 56 TGS
(ii} b cans g4 2,239.50 2,23%.53
{1613 Hher Onancial assets 1NA 1,335,541 £,029.25
{0 Iteomie tax assels (netd 111y 167196 £572.9%
{13 Other non - current assets {24 a11.56 84274
Total non-current assets J 45,0018 3408950
2 Current assets
{a) Inventorics t3 17,2537.74 17,023.22
(b)Y Fiuancial assels
{11 Investinents 5B - 1,008.98
{ti) Trade receivables 4 23332492 19,385.52
{iii) Cash and cash cquivalenss ) 11,9267t 4,533.28
f1v) Bank balanees other than (161 sbove F5A 249,40 203 .45
{v} Loans R 404,74 607.71
{1y Other linaneial asscis 1013 467 K3 76617
(e} Olher currenl assets 1213 8,572.42 762775
Total currenf assets 62,216.85 51.411.08
TFotal Asscts 407,818,746 3,92, 306,49y
H  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
{u) Equity shure capital L& 20,00 2186
(Y Compulsenly Canvertible Preference Share 16 33,143.26 858
) Other equity fal 2,758,563 80 24992728
Total Eqyuily 3,10,736.10 2,19,755.72
2 Liahilitics
2z Nom-current lishilities
() Financiat Liabilitics
(i) Bovrowings 174 46,615.92 1,29.224.63
(i) Lease Liability 20 10587 E1G] .65
{1iy Oher Duanciat Labilities 184 KIRTS -
{b) Dher non - current lkabititics 194 174.43 17592
{e) Provisions 2TA bAT0.34 HRE RN
{d) Delerved 1ax linbilities (Net) 11¢ 7,598.80 8,646,25
Tatzl non-current liahilities 57,796.50 141,113,446
2b Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{1} Borrowings 170 14,633.46 1605661
(ii) Lease Liabitity 20 647.73 ETATH
111} Trade payables Jrnd
- lolaF outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smat! 286,57 31695
enlelpriscs
- Total oulslandilng dues other than micro eaterprises 1172925 9.647.25
and small enterprises
{iv} Olher Ninancial liakilities TR 278478 RIS
{1y Other current labilitics 19B 76188 62441
fe Provisions 21B 1,599.19 1.550.0%
{d} Curvent tax Habilittes {Net) [N N 2,843.30 1,466.42
Tatal current liabilities 32,286.16 31,437.81
Total Equity and Liabilitics 40781878 3,92,300,99
Sipnificant accounting polictes t-4
Mates to standalone nancial statements 5-45

The accompanying noeles are an integral part of these Hinancial statements,
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Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd™)
Standalone Siatement of Profil and Loss for the yvear ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in 1.akhs)

1 Income
(& Revenue from Operations
{bv) Oehier Income

Total Income {1}

2 Expenscs
{a} Cost of materials consumed
(b} Purchuses of stock-in-(rade
{e) Changes in inventories of {inished poods, stock-in-trade and
work-it progress
{d) limplayee benefits expense
() Hhior capenses
(f) tmpairment of Investment

Fotul expenses (2)
Earaings before interest, {ax, depreciaiion, amartisation,
3 impairment and Unwirding of present value of Financizi

liability redemption amount (1-2)

Unwinding of present velue of redemption munount i respect of
financial instrument classificd ay finuncial liability

Farnings before inrerest, tax, deprecistion, amerfisation and
impairinent (EBETDA)Y (3 - 4)

o) Finance cost
{b) Depreciation and amertisation expense
{c) Bmpairment of Intaupibles
6 Profit {Luoss) before iax
7 Tax expense
Cuwivent tax
Deforred tax (net)
Dreferred tax pertaining (o earfler years
Total tax expenses

¥ Toss for the year

Q Other comprekensive income

Year ended

Year ended

(i) Htems that will not be reclassitied subsequently to profit or loss

ia) Remeasurements of defiocd benelit plans
{b) Income Tax on reencasurement of defined bewefit plans

Other Comprehensive Tncome for the year, net of income tay

14 Total Comprehensive lizcome for the vear (81 + (9}

Earnrings per equity share {in Rapees) 1 Face value of Rs. 300
each :

Basic

T¥ifuted

Significanl accounting policies
Notes to standalone financial statements
The accompattying notes are au intcgral pant of these [nancial stalements.

Note 3% March 2022 31 Mareh 202¢
21 L.06,161.10 80.971.31
24 160206 718,71

1,07,703.16 21692412
25 25,441 42 22.643.65
26 7.413 34 5.580.58
27 1,720.28 445,84
28 19,805.06 1668725
29 28,462.76 21,606.36
8A 404.09 11,294.45
8325645 78.358.13
24.446.71 3,433.89
10,971.42 2,196.63
13,475.29 1.237.26
0 5.597.12 6.462.85
3] 542036 7.310.01
" 40 447 .50
1,457.81 (61,978.10)
1
4.746.54 31.320.61
(1,080 45) (15,172.66)
; 1226
3,657.09 (11,819.79)
(1,199.28) (50,158.31)
16891 239 97
(42.09) (57.48)
12682 172409
(1,672.46) (49,986.22)
32
(1,854.78) (79,772.88}
(1,854.78) (79,772.58)
1-4
545
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Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksiproe Diagnostics P Lid")
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the ycar ended 31 March 2022

{Carrency © Incian rapees in Lakhs)

Year erded Year ended
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flow from operating activitics
Profiv{loss} before tax 2,457.41 {61,978, 10}
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 3,4200.360 A0
Impairment of Intangibles - 49,442.50
Provision fir Dininution iy value of ivestment 404,09 11,294.45
Profit on sak of property plant and equipment - (38T}
Sundry balances written off (1.49 19,946
Sundry balances writien hack - (44.31)
Intangibles under developmment written of7 - 5076
RBiological assels writlen off - 30
Fived assets written oft - 19.9]
Wrile off of Property, Plast and Fquipnient - 61622
Write back of Property, PMlant and Equipment {305.83) -
Provision (o doubtfid debts 29.54 200,90
Provision for doubtful advanee and deposits 182.00 9.u7
Unrealized foreign exchange patndfloss) on revatuation (net) {163.50) 129,19
Jiinance Costs 54,5972 6,462.85
Interest incomce (373.69) (21245
Unwinding of present valiee of redemption amount in respect of financial 103,971.42 2,190.03
nstrument classified as financial hability
Clain arising on Sale of Mutual Fund {1117 -
Gain arising o0 Mutual Fund desigaated at Fair Value Fhrough Profi or Loss - (B.98)Y
Eraployee Stock Appreciation Rights expense B2.36 -
QOperating profit hefere working capital changes 24,295.00 15,584,649
YWorking capital adjustinents:
Increased (Decrease) in trade payables 2,144.20 340380
Increase/ {Decrease) in provisions (223.26) (33333
Increase’ {Decrcasc) in other financial liabilitics L) 44,54
Increase/ {Decrcase) in ober liabilitics 13598 {291.05)
{Increascy/Docrease in trade reccivables (3,804.15) (4,623.36)
{Increasey in inventorics (134.57) 1,902.77
{Increasc¥Decrcase w other financial assely G486 {1341
(tnereascy Deerease in Secarity Deposit and Loans to Bnipleyees {166.72) {53.89)
{ereasc)decrease n other assets {1,023.02) {2,604.78)
Cash penerated {Tom operations 21,446.72 12.416.18
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (3,168.63) (2,1171.36)
Net cash fow genvrated from operating activitics {(A) 14,278.0% 14,344.82

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Other Intangible Assets, Right of (8.248.01) {1,941.21)
Eise, TAUID and CWIP

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 775

Purchase of Tnvestment (19030} {23,684.30)
Proceeds/qPurchase) from Sale of mutval funds B020.15 {1,000.000
Redemption / (Investment) of bank deposits having maturity of more than 3 702,04 {633.94)
months

Inter-corparate deposits recetved back 216,68 23202

Interest recetved 341,74 232.00

Net cash flow pencrated from/{used in) investing activities (B) (6,157.70) (20,786.79)
Cash flows trom finarcing activities

{Repayment}Procurement of long-ternt borrowings {18293 {924.78)
Progeeds from short-term borrowings 1,906,009 3,583.13

Repayment of lease liabilities (191.249) {(842.38)
Finance cost paid {6,241.06) (10,306.29)
Proceeds from issue of Compulsorily convertible dobentures B 10,538.05

Proceed from issue of equity shares ( excluding premiam} - 213

Premium on issuc of cquity shares - 13,142.38

Dividend paid (and related dividend distribution tax) - {0.01)

Net cash tlow generated frown/{used in) financing activitics (C) {4,709.21) 15,191.23




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as ""Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
Standalone Siatement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 conid.

{Currency - [ndian rupecs in Lakhs)

Year ended Yeur ended
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Net (decrease} / increase in cash and cash eguivalents (A + 13+ O) 7.411.18 (1.250.74)
Cash and cash cquivadents at the beginning of the year 453328 6,005.29
Net effect of exchange gain / {{oss on cash and cash equivalent (17.75) {231.23}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11.926.71 4,533.32
Components of cash and cash cquivalents
Cush on hand 7.30 19.50
liatances with bank:
- m current account 4. 13181 3,939.04
Term deposits with Original mamrify fess than 3 months TIRT.60 374.44
Tolal cash and cash equivalenis (Reler Note $E5) : 11,926,71 4,533.28

Note:

b The Cash fiow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting StandardfiND AS 7} Statement of
cash flows preseribed in Companics {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, which continue to apply under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, rewd with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

2 Purchase of Property, Plant and Fauipment inchudes movements of capital work in progress (including capital advances)

Significant accounting polictes -4
Motes to standalone finaneiat statements 545
The accompanying notes are an integra] part of these financial statements.

As per owr Report of cven date

For Deloitte Hasking & Sells L.1.P Yor and on behalf of the board of directors of
Charfered Acconntants Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limiicd
CIN :U74110MH1993PLC0O75088
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Partwer Managing Director and CEQ
DIN : 02924640
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Pankaj Patwari

Director

,ﬁ_i;'ag Mehta
Chief Financial Officer \
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Place: Mumbat CompanrSecretary
Date: 26th August 2022 Moembership No: AZ231434
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Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
{Formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics Private Limited)

Notes to the standalone Financial Statements
Jor the yvear ended 37 March 2022

1)

2)

Carporate information

Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as Aksipro Diagnostics Private
Limited) (the ‘Company’, or ‘BSVL™} is a public limited company domiciled in India and 15
mcorporaicd under the provisions of the Companics Act applicable in India. The Company is
a subsidiary of Ansamira Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at 17th
Floor, Hoechst House, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021, Maharashira, India.

The Company is engaged in the business of research, development, manufacturing, marketing
and sales of biological and pharmaceutical products and any kind of medical equipment in
India and overscas market.

The standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were approved by the
Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 26% August 2022,

Significant Accounting Policies of standalone Financial Statements

2.1) Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March,
2022 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (*Ind AS’) notified
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in consultation with the National Advisory Committee
on Accounting Standards, under section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 (*Act’) read with
Rule 3 of the Compuanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and the
relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company filed Scheme of Amalgamation ("the Scheme”} of Bharat Serums and Vaceines
Limited (“BSVL™) and BSVLIFE Private Limited (“BSV Li{e”) with the Company under
section 230 and 232 and other applicable provisions of Companics Act, 2013 with the National
Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) on 20 August 2020,

The Scheme was approved by NCLT via order dated 02/08/2021, and appointed date being
1.¢. 14 February 2020, Merger of BSVL is accounted as per acquisition method in accordance
with Tnd AS 103. The merger of BSV Life will be accounted as an asset acquisition as per
Ind AS 103 from effective date of the scheme.

The financial statements are presented in [ndian rupees, which is the {unctional currency of
the Company and the currency of the primary cnvironment in which the Company operates.
All values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention unless otherwise

indicated, except:

i} Asset held for sale and biological asset — measured al fair value less cost of sell

11} Asscls and liabilities acquired in business combination or as part of asset acquisition are
measured at fair value

iii} Certain other {inancial assets and Liabi)itics measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments)

2.2) Summary of significant accounting policies

Business Combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. The
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Company measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at the proportionate share of
the acquirce’s identifiable net agsets. Acquisition-related costs are recognized in profil or loss
as meurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are
recognized at their acquisition date fair values. Tor this purpose, the liabilities assumed include
contingent Habilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition
fair valucs irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
not probable. However, the following assets and liabilitics acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated below:

s Deforred tax asscts or liabilitics, and the asscts or liabilities refated to employce benefit
arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Tncome Tax
and Ind AS 19 Employce Benefils respectively.

»  Assets {or disposal company’s) that are classificd as held for sale in accordance with
Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

»  Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined since the remaining contractual
term of the related contract. Such valvation does not consider potential renewal of the
reacquired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and lisbilitics assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
econtomic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulling gain or loss is recognized in profil
or loss or QCI, as appropriate,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair valuc at
the acquisition dale, Contingent consideration classified as an asset ov hability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Tnd AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recogmized in profitor loss. If'the contingent consideration
1s not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind
AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as cquity is not re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates and subsequentifs scttlement 1s accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is tnitially measured as the excess of the aggregaie of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and fair value of any previous interest
held, aver the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilitics assumed. If the fair value of the
net assels acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-
assesses whether it has correetly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognized at the
acquisition date. If the reasscssment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in OCl and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entily recognizes the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCL

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at the carrying amount less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-gencrating
units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units,

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is Lested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired. {fthe recoverable
amount of the cash generating uait is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
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allocated first to reduce the carrying amousnt of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other asscts of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of cach asset in the unit, Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognized
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposcd of) the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative vafues of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating umit retained.

If the inital accounting for a busincss combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination oceurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the
items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounis are adjusted through
goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to
refleet new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts rccognmized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not
exceed one year from the acquisition date.

b Curremt versus Non-curvent Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on cwrrent/non-current
classification.
An asset is classified as current when it is:
i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
it) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
iii} Expected to be realised within fwelve months after the reporting period, or
v} Cash or cash cquivalent uniess restnicted {rom being exchanged or used to scitle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting peried.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current,

A Hability s clagsificd as current when:
B 1t is expected to be settfed m normal operating cycle or due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period
it} it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
iii) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at Teast twelve
menths after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Delerred tax assels and Habilides are classified as non-current assets and liabifitics,

The operating cycle s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified period of twelve menths
as its operating cycle.

¢} Property, plant and eqguipment (“PPE")
I} Recognition and Measurement

1) Items of Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, plamt
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and cquipment comprises its purchase price, including import dutics and other
non-refundable taxcs or levies and any dircctly altributable cost of bringing the
assets to its working condition for its intended use and any trade discount and
rehates are deducted in arriving at purchase price. Cost of the asscts also includes
interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed asscts up to
the date the asset 1s ready for its intended use incwred up to that date.

1) If significant parls of an item of property, plant and cquipment have different
uscful lives, then they arc accounted for as separate items (major components) of
Property, plant and equipment.

iif)  An item of property, plant and cquipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derccognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derccognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised

iv)  Cost of Items of Property, plant and equipment not ready for intended usc as on
the balance sheet date, is disclosed as capilal work in progress. Capital work in
progress is stated at cosi, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Advances
given towards acquisition of propertly, plant and equipment outstanding at cach
balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advance under Other non-current
assets.

Hy Sobsequent expenditare

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is included in
assel’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale assel, as appropriate only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

1) Depreciation :

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPT over its useful life
and is provided on a straight-line basis aver the usceful Hves as prescribed under Schedule 1T
o the Companies Act, 2013 or as per technical assessment, The residual values, useful Hives
and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at cach {inancial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.c. from {up to} the date
on which is assct is ready to use / {disposed of). Frechold land is not depreciated.

Tangible Assels Useful Life
Buiidings 5 years 0 60 years
Property, Plant and cquipment B years to 20 years

_Fumiture and Fixtures 10 to 20 years

_\{__u;-hic]cs 8 years

| Office Equipment 3 to 15 years

The useful lives are reviewed by the management al cach financial year-end and revised, if
appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the
revised remaiming useful life.
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d)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately arc measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combimation is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated  amortisation and  accunlated  tmpairment losscs. Internally  generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, arc not capitalised and the related
cxpenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

3] Recognitien and measurement

Research and Development

Expenditure on research acOvities is recognised in profit or toss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised onty if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the
product or process is lechnically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are
prebable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development
and to vse or sell the asset. Otherwise, 1t is recognised in standalone Statement of Profit or
Loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, developmoent expenditure is measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,

Acquired research and development intangible assets which are under development, are
recognised as {n-Process Development product assets (“IPD”). IPD assels arc not amortised,
but evaluated for potential impairment on an annual basis or when there are indications that
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Any impairment charge on such IPD assets is
recognised in profit or loss,

In-licensing:

Payments to third parties that generally take the form of up-lront payiments and milestones for
in-licensed products are capitalised since the probability of expected future economic benefits
criterion is always considered to be satistied for scparalcly acquired intangible assets.

Other intangible assets

Intangiblc assets, such as customer related intangibles, product related intangibles, computer
software, trademarks and patents, that are acquired by the Company and have finitc useful hifc
arc measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accunulated impairment losses, if
any.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash cquivalents paid or the fair value of other consideration
given o acquire an asset at the time of ils acquisilion or construction, or, when applicable, the
amount attributed to that assct when initially recognised in accordance with the specific
requirements of other [ndian Accounting Standards,

Ii) Subsequent expenditure

subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future cconomic benelits
embeodied in the specific assct o which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, 1s recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Iil}  Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated Lo write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estmaled usctul lives and is generally
recognised in profil or loss. The amertisation period and the amortisation method for finite-
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tite intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end and adpusted prospectvely, if
appropriale.
The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:

Assels Useful Life
Customer refated assets 1.234 Years
Compuler software 5 Years
Product related intangibles 10 - 31 Years
In-licensing 5 Years

Intangible asscts and Intangible assets under developmment are tested for impairment when
there arc indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. All impairment lesses are
recognised immediately in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

IV)  De-recognition of intangible asscts

Intangible assets are de-recognised cither on their digposal or where no future economic
benefits are expected fromt their use. Gain or losses arising on sucl de-recognition are recorded
in the standalone statement of profit and Josg, and arc measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of respective intangible assets as onthe
date of de-recognition.

Leuses

The Company assesses al contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Company as lessee

Thi Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term teases and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-ol-usc asscts representing the right to use the underlying
assels,

I Right of Use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencenicent date of the lease (J.c., the
dale the underlying assct is available for use). Right-of-use assets arc measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impamrment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of leasc Habilitics
recognised, initial direet costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use asscts are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorler of the lease term
and the estiimated useful lives of the assets. The useful lives are reviewed by the management
at each financial year-end and revised, if appropriate.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies
section (f} ampairment of non-financial assets.
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ROU asset wise useful life:

Asscts Useful Life
! Leasehold Land 95 Years 5
Building 5 Years
Office Tiquipment 3 Years
Plant and Equipment B Yeats

) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease paymenis to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
melude fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchasc option reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments off
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option
{o terminate. Varlable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incwred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the fease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the fease
is not readily determinable, The incremental borrowing rate is caleulated at the rate of interest
al which the Company would have been able to borrow for similar term and with a similar
security the funds nccessary 1o obtain a similar asset in sinmlar market, After the
conunencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to refleci the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payients made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities s remeasured 1f there 18 a modification, g change in the lease term, a change m the
tease payments (e.g., changes (o future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlving asset.

T the contract contains a non-lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in
the contract 1o cach lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices,

18] Short- term leases and leases of low- value asscts

The Company applics the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.c.,
those leases thal have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assels recognition
exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Iv) Rent eoncessions

The Company has opted for the practical expedient under Ind AS 116 on lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct conscequence of the Covid-19 pandemic and
thereby does not elect the Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor as a lease
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It}

modification. The Company accownts for any change in lease payments resubing from the
Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS
116 if the change were not a lease modification.

V) Leases acquired in business combination, where acquirece is lessee

In case of business combination, the Company measures, leasc lallity af present value of the
remaining lease payments as il acquired fease were a new lease at the acquisition date. The
Company measures the right of nse asset at the same amount as the lease liability, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the leage when compared with market term.

Tmpairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that gencrates cash inflows [rom continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash generating units (“CGU"). The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater ol'its value in use and its fair value fess
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised
1{ the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss. An impatrment loss 1s reversed only o the extent that the
asset’s carrving amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants related to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income which is recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life
of the asset, Such allecation to income is usually made over the periods and in the proportions
in which depreciation on refated assets ts charged. Government Grants of revenue nature is
reduced from related expenses in the Profit and Loss in the year of its receipt or when there 1s
a reasonable assurance of its being recaived.

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are acerued in the year in which the goods
are exported and there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Investment in subsidiaries:

Investinents in subsidiaries is carried at cost less accumulated nnpairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed
and written down immediately to its recoverable amount, On disposal of investments in
subsidiarics, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In case of investment in subsidiary acquired in stages (step acquisition), where the original
mrvestment was accounied in accordance with Ind AS 109, fair value, the Company records
the cost of investment in subsidiary is using fair value as deemed cost approach i.e. the fair
value of initial interest at the date of obtaming conirol of subsidiary plus any consideration
paid for the additional interest.
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Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Trade receivables and debt securitics issued arc mitially recognised when they arc originated.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

D Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
nol recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable {o the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial Assets: Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

+  Financial asscls al amortised cost
«  Financial asscis at fair value through other comprehensive income
*  Financial assct designaled at [air value through OCT with no reeyeling of cumulative
gains and losscs upon derecognition (cquily nstruments)
«  Financial assets at fair valae through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held
within 4 business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and contractual terms of {inancial asset give rise on specified dales o cash fTows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assety ai fair value through other comprehensive Income-

Tinancial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial asscts are held within business model whose objective s achicved by both
collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and sclting financial assets.

Financial Assets designoted at fair value through other comprehensive lncome (FVOCT}

Upen initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify wrrevocably its investment in
equity instruments as investments in equity instruments designated at ¥VOC| when they
meet definition of equity under Tnd AS 32 and are not held for radimy,

Gaing and losses on these financial assets are never recyeled 1o profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the night of payment has
been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of
parl of the cost of the {inancial asscl, in which case, such gains are recorded in QOCIL Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCT are not subject to impairment assessment.

Fimancial assets at fair value throush profit or loss

Financial assets are measured st fair value through profit or loss unless it measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition, This
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category includes dervative fnancial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The transaction cost dircetly attributable to the acquisition of financial asscts at fawr value
through profil or loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Financial assets are not reclagsificd subsequent to their initial measurement, except if and in
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the abjective of the business model in which a linancial
assct is held at 4 portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed,
and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

+ the stated policics and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
inferest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial asscts to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

*  how the performance of the porifolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

+ the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

+  how managers of the business arc compensated -¢.g. whether compensation 1is based on
the fair vajue of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

+  the frequency, volume, and timing of sales of {inancial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial asscts to third partics 1n transactions that do not qualify for derccegmtion

arc not censidered sales for this purpose, consistenl with the Company’s continuing

recognition of the assets, Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose

performance is evaluated on a fair value basis arc measured at FVTPL.

Financial asscts: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely pavments of principal

and interest. For the purposes of thig assessment, ‘principal’ 1s defined as the fair value ol the

financial asset on inifial recognition. *Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value

of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a

particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liguidity risk and

administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and inlerest,

the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing

whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount

of contraclual cash flows that it would not meet this condition. [n making this assessment, the

Company considers:

*  contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

« terms that may adjus! the confractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

+  prepayment and extension features; and

+  terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash {fows from specified assets {c.g. non-
recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consisient with the solely payments of principal and interest eriterion

if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for
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early termination of the contract Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant
discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a featurc that permits or requires
prepaymoent at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus acerued
(but unpaid} contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation
for early termination} is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial vecognition,

Financial assets: subsequent measurement and gaing and losscs

Fiancial  assets  at  These asscts are subscquentty measured at fair value. Net

FVTPL gains and fosses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial  assets  at  These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

amortised cost using the cffective inderest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
cxchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments  at  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

FV((Ci Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign
cxchange gaing and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in OCL On derccognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or foss.

LFquity investments at These asscts are subsequently measured at fair value.

FVOCl Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents arecovery of part of the cost
of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised
in OCT and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the assel expirce, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party,

H the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance
sheet bul retaing cithor all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its enlirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amouni and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equily is recognized in statement of profit and loss if such gam or loss would have otherwise
been recognized in statement of profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:
* Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or snother financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115
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s Lease receivables under Tnd AS 116
¢ Other (nancial assets such as loans, investments cle

For trade receivables and contract assets and lease receivables the Company applics a
simplilicd approach in calculating ECLs. There{ore, the Company dues not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime TCLs at cach reporting
dale.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Refer note 38 for details of ECL on trade receivable

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises Hfetime ECL when there hags
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measurcs the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount cqual 1o
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expecied credit tosses that will result from all possible default
events over the expecled life of a financial insfrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that s expected fo result from default events on a financial
mstrument that are possible within 12 months aller the reporting date.

The measurement of cxpected credit losses is a function of the probabitity of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on lustorical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described above.

Asg for the exposure at default, for financial assets; this is represented by the assets” gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, (the cxposuic
includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional
amounts expecied to be drawn down in the future by default date determined basced on
historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing nceds of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the cxpected credit loss is cstimated as the difference between all
contracinal cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original cffective interest
raic. For a lcase receivable, the cash Mows used for determining the expeeted credit losses is
consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance with Ind
AS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Company is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Company expects to receive from the
holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Company has measured the Joss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to lifetime LCL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions lor lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Company measures the loss
allowance al an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which the stimplificd approach was used.

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instroments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
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allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated

in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the canryimg smount of the financial
asset in the statement of financial position.

i.)Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial Habilities arc recognized initially at fair valuc less, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair valuc through profit and loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the issue of the financial Hability.

Subscquent measurement:

FFor purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

) Finanoal liabilities at fair value througlh profit or loss
. Financial liabililics at amortised cost

Financial liabilities af fair value throueh profit or foss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial habihties held for
trading and financial Liabiities designated upon initial recognition as at {ar value through
profit or loss,

This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109, Scparated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they arc
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on labilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss. The
Company has not designated any inancial labthity as at far value through profit or loss
cxcept for derivative liabilities.

Financial liabihities are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. The carrying amounts of financial Habilities that are subscquently measured at
amoriised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calewlaling the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective inierest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash payments {including all fees and
points paid or received that foun an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts} through the expected life of the financial Liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial Hability 1s replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms ol an existing liability are substantially
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modificd, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recoganition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contract Habilities:

A financial guaraniee contract is a conwact that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when duc in accordance with the terms of a debl instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL and do nol arise from a transfer of an asset, are mceasured
subscquently at the higher of!

+ the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with Ind AS 109; and

« the amount recognised initially fess, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition pelicies set out above.

Written put option on own shares

When Company has confractual obligation to purchase its own equily strumentis, it is
recorded as lnancial habitity measured at the present value of the redemption amount even if
the obligation 1s conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to vedeem.

Subsequently financial liability is measured as per Ind AS 109, changes mn carying value is
recognised i profit & loss account.

Forward liability to purchasc cquity shares:

When the Company enters into a forward purchase agreement to purchase the equity interest
in other company for settlement in cash or in another financial asset by the Company, then the
Company recognises a Hability for the present value of amount payable on exercise ol option.

Subsequent to initial recognition of the financial liability, the changes in the carrying amount
of the lnancial Hability are recognised in profit or loss,

ii.} Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a nef basis or o realise the asset and scttle
the liability simultancously,

Faiv value measurenent

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a kability in an
orderly transaction between markef participants al the measurement date. The fair value
measurement s based on the presumplion that the transaction to scll the assef or transfer the
lability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or hality, or
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1)

b) In the absence of & principal market, in the most advanlageous market for the asset or
liahility

A fair value measurcment of a non-{inancial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate ceonomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
1t te another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best usc.

The Company uses valuation techmiques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sullicient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
obscrvable mputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All asscts and liabibitics for which fair value Is measured or disciesed in the financial
statements are calegoriscd within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
towest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

i} Level 1 Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

ii) Level 2 — Valuation fechniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable

itly Level 3 —— Valuation techniques or which the fowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobscrvable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have ocowmred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period.

Ixtermal valuers are involved for valuation of significant asscts, such ag propertics and
unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilitics, such as contingent consideration.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annuoally by the Management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
{tubilities on the basis of the nature, characieristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above,

Information about the valuation technigues and inputs used in detenmming the far value of
various asscts and liabilities are disclosed in notes to financial statements,

Derivative financial instruments
A derivative is a financial instrwment or other contract with all three of the following
characteristics:

» s value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commodity price, forcign exchange rate, index of prices or rates,
credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-
financial variable, it 18 not specific W a party to the contract (i.e., the ‘underlying’}.

+ [t requires no inilial nel investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than
would be required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar response to
changes in market factors.

o It is settfled at a future date

Perivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivalive contract s entered into and ase subsequently re-measured at {air value through profit
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)

and loss (FVTPL}. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive
and as financial labilities when the (air valuc is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken dircctly to
Statement of Profit or Loss. These derivatives are not designated as hedges.

Embedded devivative

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, that includes non-derivative host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid coutract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a [inancial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss categary.

Compound financial instraments
The Company has issued Compulsory Convertible Debenture (CCDY which arc recorded as
compound financial instruments,

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilitics and cquity in accordance with the substance of the contraciual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be scttled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own cquity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is cstimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective nterest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument's maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the
Hability component from the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole, This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income lax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as cquity will vemain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred Lo other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the compound financial instruments, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to retained eamings, No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option,

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the compound financial instruments are allocated
to the liability and cquity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised divectly in equity,
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of
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the lability component and are amortsed over the lives of the instramert using the effective
interest method.

m}p  Equity instruments
Fquity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual amangements entered into and the definitions of an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that cvidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or other financial
assets.

") Investments
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended te be held for not more than one year
from the date on which such investments are made, are classificd as cwrent investments. All
other investments are classificd as long-term investments.
On initial recognition, all investments arc measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price
and dircetly attributable scquisition charges such us brokerage, lees, and doties.

o} Inventories
Inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade,
stores and spares, and loose tools are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Raw niaterials, stock-in-trade and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use mn the prodaction of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw maicrals, stock-in-trade,
stores and spares and loose toals is determined on a weighted average cost methed.
Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost of inventories include dircct materials and Tabour, all the cost of purchases, a proportion
of manufaciuring overheads based on normal operating capacity and other costs incurred ip
bringing mventories to their present condition and location.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, lesy
cstimated costs necessary to make the sale.

o Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash cquivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank
including fixed deposits (having original maturity of fess than 3 months), chegues in hand and
cash in hand.

q} Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a custoiner.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price {net of variable consideration} allocated to that performance obligation. The
transaction price of goods sold and services rendercd 1s net of variable consideration on
account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. This
variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of
variable consideration) is recognized only lo the extent that it is highly probable that the
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amount will not be subject o significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition
is resolved.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when contro! of the goods are transferred 1o the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitled in exchange for those goods.

Generally, control 1s transferred upon shipment of goods to the customer or when the goods
1s made available to the customer, provided transfer of title to the customer occurs and the
Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or {iture obligations with respect
to the goods shipped.

Revenue is measurcd at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled
to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or services to a customer as specified in the
contract, net of retums and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates and cxcluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties {for cxample taxes and dutics collected on behalf
of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance
obligations and the receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional,

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the {air value
of the consideration reccived or receivable and are also netted off for probable saleable and
non-saleable return of goods from the customers, cstimated on the basis of historical data of
such returns.

Income from Services

The Company provides manufacturing and diagnostic services to other companics and
customers, Other services provided by Company include consultancy and management
services, The income from these services is recognised when the same is performed and
accepted by the other parly on the basis of invoices.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time where the Company satisfies the
performance obligation over time or point in Ume where the Company salisfics the
performance obligation at a point in time.

Interest

Interest income is recognized on a time propottion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other
income” in the standalone statcment of profit and loss,

Export Incentive
Export benelils available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which the goods
are exported and no significant uncertainty exist regarding its ultimate collection.

Contract Balances

Confract asset:

A contract assct Is initially recognized for revenue earned from rendering of services because
the receipt of consideration 1s conditional on successful completion of the services, Upon
completion of the service, the amount recognized as contract asscls is reclassified to trade
receivables. Contract asscls are subject to impairment assessment.
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Trade receivable: A receivable is recognized 1f an amount of consideration that is
unconditional {(i.c., only (he passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is duc). '

Contract labilities:

A contract Hability is recognized if a payment 1s reccived, or a payment is due (whichever is
carlier} from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract
flabililics arc recogmzed as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (ie.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Deferred Income: Income received where in the performance obligation is not satisfied. They
arc classificd as contract liabilities and disclosed as Deferred Income.

Advance from customers: when a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised and disclosed as advances
from customers.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of
entities within the Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. However, for
practical reasons, the Company uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate
al the date of the transaction,

Monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics arc translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured af fair value m a forcign currency are translated into the functional
curtency at the exchange rate when the fwir value was determined. Foreign currcncy
differences are generally recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that arc measured
hased on historical cost in 4 foreign currency are not franslated.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the followiny items are
recognised in OCT
s equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(except on impairment, in which case foreign cwrency differences that bave been
recognised in OCT are reclassified o profit or loss);
» afinancial Hability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a forcign operation
10 the extent that the hedge is effective; and
s qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effcctive.

Borrowing costy

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly altributable to acquisition or consfruction of
those qualifying asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time 1o get ready for their
intended use are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss of the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustiment to the borrowing costs,
A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use.

Retirement and other employee benefits

i) Shorit-term employee benefits
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Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of recciving employee services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benedits include salaries and wages, bonus
and ex-gratla. The undiscounted amount of shorl-term employee benefits to be paid in
cxchange for employee services 1s recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered
by employees.

ii) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further anmounts.
The Company makes specificd monthly contributions towards employee provident fund teo
Government admimstercd provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the statermnent of Profit and Loss during
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is delined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation
in respect of a defined benefil plan is calculated by estimating the amount of fulure benefit
that employees have carned in return for their service In the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and
the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The caleulation of the Company’s obligation
under cach of the two plans is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

The Company recognises all actuarial gaing and losses arising from defined benefit plans
immediately i the Other Comprehensive Income. All expenscs related o defined benefit
plans arc recognised in employce benefits expense in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the carlicr of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
« The date that the company recognises related restructuring costs

The Company recogniscs gains and losses on the curtailment or settiement ol a defined benefit
plan when the curtailment or settlement oceurs.

Notc: BSVL based on materiality, before merger, has delermined obligation for cligible
employees based on present value of cxpected outflow basis management cstimate.

Compensated Absences:

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutihised acerued compensated absences
and utilise it i future service periods or receive cash compensation on lermination of
employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the cmployees render the related service and are also not
expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit
is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase
this entitlement. The cbligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation
using the projecied unit credit method.
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Note: BSVL based on materiality, before merger, has determined obligation for eligible
employees based on present value of expected outflow basis management estimate,

Share based pavments

The company introduced Employee Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2021 to reward the
Employees for their performance. Scttlement of ESARs shall be done either in the lorm of
equity shares or cash.

a) Eguity scttled share based payment transactions:
The cost of cquity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the
grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. Further details are given in Nele 28C

The cost is recogniscd, together with a corresponding increase in sharc-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilied in empleyee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settied
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent 1o which the vesting
period has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of cquity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period
represents the movement in cumulative cxpense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and 1s recognised in employce benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining
the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the company’s best estimate of the number of equity imstruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions arc reflected within the grant date fair value, Any other
conditions attached to an award, bul without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the {air value of an award
and lead to an immediatc expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performunce conditions,

The dilutive effect of cutstanding rights is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

b} Cash seilled share based payment transactions:

A lability is recognised for the fair value ol cash-scttled transactions. The fair value is
measured initially and at each reporiing date up to and including the settlement date, with
changes in {air value recognised in employee benefits expense. The fair value is expensed over
the period unti! the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability. The fair value
is determined using & binomial model, The approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-seitied transactions also applies to cash-settied transactions.

Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current tax comprises the expecled tax payable or receivable on the laxable income or loss
for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
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The antount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected Lo be pad or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related {o income taxes. 1t is measured using
tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax asscts and current tax Habilities are offset only if there is a fegally enforceablc
right 1o set off the recogmised amounts, and it is ntended o realise the asset and settle the
tiability on a net basis or simultancousiy.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (cither m other comprehensive income or in equity). Current fax items are
recogniscd in correlation to the underlying transaction either v OCT or directly in equity.
Management periodically cvaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect o situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respeet of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilitics for financial reporiing purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses
and tax credits, Deferred tax 1s not recognised for:

- lemporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or labilitics i a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- temporary diflerences related to ipvestments in subsidiarics, associales and joint
arrangements (o the extent that the Campany 15 able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future;

Deterred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax {osses is strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be avaitable, Therelore, in case of a history of
recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.
Deferred tax asscls- unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised/ reduced 1o the extent that 1t is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured af the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
assel 1s realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacied or
substantively enacted by the reporting date,

Deferred Lax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (cither in ofher comprehensive income or in equity}, Deferred tax itoms are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its asscts and liabilities.

Deferred lax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilitics and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorily on
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
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liabilities and asscts on a net basis or their tax assels and liabilities will be realised
stmultancously.

Tax benetits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separale recognition af that date, are recognised subscquently if new information about facis
and ctrcumstances change. Acquired deferced tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related (o that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of
goodwill 18 zero, any remaining deferred tax benelits are recognised in OCH capital reserve
depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains, All other acquired tax
benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Accruals for uncertain tax positions require management to make judgements of potential
exposurcs. Accruals for uncertain tax positions arc measurcd using either the most likely
amount o the expeeled value amount depending on which method the entity expects to better
predict the resolution of the uncertainty., Tax benefits are not recognised unless the
management bascd upon its interpretation of applicable laws and regulations and the
expectation of how the tax authority will resolve the maiter concludes that such benefits will
be accepted by the authoritics. Once considered probable of not being accepted, management
reviews cach material tax benefit and reflects the effeet of the uncertainty in determining the
related taxable amounts. '

v Segment repovting

Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief
Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates the resources
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

The Company is operating in “Pharmaccutical” business segment. The analysis of
geographical segmenis is based on the revenue generaling locations. The geographical
scgment information of the Company 1s catcgorized under domestic sales and export sales.

Refer nate 34 for detailed segment presentation

w)  Earnings Per Share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peried
atiributable to cquity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average namber of cquity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for cvents such as bonus issue, bonus efement in a rights issue,
sharc split, and reverse share split {consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of
equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the peried arc adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

x}  Provisions, contingent liahilities and contingent assets:

A provision is recognised if as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to scttie the present obligation at the balance sheet
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date, If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted nsing a current
pre-tax tate that reflects, when appropriste, the nisks specific o the hability.

A contingent hability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or 4 present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present
obligation whose amount cannot be estimated rehably. Contingent liabilities do not waamt
provisions but are disclosed unless the possiabity of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assels arc neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However,
when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset 19 not a contingent
asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent fiability recognised m g business combination is initially measured at its fair
value. Subsequendly, 1t 1s measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less,
when appropnate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements
lor revenue recogmition. Measurement of Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation,
Amortization and Impairment of Intangibles (EBITDA)

The Company has clected to present EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the
standalonce Statement of Profit and Loss, The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of
profit / {loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include
depreciation, amortization and Impairment of Intangibles, finance costs and tax expense.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilitics, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based
on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes different from the estimates. Difference
between actual results and estimates are recognised in the peried in which the results are
known or materialise. Estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongong
basis. Any revision to accounting estimates 18 recogmsed prospectively in the current and
future periods.

Other disclosures refating to the Company’s exposure 1o risks and uncertainties includes:

» Capital management Note 39
'+ Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 38
* Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 38

Management considers the accounting judgements, estimales and assumptions discussed
below to be critical and, accordingly, provide an explanation of each below. The discussion
below should also be read in conjunction with the Company’s disclosure of significant
accounting policies which are provided m Note 2.3 to the standalone financial statements,
*Significant accounting policies’.
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a) Judgemoents

)] Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and fermination optiens —
Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the fease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease 1f it 18 reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option (o terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain
not to be exercised,

The Company has some lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether 1L is reasonably certain whether or not to
cxercise the oplion (o ronew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. Afier the
commenceient date, the Company reassesses the fease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
cxcrcise the option (o renew or (o terminate {e.g., construction of significant leaschold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

The renewal opfions for leases of Building are not included as part of the [ease term because
the Compaity is certain that it is not exercising any renewal options. Furthermeore, the periods
covered by termination options are included as pari of the lease term only when they are
reasonably cerfain not to be exercised.

I1) Investment in AMP:

BSVL holds 26% in cquity shares of AMP Energy C&I Private Limited (AMP) on fully
dilution basis. Management has determined that this investment in AMP s not an associate
since BSVL do not have nght Lo participate in the financial or operating decision making of
AMP hence it does not have significant influence.

Determination of lease:
BSVL is availing 100% of power generated from the solar plant but BSVL do not have right
te dircet use of solar plant. Henee the arrangement with AMP Energy C&I Private Limited
does not contain lease.

IT§) Sharc Based Payments:

As a part of Tmployee Stock Appreciation Right {ESAR) scheme, settlement mode of ESAR
15 predetermined basis the Hauidity event which can be either equity or cash.

Management applies judgements {or evaluation of Company’s right of settlement in equity or
cash, since Company does not have present obligation of cash settlement and probability of
equity settlement is considered to be higher, the Company has accounted TISARs as equity
scttled.

b. Estimates and Assumptions

The Company based its assumptions and cstimates on parameters available when the
standalone finanaal statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they accur.
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i Estimate of curvent and deferred tax

The Company's tax charge on erdinary activities is the sum of the total cwrrent and deferred
tax charges. The caleulation of the Company's total tax charge necessarily involves a degree
of cstimation and judgement in respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally
determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriatc,
through a formal legal process. The final resolution of somc of these items may give rise to
malcrial profitsflosses and/or cash flows.

The complexity of the Company’s structure makes the degree of estimation and judgement
more challenging. The resolution of issues is not always within the control ol the Company
and it is often dependent on the efficiency of the legal processes in the relevant taxing
Jurisdictions tn which the Company operates. Tssues can, and often do, take many years to
resolve. Payments in respect of tax Habilities for an accounting period result from payments
on account and on the final resolution of open items. As a result, there can be substantial
differences between the tax charge in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and lax
payments,

Taxes

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that
sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal
of temporary differences can be deducted. To determine the future tuxable profits, reference is
made to the lalest available profit forecasts. Where the temporary differences are related to
losses, relevant tax law is considered to determine the availability of the losses to offset against
the fulure taxable profits.

it. Estimation of useful life

The useful life used 1o amortise or depreciale intangible assets or property, plant and
cquipment respectively relates 1o the expected future performance of the assets acquired and
management’s judgement of the period over which econoinic benefit will be derived from the
assct based on its techmcal expertise. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after delermiming an estimate of an asset’s cxpected useful life and the expected residual value
at the end of its life. Increasing an asset’s expected 1ife or its residual value would result in a
reduced depreciation charge in the standalone Statement of Profit and T.oss.

The useful lives and residual values of Company’s asscts are determined by management at
the time the asset is acquired and reviewed annually {or appropriateness. The lives arc based
on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events which may
impact their life such as changes in technology.

iii.  Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company exercises fjudgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures
Lo contingent liabilitics related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to
negotiated settlement, mediation, arbitration or government regulation, as well as other
contingent hiabilitics. Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim
will suceced, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial
settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual losses may be
different from the originally estimated provision.
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iv.  Fair value measurements of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial Habilitics recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on guoted prices in active markets. their fair valuc s measured
using valuation techniques including the discounted cash How model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations
of inputs such as Hquidity risk, credit risk and volatility ete. Changes in assumptions abouwt
these factors could affect the reported fuir value of (nancial instraments. Information about
the valuation techiniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and
liabilities are disclosed in notes 1o financial statements.

v.  Defined Benefif Plans:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-cimiployment benefits and present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, {uture salary mncreases and
mortality rates. Due to complexities involved n the valuation and its long-lerm nature, a
delined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

vi.  Impairment of asscts:
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its properly, plant and equipment, capital work
in progress and intangible assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication oxists, the recoverable
amount of the asset 1s estimated 0 determme the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Determuning whether an asset is unpaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount,
which requires company to estimate the Fai value less cost of disposal.

The fair value less costs of disposal caleulation is based on available dala from binding sales
iransactions, conducied at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF
model.

The recoverable amount 1s sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF mode! as well as
the expeeted future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

FProvision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uscs a provision matnx to caleulate ECLs for irade receivables and contract
assets. The provision ratcs arc based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns {(i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates.
The Company will calibrate the matrix o adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forccast economic conditions (l.e., pross
domestic product) are expected Lo detenorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted, Al
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates arc updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast cconomic
conditions and ECLs 1s a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast econontic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss
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experience and forecast of cconomic conditions may alse not be representative of customer’s
actyal defaudt in the future. The miormation about the ECLs on the Company's trade
receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 37,

vii,  Provision for anticipated sales return
In determining the provision for anticipated sales retums, estimales for probable saleable and
non-saleable returns of goods from the custonmers are made on scientific basis afier factoring
in the historical data of such returns and its trend.

viil,  Intangible Assets under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with
the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that
technological and cconomic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development
project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management
model. In determining the amounts Lo be capitalised, management makes assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and
the expected period of benefits.

4) Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

The Ministey of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule I o the Companies Act, 2013 on 24th
March 2021 to increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures 10 users of the financial
statements. These amendments were applicd w.ef 1st April, 2021, In this regard, 1CAI has issued
guidance nole on Schedule 1T of the Companies Act 2013 in January, 2022, Consequent to above, the
Company has disclosed the required relevant disclosure and changed the classification/presentation of
the {ollowing:

1) Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head *financial habilities’, duly
distinguished as current or non-gurrent,

ii} Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

i11) Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in
pregress, intangible asset under development.

iv} If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which i was borrowed from
banks and financial institlions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

v) Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with
approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title
deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to
promaolers, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of
benami property held cic,

viy Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibihity {CSR).

vii) Current maturitics of long-lerm borrowings are now disclosed under “Short term
borrowings” separately.

vill) Security deposils are now included in other financial assets instead of loans.

Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions:

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions bevond 30 June 2021
to update the condition for lessces to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments origimally due
on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies 1o annual reporting periods
beginning on or afler 1 April 2021,
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Standards issucd but not vet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™Y has vide notification dated 23vd March, 2022 notified
Companics {Indian  Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, which amends cortain
accounting standards, and are effective from st April, 2022, These amendments are not expecled o
have a material opact on the Company or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Recent Pronouncement Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} notifies new standard or amendments
to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies {lndian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework The amendments specifly that to qualily for
recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must mee! the definitions of assets and liabalitics in the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards {Conceptual Framework) issued by the Tnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the
requirentents of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment Lo have any significant
mmpact 1 its Ninancial statements.

nd AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts reecived from selling items produced while
the Company is preparing the assct {or its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales
proceeds and refated cost in profit or loss. The Company docs not cxpect the amendments to have any
impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in 1ts financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract The amendments spectty that that the
‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘costs that reiate direetly to the contract’. Costs that relate
dircetly Lo a contract can cither be incrementad costs of fulfilling that contract {examples would be
direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that retate direetly to fulfilling contracts. The
amendmoent 1s cesentially a clarfication and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual bnprovements (o Ind AS (2021) The amendment clarifies the treatment of any
cost o1 fees incurred by an entity in the process of derecognition of financial Liability in case of
repurchase of the debt instrument by the issuer. The Company does not expect the amendment to have
any significant impact i s Mnancial statements.

Ind AS 106 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) The amendments remove the illustration of the
reimbursement of leaschold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential conlusion
reparding the freatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were
described in that illustration. The Company docs not expect the amendment to have any significant
nmpact in its financial statements,

%,




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")

Notces to the standaloue financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continucd)

{Currency ; Indian rupees in Lakhs)

Nuies

Refer note 17 on borrowings, for the deails velated to charge on Property, plant and equipment of the Company.

5 Property, Plant and Equipnent and capital work in progress
s and Tl fice
Particulars Buildinye ! “f“ #nd Fus l}lllll(’ and ()_“m Yeliieles Totat
cquipment tixtures cquipment
Gross Block
Balance as at 1 April 2020 2.853.12 10,209.22 236.88 136.76 13]1.48 13,267.46
Additions i, H019.09 [,182.26 54.40 24379 - 2,554.54
Misposals {(5.84) (907.41) (42,703 (50.11} {8.75) (1,014.83)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,656,37 10,484.07 248,50 Ani.44 122.73 14,812.17
Additions 0825 161410 47.68 174.54 2782 1,962.39
Disposals/Adpustment - (G33.8% 16.10 10.4% {9.63) H5{).55
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,754,062 12,732.06 312.34 485.47 140.62 1742551
Depreciation
Batance as al ¥ April 2020 11.81 122.56 4.22 Y.56 1.36 149.25
Depreciation for the year 108.54 F000,71 3330 BOLR2 2176 1,327.13
DisposalsiAdjustment {050} {305.66) {21.9G} (42.1%) {4.86} {37547
Batance as at 31 March 2921 112.35 Y7.61 15.56 48.19 17.20 1,10.H9
Depreciation for the year 12877 992,62 37.37 102,28 21.39 1.282.43
DisposalsiAdjustinent - 242 09 3010 745 {443 345.21
Balance as al 31 March 2022 241.12 2,242,312 58.04 157.92 29.15 2,728.55
Net Block
Balaice as at 31 Murch 2021 31.544.02 G.576.40 233.00 25225 105.53 13,711.26
Batance as a1 31 March 2622 3,513.50 14),489.74 254.30 327.55 111.47 14,696.56
Capital worlein-progress -
Balance as al 31 March 2021 22.44 03.09 - 36.43 - 151.46
Balance as at 31 March 2022 307.87 1.063.14 1428 3.85 - 1,394.14
As on 31 March 2022
Capital Work in Progress Ageing :
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars T.ess Maore Total
than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years than 3
vear VTS
Projocts i progress 1.316.7¢ 54,68 22.67 - 1,394.14
Projects lemporarily suspended - - - - -
Ason 31 March 2021
Capital Work in Progress Agcing ;
Amount in CWITP for a period of
Particulars Less More Total
ihan 1 [-2 yeurs 2-3 vears ihan 3
yvear years
Projects in propress 143.69 §.27 - - 151.96
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -




Bharat Serams and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P 1.td")
Notes te the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

{Currency © Indian mpees n Lakhs)

5A Right-of-Use Asscts

Particulars Leaschold Building ‘i’lalnt and_ ffice Equipments Total
Land Equipment
Gross Block
Balance as at § April 2020 3,206.39 ,401.60 - - 4,607.39
Additions - 4549.10 - 22304 6821
Disposals - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2421 3,206.39 1,860.10 - 223401 5,289.50
Additions - 418.04 133.72 - 55176
Disposals - - - - -
Balanee as at 31 Muarch 2022 3,206.39 2,278.14 133.72 213,01 5.841.206
Depreciaiion
Balunce as at 1 April 2020 5.34 55.54 - - 6088
Additian 41.50 403.04 - 32.20 476.74
Disposals - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 46.84 458.58 - 32.20 537.62
Addition 41.50 385,50 617 72.86 506.03
Disposals - - - - -
Balance as at 3F March 2022 88.34 844.08 ¢.17 105.06 [,043.65
Net book
Batance as at 31 March 2021 3,159.55 401,52 - 190.51 4,751.88
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,118.05 1,434,006 127.55 117.95 4,797.61
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Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd™)
Notes to the standalone financial statements fur the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

{Curreney © [ndiars ripeus in daklhs)

8 Investments
84 Nop Current Gnancial Assets - Inveshpenis

At At
31 March 2022 31 Mareli 202)

Investinent in subsidiaries- carrvied at cost
Unguoted equity shares- ully paid up

BEV Biosciences Inc., UISA (HLO0L000 shares, faee value of USD. | each} 504,09 S04.0%
Lese: Proviston Tor Dimidnution in valee of Tnvestment (404,09} -
BEV Brasciences ConbH, Gormany (10,250 shaves, face value of FHRG 100 cush) 12,514.7( 1251478
Less: Provision for Dimination in vilue of Investment i11,294.45) {11,294.45)
ISV Biosciences Phitippines Ine., Philippines (93,50,000 shares, face value of Peso | each) 5,382.30 538230
BEVLie Provale Taatled {Tuliv paid ap) (1000000 sheres, face vaiue of By 19 ench) (Refer Mote £42) 10000 1080630
Less: Provision for DHminution in vafue of investment [§RCREH)] {10000}

Other Tnvestment - Fair Vidue through Profit and Loss

Linquated equity shares- fully patd up

AMP Enzrgy C&T O 1et, Lid (fubly paid up) (890,306 shares, Tuee walue of Bs, 10 each}

{Refer Note 8A.3) 149,03

Unguoted Compulsority Canvertilile Debentures- fully paid ap

AMP Energy C8cl One Pyt Lid {fully paid ap) (17,127 CCD, face vatue of Rs. 1000 cach} -
{Reler Note 8A, 3} 19127

0,892.86 T.106.65

Nutes:

AL The Campasy has mpaived investment in wholly owned subsidioy of BSY Bioscienees GmbH, Germany amounting to Bs 11,294,435 Lakhs in
315l March 2021, The Company deternined thal financiai performance including sules smd opening merein of BSY Blosciences Gmbh have
Dbeen largely inpacted due o covid- 19 ja TY2E und the sume has lesting impact on the future pectormance of e Company. The decrease in the
macket potentia! iz majoly du o rise in price of raw materizls.

842 The Compuny temporary suspended business aporations of BSY Bioscicnee Ine (fom quarter ended 3 1st Mareh 2022, fienee inay impuet (utire
performance of the Comparey in cominy years, Aceerdingly, the Company hus fzupairal investiment in whotly owned subsidiary of DSV Bioscicnce
Ine, USA armuunting 1o Rs 404,09 Lakls as at 3150 Muarel' 2022

BAD During the year ended 315t March 2022, the Compaty had enlured inte Share Purckiase, Subscription and Sharelnlder’s Agreement and Oplinns

Agreement with AMFE gy Cded One Private Limited and AMP Energy C&L Private Limilad for sequisition of 26% stake in the share capital of

AME Encrpy C&1 One Private Limited througle a combinution of equity shares and Compulsorily convertible debentuzes {CCBY on 1110 Mareh,

2022, with total cost of aequisition of Rs 19030 [akhs. The purpose of avguisilion was (o sel wup a solur power plant in Maharashira under Captive

Seheme for Company's manufacturing faeility at Ambernath, As on 315t March, 2022, the Company has camplited the acquisition of equity share

and CCD.

As per the terms of the agreament and in-line with Lhe guidance under the standards, AME Encray C&F One Private Limited would not be a

subsidiaty or associnte of the Company. Pursuant to the aforesaid agreoment, AMP Energy C&1 One Private Limited has completed the seteup of

the above mentioned solar power planl at Ambemath,

MNan Current finuncial Assets - Invesiments
Agprepate value of unyuoted investiments [8,601 .40 18.501.10

Aggregate amount of impginnent in value of investiments {1£,798.54) (1t.2504.45,

8B Current tinancial Assets - Investments

At 3 March At 31 March 2021

24322
Tnvestnrents Measured At Fair Value Through Profit Or Lass (17VTIL)
In Matunl Fund-Unguated
Kotak Savings Futc - 12 Plan- Growth (Previous year: 14,583,344 89 Uniis ) - 51495
Kotak Low Duration Divect Growth {Provicus yom 1817920 Units) - 5{14.23
- 1,00%8.9%
Current financial Assets - Investments
Agpregaic value of unguoted invesiments - 1,008 95

i

)

b e e



Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd™)

Notes to the standatone financial statements for the yeur caded 31 March 2022 (Continued)

{Curreney : Indien rupees 1 Lulkdis)

b

Loans

94 Mon-current
Measured at amortised cost
{Unsecured, unless othernaise seatedd

Loan to employees

As at
3T March 2022

Asar
31 ¥arch 2021

Loan receviable: Considered Croed 4.69 2B

Lians regeivables: having significant increase in credit risk 30 RRIY]

Less: Allowance for doubtfud Loan to empiovees (Retor Note 1513) {301 (300

Loan to Related Marties {Kefer note 373 223511 223272

Non-varrent ol 223950 2,238.53
Y3 Current

Measured ai amortised cosl

{Unsecured, Considered (ioad, unless otherwise stated)

Tnter corparale Depasils (Refer Note 9.3 belew)- Sceured Fron 50563

Loatt to emplavess a0.74 203

Current total 411974 6771

Total 2.440.54 2,540.24
Note

9.1 Loaw or agvance in the nature of foan given to Refated parly which are repayable an demand:

a2
4.3

Type of Borrower

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Amonnl of loan or

advance in the
nalure of luan

Percentage o
the tolal loans
and advances in
the nature ol

Amond of logn ar

advance in the
malure of loag

Percentage o the
totad Inuny and
alvances in the

autstanding nutstanding nature of loans
loans i
Bolated Pariies 2,235.11 4% 2,232.72 TAY
Loans o subsidiary companies are given for husiness purposes.
Seeured by pledge of shares and personal pnarantee by all divectors in those compantes and are given for business purposes.
1§ Other Financial Assets
As at As at

e

‘x
T Crigreren
LI VACCOUNTANTS

1A Non-curreni
(Unseeured, Censtdered Good unbess otherwise stated)

31 Murch 2022

31 March 2023

2 A TS
e $

o

Security Theposin 1,0090.77 726403

Sdargin money deposits with maturity beyond 12 months 245,14 30322

(Refer Note 101 Below)

Non-currant (otal 1,335.91 1,029.25
iR Current

Seeurily Deposits

Considered gond 12083 363.26

Sueurity deposits which have significant invecase in eediz 484.08 457,26

risk

Tass  Allowanee for doubtful seconity deposits (Relfer Nowe (484.0%) (457.26)

1513)

(Vinseeored, Considered Good soless olherwise stated)

Interest on Fixed Deposits, accried but not due 6351 44,01

[uterest seereed on Josns but not due

- Conzidered pond 6235 49,90

Tiubalfed Revenue 12414 230018

(Othes receivables {Refer note 37) - TRH2

Current total 467.83 766.17

Tetal 1,803.74 L[7Y5.42
Wode

Murgin money deposits of Bs 245,14 bakhs {31 March 2021 By 303,22 lakhs) we ender llen with the govemment endur,




Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Lid")
Notes to the standalene {iranciaf statements for the yvear ended 31 Mareh 2022 (Continued)
(Curreney ; Iodizo vupecs in Lakis)

11 1Inecome Taxes

(4]

Components of Incorae Tax Expenscs

(i} Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Particulars

Current tax:

Current yoar tax 4.740,54 33361
4,746.54 3.320.61

Deferred fax:

Cumrent year defered mx (1.089.45%) (1517266

Deferred tax petaining to earler years - 32.26

fneome lax expense/{inenome) reported in thie statement of

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 Murch 2022

(1,489 ,45) (15, 148.40)

3,657 {11,819.7%

(i} Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year

Year ended ended 21 March

31 March 2022

2021
Mems that will not e reclassifisd o profis or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {4209 (5788}
{42.09) {57.88})
{B} Reconcilistion of cffective tax rate
Y Year ended Yo For the year ended
31 Mareh 2022 At Marveh 2021
redit bufare tax 2457.81 (61,978.10
Tax using the Company’s statafory tax rate 25.17% 018.03 507 (15,5908
Tax effcet of:
Donation 1h.30%, .37 RNt 6205
Mot deduetible experse S.U5% 19787 e -
Provedsion for dimimution fm valwe of ivestent 4.14%, 1011 -4.59%, 21.842.8]
Write offf{Wrile Back) of Property, Plnt and -3.13% (TR ~1.25%, 15514
Equiprent
Fair Valuation vl Pul Eishility 112.36% 2.761.51 55289
Olers 1.92% 47.08 167.25
148.81% 3,657.04 19.07% {11L,R19.79)

()

Maovement in delerred Lax liabililies (Net)

Nethalance

31-NMar-22

Recognised in Recagnised in

Reeognised in other

Net balance

1 April 2021 profit or loss Qacl equity 31 hurch 20622
Dederred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equepettent and utaagible 26,792.20 [762.77) - - 20, 029.43
asset
Expenditure eovered by seetion 35 (2A8) of 17 19.82 4R ¥3] - - -
Act, 1961
Ripht of use asser & fease liahclities £04.09 (37,74 - - 0038
Total 27.616.11 {R20.33) - - 26,795.78
Deferred Tax Assets
Employee benefits Provisions 640,32 {137.55) {4209 - 24069
CCL Liability L5,086.54 (177263 - - 14,509.25
Trade Receivables 221.47 200.44 - - 427 4]
O1her provisions 555.14 {889} - - 54025
Lease equalisation 5454 (54.54) - - -
Adjustinents iy Deftared s Tmpuet on DTA 241184 440.92 - - 285276
criieled diee to timing difference of interest
aciuatly paid
Total 18,169.860 269,62 {42.08) - 19.196.8%
Tux ussets (Linhilities} (8.640,25) 1.48Y.45 209 - {7,598.5%}




Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
Notes to the standalene financial statemends for the year ended 31 March 2022 {Continued}

fCumeney - Dnduen supees 0 1kl

31-Mar-21

Nt halance Rucngnised in Recagnised in Recognised in other  Net halance

1 April 2020 profit or luss o) enuity M March 2021
Deferred Tax Liabilitics
Progrerty. planl and couiptent and Intungshle 4058125 (13,789.053} - - 26,7920
asscl
Exponditione covered by seetwon 35 {2AB) ol IT 19,52 - - - 19.82
Act, 190]
Riplit of use asset & lease liabifities Tan.12 4,97 - - R04.0%
Takal 41,400.19 (13, 7R4.618) - - 2700611
Deferred Tax Assets
Enployer benefilts Pravisions T3 (3108} {57 KR) - o405
Lass altowed to be carvied forwrd 4.71 (4,71} - - -
U013 Linbility 14,471,859 11.124.2%) - 1,238.94 15.0868.54
Forwiurd derivative ayset on NCT miasured a1 1745 (27.45) - - -
F¥TPL
Trade Receivables 33289 {101.42% - - 2147
Other provisions 316526 186,85 - - 55514
Teuse eguadisution 748 4744 - - 54.34
Adjustments Tor Defered tax bupact on DTA - 2418584 - - 2,401,584
created due to timing difference of interest
acluaily paid
‘Fotal 16,432.47 1,356.31 (57.58) 1,238.94 1590 RR
Tux assets (Liabilities} {24,967.72) 15,140.39 (57.88) 1,238.94 {8.646.25)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilides if and only it has a tegally enforceable vight to yel ofl ewrrent tux asscls and current tax iabilities and the
deferred tax assels anmd defered tax Babibities relate o ineome Lases levied iy the same tax authority,

Sipaificant manageinent judgement is reguired in determining provision for income fax, deforred meome tx wssels and latelities and recoverability of
duferred ineome tax assets.

The Company pians 10 apt for lawer tax regime. Accordingty deferred rax is coleutated using the Fraer L nde ol 23379
(1} Tax asscrs and lialsilitics

Farticulars As ol Asat
31 March 2022 31 Muarch 26021

Current tax Habilities {net) 2,843,306 L.baG4s

Tncome Tax assets (nef) 167196 1,572.0%

A
&;«f, KIS
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Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P L1d"}
Notes to the standalone linancial statements lor Ute vear ended 31 March 2422 (Continued)

{Currenrey  Indii rupoees in Lakhs)

12 Other Assets

124

128

{Unsccursd unfess othzrwise stated)

Capltal wdvances

Capitn] Advanee @ Constdered good L] L]
Capitai zdvances which have sipmificant itcrease in credit visk G125 2352
Lesss Allowanse fon douhUfel capital advanees (Refer Mole 15R) {60.25) (33.52)
Pilanae wish statutary? Guverment zuthositics EIEORL] 462 .43
Prepaid expenses 22.46 1.27
Nun-current toial 911.56 H42.74
Current

(Llusceored unless otlewise stuted)

Fapnr entitlzments receivable : Consddered Gaod 27861 52738
Lxpunt entittemant receivable which kave significant increas: in eecdit risk 3200 -
iz Adlowance for doubifial exped entitlement recevishle {Refer Mote 158) (32003 -
Advances o Supplicrs

Considered good (uther thon related pady) 224514 157348
Agdvunce tn supplies which have signilicant inceease it credil risk 19308 Y
Less: Alfowance for doubeful advances o suppliers (Refer Note 1583 (1930003 (92.23)
Advance W Suppliers-related partios { Hefor nose 37) EA29.00 2.7R0.43
Advance o emplovees Tor expenses - Cansidersd Good 75467 10230
Advanee o employees which have significunt ingreuse in credit sk 2132 5.06
Less s Allowanie for douhufiel sdvances to vipluyees (Reler Mote | 315 {2130 {5661
Prepaid expanses F50.29 REHWM
Balanue with statutoryd Gevernment aothorities 48935y 1.821.45
Current total §,572.42 116295
Ttal G483.94 §.005.49

As ul
31 Mach 2022

Asat
31 March 202)

13 Inventories

Raw Materials
Packing materials
Worl-in-progress
Finished gouods
Stock-in-lrade
Staves amd Sparey
Goads-in-Transit
- Haw Malcrials

- Packing Materials

As ol
31 Marel 2022

438749
£.0%4 94
4.738.56
21587
23683

As at
31 March 2021

34K8.42

974,59
FH36TS
3638594
158154

3130 543,25
- 517.49

" 42.24
17,123.22

Total 17,257.74

Note

130 The Company Tullows suitible provizioning norms for wriling down e value of inveniaries 1owards slow wuving, nonr moving,
invensary, Write duwa of inventary ton the yeur ended 31 March 2622 is Rs. 159409 akhs (37 March 2021 R 202,97 lakhs),

13,2 Maode of [oventory valuziion is staved in Nole 2.2{0)

13.3 Refer Note £7 on Donowings, for 1he details related to charge on imvenraries tving with the Company.

capired and non salealic



Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Alksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")

Notes to the stundalone finarcial statements for the vear ended 31 Marels 2022 {Continued)

{Curreney - Indian rupoes i Lakhs)

14 Trade receivables
As ot As al
3 March 2022 21 March 2021
Meusored al amortised cost
{ 4
Cenzidered paod 23,0538 19,304 .32
Sigmlican inerewse it ecedid risk L 18R.5S sar.1o
Lesss Allowanuee for expected ciedit s {Reder Note 1513) (9iu.44, (BTG00}
23,332.92 §9,315.52
Trade regeivables ageing sehedube s
Trade repeivables apeing ay ot 31 Mareh 2422
Clutstanding for following periods Trame due date of payinent
Particulars Notdue  § Lessthan 6 | 6 months -1 Mare than 3 Tatal
1-2 veurs 2-3 vears
nanths year ; yEars
43 Haclisputed Frude reecivabios — sonsidered pood 1662731 472845 1,698,065 - - - 2305381
(it} Undisputed Trade Recgivables  which have - - 0.0 #1025 [6i.33 JREX O FITRG
siniticant increase in credit risk
(i) Dispuled Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - .nd 2.6
s freant et e n eredil rizk
Taotal 16627.31 472845 164875 §19.25 161,33 MHIK.27 24242.36
Trade receivables ageing as ac 31 March 2421
Cutstanding for follawing perinds Teom due date of payment
Farticubars Notdue  { Less than 6 | 6 months -1 Maore than 3 Tatal
1-2 years 2-3 yeurs
ntonths voar - ; YEArS
(0 Gidispded Trade receivables — consideral pood 13.457.20 492852 1RG0 - - - 1930432
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivablos — which have - - - 253.07 524.00 10003 a4l 1G
gl icsnt inereuse in crodin sk
Total 13,457.2¢ 4,928.52 815.00 153.07 529.00 109.03 20,E95.42
Note
T4 Refer Mute =37 lor details ol amount due fron, redated ponty
14.2  Refer Note 17 on Boreowings, for the details related o churge on Frade receivahles.
15 Cashk and cash equivalents
As al As at
31 March 2022 31 Macelh 2021
Cash on hand 730 1950
Balances with Banks
‘Tertn deposits with Original taaturity less thao 3 months (Refer note 1513 TARTG0 57444
fn curent aecounts 41281 3439404
Chegue oo fland 5300 -
11,926.71 4,533.28
15A  Bunk halances ofher than Cash and cash equivalenis
Axat As at
21 Mureh 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Term depnsits with maturity crcceding 3 monshs il Tess thua 12 waestie (Referaole 1315 244,64 Ruids
249,49 B93.45
150 Teom deposits of Rs 348 £ 2 Lakhs {31 March 20210 R 19858 Lakhe) ure under oo wilh the government teader,




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
Notes fo the standalone fingncisl statements for the year ended 21 March 2022 {Continued}

iCurrency @ Indian supees iz Lukhs)

ISG

Additional disclosures relating to movement in provisions as per [ndian Accounting Standard {Ind A% 37)

AHowanee for

Aliowunce lor

Allowance [or

Allawance for

Allowanee for

Ablowance Tor] doubtind export doutut doubtful] expecied credit|  Allowanee far doubrtful
doulsitul capital entithement alvanies (o advances tn]  Ioss for Trade| doubiful Baan seeurity
Particular advunces receivalde supplives enpboyees Heceivables ta employers deposits
Refer Nate 12A 128 128 12K 14 A ion
Balance as at 31 March 2020 53.52 - 140.87 - OTRA0 - 407400
Prowision made during the year - - - - 200,90 .00 5026
Proveistons utilised during the year - - AR5 - - - -
fiatance as at 31 March 2021 53.52 - 9122 506 #7990 200 457.20
Provision made during the year 6.73 32.00 10079 15.66 2054 - 2642
Provisian attised during the yeur - - - - - - -
Bialance as at 31 Mavch 2022 G025 ALnd 12341 21.32 404,44 3.4 454.08




Bharat Serwms and Vaccines Limited {(Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
Notes o the standalene financial statements lor the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continuwed)
(Curreney s Indian supees in Lakhs)

16

iy

ili}

Sharg Capital

AL 31 March 2022 At 3 March 2021

Ne, of ey Amaunt Na.of Shaves Ameunt
Authorised Share Capital
Eaquity Shares of INR HIO- Each 20,002 29.00 [2,15.900 f213.90
Compaisorily Convertilde Preference Shares (TCPS™) of INE 1004 cach 35143198 35.143.20 L2, 14,100 i2dan
Issped, subscrilied and fully paid up
Louity Shares of TNR 100G~ each 2002 29,00 21,802 21.86

24042 Al 21,862 21.86

Compakzorily Copvertibie Preterence Shaves ("OCPE") of iNE 1005 each 6,570 0,58 G576 .58
New Compulsorily Canvertible Preference Shares £ New CUPE") of INR 1004 each LILAGHLIG 3513662 - -

3,51,43,195 35,143.20 6,576 654

Recanvilistion of the No.of Sharves owtstsmding stihe beginaing and at the end of the year:

Essued, subscribed and fully paid up Equity Shares CCPS New CCPS

N, of Shares Amount Mo of Shares Ameunt Mo ol Shaces Aot
As at 1st April 2024 19,724 19.73 6,576 6.58 - -
Adkids Bssued duving Lhe Year 2,133 2.13 - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 21862 21.86 6576 6.58 - -
Al Reelussified from Ananciad lHabiiity
{Refer Mote ni below) 7,144 7.14 - - 3AL36610 35136402
As at 31 March 2422 29,0012 29,84 6,576 0.58 3LA536010 35,116.62
Note:

During the previous year ended 3E5t March 2021 the Company wlotted 2,133 equily shares of INR §00 cach, {udiy paid up o an amounl aggregating o
s, £3,144.5] lakhs including promium of B, 13, 842,35 lakhs ro Anssmins Eineited,

Ad the Bxtrs Ordinary General Mocting{ EGM Y of the Company held on L5th November 2021 the Company has veclassificd its Authorised Share Capita:
from e 2 43000 lakhs divided ine 12,1590 Gauity Shaves of Bz 100 cach and $2, 04, 800 Preferomee share of By 10 cach (o 29002 Equity Shares of
s 1K) cuch and 24,0090 Proforence Shares of B 40 cach, Further, in the aforesaid FOM, e Campany alse increased the authoresed preforenee share
capital by 3,279,423 200 number of preforence shares of Es 100 ach. Accosdingly, the total awtherised cquity shares of the Company 13 29002 Fyaiy
Shares of B 100 each and 3,51.43.19R Pieference Shares of Ra 100 each as at 311 March 20122,

As per the agreement among the minority skarchelders of the Compay, Ansamica Led (Advent), and [nvesionCompuny dated TR November, 2004 read
witll sebeenucnt agreement duted 24th Movewmber, 2028 there oo the Compeny bad s wetten put eption on Non-Coatredling Tnterest{MCD) of 20% siake
it the Compury whcreby SMOT of the Compuny shall Tave rigdt but not sdifigation to require the Company 1o sequire ali the seeoritios beld by them This
aption was to be cxercired by the NOT any time between cxpiny of 20 months fom the elivetive date TRt Moveisber 2021 1ill the exping of 27 months
from effective dite, subjecl to ehirining Foreipn Birect fvestment (P11 epproval. Exercise price of put option is not fixed but will be determined at the
time of acquisition of the stake.

Since the company had an oblization to buyback the ataresaid equity securilhes, m vase of capiry of the peviod or wot obtaining TR appreval, in
aeeordatee with Ind AS 32 *Financial lnstrumenis: Preseniation’, equily shares and Nen-Cumatative Conventible Preterence Shares hokd by the imvestors
was classified as financial fability {Borrowingsy. Further, the premivm on Fair Vahe of 20% stake and foss oo Unwinding af present value of redemption
amenmt in respeet of Gnucial instrument was clssilicd as oancial Hability (Horrowings) o the extent of boy back price. Further as per 1he agroenenl,
such put fabifity of the Company cease L exist on campletoa of proposed merger of Bharat Scrums and Yieemes Lid il Aksipro Diagnestic P Led
{Now fmown as Bhart Scrums and Vaccings Ltd} Accordingly, pursuant to merger ovder dated 27 Angust, 2021, the financial fability of the Company
has been trans fared to equity share capital, Non-Cumuolstive Cenvertible Preference Shares and ether equity (Capital Reserve and Retained Eamings).




Bharat Serums and Vaceines Limited {Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Lid"™)
Notes to the standalooe financiad sintements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Coolinued)

(Curreman © Tadinn rapees i Lakhs)

K. Detuils of sharehnlders holdiog moere than 8% shares in ihe Conpany

At31 March 2022 AL March 2021
Mo, ot shares % ludding in te of sluares % holding i
cach cluss of cach vliss of
Leuity Shares
Ansanury Liniteid 21780 TR0 21780 ERROxA
Sire Clinphas: Private Limized 1,713 54 - -
s
Ansamira Limited 0,574 L4100 0,370 L0005
New CCPS
Bharat V Dattary 0361434 I8.67% - -
Bharat V Daftary feintly with BhaviaDafacy 20.03.045 16, 20%, - -
Giaelam ¥ Daftary dointdy willy Aaeh Thaltary 5184050 |4 TR - -
Al sty qointly with Gautam V Dufiany KDL RISK) 11.21% - -
Bhavaa Daltory jointdy with Bharat ¥ Draftary KENUNGES 15.11% - -
Sira Ciinpharm Privaie Limited B4, 20385 23.99% - -

A per veeords ol the Cusnpany, moluding iy register of sharcholders nemibers and alher declarelions received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents hatl legal and beneficial pwnership of shaves

C. Detaits of sharcholding of premeters in the Company

At 31 March 2022 At 31 March 2021

% Tlolding % Change

i, L
¥ (;hzlngt Wo. of Shares (% Holding during the
during Lhe year vear

Promaoter Name
’ No, of Shares

Tor Equity Share
-Ansamira Limited 21,780 T5 M - 21, TR} QO.02% 10.80%
Far Compulsorily Convertible Prefercnce
Shares (CCIPS)

~Ansumira Bimited 7,576 0.02% - 0,570 16 00%, -
[n Shaeey veserved N e snder Options aod Conlracts
Particulars Mo, of Shares
31-03-2422 A-03-2021
Stack Apprecintion Rights 2,263 -

K- porihe peried of five years fmwdiately preceting the date ax atwhich the Babavee Shieel is prepared, fully paid op shares issued pursnant {0
merger without payment being reecived in cash is as under:

Particulars Na. of Shares

31-03-2422 31-03-2021
Cquity Shares 7.140 -
New CCPS 3.51,36.619 -

There are ne bonus shares issued and shares bought back dunimg the peomd of fve veurs immcdiately preceding the sepreting date.

F.  Riphts and terms attached €o equily shares
The Company has oaty one closs of issued Fauity Shares baving & par value of TNR 104 per share. Each Shareholder is elipible one vate per share hedd,
Tie Company declares and pays dividends on equity shares. The Dividend preposed by the Hoard of Dircetors is subject o the appraval of the
sturcholders in the onsuing Aneual Generl Mevting, except in case of Tnterirn Dividend. T the event of tiguidation, the Cquity Shareholders are ¢ligible
o recetve the vemaining assets of the company atter distribution of all preferential amounts, in praportion s thear sharcholding,




Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Lid")
Notes to the standalone IND AS financial stateroents (Continued)
as at 31 Mareh 2022

16  Sharc capital (Continued)

G. Rights and terms of conversion of Prefercnce Shares

The briel terms for CCPS shares are ay under:

Terms COPrs
1. Face Value Rs, 106} per share

2. Dividend Prefercnce (11 a minimum cumulative preferential dividend of £.001% per annum of the lace
value thereof, as appropriately adjusted for any bonus shares, share splif
reclassification, recapitalization, consoltdation or similar evenl affecting the CCPS;

(i} if the Company declsres any dividend or other distribution 1o #ls holders of Equity
Shares {in cash or otherwise) the aguregate amount of dividend or other distribution
which such holder of the CUPS would have received if, on Lhe record date [or cach
distribution made during the Financial Year during which the dividend or other
distribution is made {including the record date for the dividend or distribution at slake],
it were the holder of the maximum number of Eguity Shares into which its CCPS can
be converted, on the record date for such dislrbution,

3. Tenure Garkier oft (1) the completion of a period of 20 (Twenly) years [rom the date of its
msue; or {i1) the consunuuation of an initial public offering of the secorities of e
Company

4. Conversion Ratio Mo, of Equity Shares on conversion of 1 CCPS = (COPS issue price 1.¢. CCPS Face
Value + COPS Promium Y Conversion Price

5. Conversion Price Conversion Price mcans Lhe Falr market value of the Hauity Share

6. Conversion Right COUPE may be converted into Lquity shares of the Company any time at the option of

COPS holder,

Movwithstanding the otier terms of issue of the CCPS. the CCPS shall wmmediately
and autematically be converted into Equity Shares on the carlier oft {1) the completion
of a period of 20 (Tweney} youss from the date of its issue; o (i} the consummation of]
an mnittal pubbic offering of the secarities of the Cempany.

7, Conversion Mechanism 1. CCPS holder nesds to issue Conversion Notice 1o 1he Company along with original
Share Certiticate.

2, Upon receipt of Conversion Notice, Company to iniliate conversion process, subject
P P , pramy P ' I
to application for pavernment approvals, 17 amy

3. Company to issue Equity Share Certificale wilhin 10 days of the date of the
Conversion Notice and receit of all Government approvals,

8. Compulsorily Conveision The CCPS shall immediately and automatically be camverted into Eguily Shares on the
garlicr oft (i) the completion of a period of 20 (Pwenly} years from the date ol its issue;
or (16 the consummation of an initial public offering of the securilies of the Company.

9. Liguidation Preference The proceeds available for distribution to Sharcholders shall be pawd or distribuled i a
manner such thal cach bolder of COPS shall be entitled, on a pari passu bases and
subject to Applicable Law, 1o reeeive i respect of cach CCPS then held by such
halder, prior and in preference Lo any distribution of any assets o funds or proceeds ta
the holders of the Equity Shares or any ofher securities, an amount (the “Preference
Amount™ cqual to 100% of the issue price of such CCPS plus any atrears of deckared
and accrued but unpaid dividends caleulated to the date of such payment.

0. Liguidation Right in the event of a dissolation or winding up, the proceeds available for distribution 1o
sharcholders of the Company shall be paid or distributed i a manner such that each
lielder of CCPS shall be entitled, on & parl passy basis and subject w0 applicabic law, to
reecive in respect of exch CCI'S then held by sueh helder, prior and in preference to
any distribution of any assets or funds or proceeds to (he holders of the Equity Shares
or any other sceuritics, an amwount (the "Preference Amount™) equal to 100% of the
issue price of such CCPE plus any arvcars of declared and acerued but unpaid
dividends cakculated to the date of such pavinent.,




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipre Diagnostics P Lid")
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022 (Continued)
as af 37 March 2022
(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs)
16 Share capital (Conrinued}
H. Rights and terms of conversion / redempion of Preference Shares
The brief terms {or New Compulsorily convertible preference shares (“New CCPS”) are as
under:

Terms New CCPS

1. Tssue Price R EO0 per share
2. Issuanee Mode The New COPS shall be issued in dematerialized form and shall be
freely transferabic,

3 Maturity Date The New COPS may be converted into Equity Shares at any {ime at the
opticn of the New COPS holder. Provided however, that the New CCI'S
shalt imediately and awtomatically be converled into Equity Shares in
accordunce with the provisions hereof on the completion of a pertod of &
(fight) years from the date of their issuance.

4. Terms of Conversion The New CCPS shatl convert based on the following forua:

No. of Lguity Sharcs on conversion of 1 New CCPS = Face value /
Conversion Price

Where 'Conversion Price’ means Rs 6.06,371.5 per share

The Lovity Sharcs shall at all times remain subordinate to the New
COPS. New COPS and CCPS shall af all times cank pari passu. The
holders of the New CCPS shall be nod be entitled fo be present {eilther in
peison or by proxy) al all general meetings of the Company and to vote
on wll resolutions placed before the Sharcholders ol such general
meetings pari passu with the holders of Equity Shares.

5 Dividend Rate Fach holder of New CCPS shall be entitled to dividend al a rate of
0.001% catculated ou the face value of New CCPS at the end of every
fingncial yecar, as muatuafly agreed between  sharcholders of the
Company.

&. Coupon Payment As imutually agreed between shiarchobders of the Company.
Freguency/dates

7. Conversien Mechanism 1. CCPS holder needs to issue Conversion Notice to the Company at its
principal corporate office.

2. The ratio of the number o New COPS held by the Slharcholders ot the
Transferor Company 1 {other than the Transferee Company), to the
number ol compulsorily converlible debentores of Bharat Serums and
Vaceines Ltd (Erstwhile Aksipro Pragnostie P Ld} (°CCT87) held by
Ansamira Limited (beig sharchalder of the Trausferee Company) and?
or any of its affiliates ("Advent™) shall, at all times, be the same as the
ralio of the number of New Equity Sharcs held by the Sharchobders of
the Transteror Company 1 {other than the Transferee Company), to the
number of cquity shares {including equity shares post conversion, if]
any, of COPSY held by Advenl. Any Conversion Notice issued by a New
CCPS holder shall be subject to the aforesaid ratio,

3. Company w bssue Rquity Share Certificate within 10 days of]
converston Lo the bolder: (7Y a cenificate or cerlificates Tor the number o
Lquity Shares to which such bholder shali be entitled upon such exercise,;
or (i) dematerfalised Couity Sharcs credited to the holder's demat
securities accounl,




Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Lid")

Notes to the standalone fintncial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
{Curreniey : Indian rupees in Laklhs)

161 Other Equity

Retained carmings

Sccuritics premium reserve

Limployee Stock Appreciation Right Reserve
Capital redemption reserve

liquity component of compound financial mstrament
Capital Reserve

i), Retained carnings
As at 1 April 2020
Add: Loss for the year 2020-21
Add: Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax
Asat 31 March 202f
Add: Loss for the year 2021-22
Add: Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax
Add: Reclasstfied from (inancial lability (Refer Note 16AILD
As at 31 March 20622

i} Security premium reserve
Asat 1 April 2020
Add: Premien on issue of equity shares
As at 31 March 2021
As 2t 31 Marel: 2022

iii}. Emplovee Steck Appreciation Right Reserve
Asat T Aprit 2026
Add: Employee Stock Appreciation Rights expense
Agat 31 March 2621
Add: Emploves Stock Appreciation Rights expeinse
As at 31 March 2022

iv). Eguity cemponent of compound financial instrument

As at 31 Masrch 2020

Add: Equity component of Compulserily convertible debentures
Add: Defered Tax on Compulsorify convertible debentures

As at 31 March 202E

Add: Hquity compaonent of Compulsorily convertible debentures
Add: Deferred Tax on Compulsorily convertible debentures

As al 31 March 2022

¥l Capilal Redemplion Reserve
As at 31 March 2020
Add: Transferred from general rescrve/sceuritics premitim
Agat 31 March 2021
Add: Transferred from general reserve/sccuritics premtium
As at 31 March 2022

¥i). Capital Reserve
As at 1 April 2020
As at 31 March 2121
Add/{Less) | Reclassification of Financial labtlity (Refer note 16A#)
Ay at 31 March 2022

f:’:*(mmmm

At 31 March 2022 At 31 March 2021

{6,368.93)
1,45 230,86
82,36

6.00

93 948 94
43 G5R 6T

{14,464.52)
1,45.236.86
.04
92,048 94

2,75,563.90

2,19,727.28

Aumotint
31,521,790
{50,158.31)
1729
{18,464,52)
124,82
13,168.05
(6,368.93)

Amount
1,32,094.48
13,142 38
1,45,236.86

1,45,236.86

§2.36
§2.36

Amiount
86,087.77
5,622.23
1,238.494
92 94%.94

92,948.94

Arnount
6.00

6.00

6.0

Arnount

43,658.67

43,658.67



Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")

Notes to 1lie standalone financial statements for the vear epded 31 Muarek 2022 (Continued)

{Currency @ Indian rupees in Eakhs)

17

17A

178

Borrowings

Non- Current Borrowings
Mueasured at amortised cosl
Seeured:
Term Loan
I'rom Banks

Foreign Currency Loan
Less - Amount disclosed under the bead "Current Borrowings™

Unsecured
Comypulsority Convertitle debentures

Asoal
31 Maich 2022

59,224 44

As at
31 March 2021

182,95
(1§2.95)

5098734

Eess 1 Amount disclosed under the bead "Curvent Borrowings” (1261548 (LLTeLTR
IFinancial instrument classified as financial liability
Eguity Shares - 44.707.59
Ceps - 3629147
Total Non-Current Borrowings 46,638.92 1,29,224.63
Current Borrowings
Mensured al amortised cos
Secured
Current maturilies of foreign cumency Joan - 185295
Warking capital demand loan ERUT R 4.000.06
Cash Credit from Bank 17.0%
Unsecured
Current portion of Compulsorily Convertilbfe debentures 12.6154R 1L761.77
Toan from related parly - 1
Loan from others - 106,78
18,633.46 16,056.61

Total Current Borrowings

3
g
2




Bharat Seruoms and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ld")
Notes fo the standalone financial statements tor the year ended 31 March 20122 {Continzed)

{Currency -

17

Traddiiens ruproes i Laldisd
Borrowings (continned)

Changes in liabilities arising frome financing activities

A, Current borrowing
Particulars

Ciosing halance as on | Aprif 200

Cashilows duriog the year

Curment malurities of lang-term debt

Closing batance as on 31 Mareh 2021

Cashflows during the year

Changes in current parlion of CUTI {Principal and Interest)
Closing bailunce as on 31 March 2022

3. Nan-current horrawing
1} Term Loan from Banks - Forvign Curceney Loan

Particulars
Closing bulance as on 1 April 2020
Cashflows during the Year
Unrealised {gaimnd/loss on forcign cwreney Borrowings
1ess: Current maturitizs of Loan classified as Short term barrowings
Closiong balance as on 31 March 20621
Cashlows duning the Year
Closing balance as on 31 March 2622

11} Liability component of compound financial
fnstrement

Purticulars

Closing balapee as on 31-3-2020

Cashilows doring the vear

Faess o Egurly componenl of COD

bterest Cost

Less: Carrcnt materilies of Comprulsorily conventible
debentures chussified as Short term borrowings
Closing balance as on 31-3-2021

Cashilows during the vear

Adiustment in non-current portion on aceound of madification of CCD

Lass - Bguity component of CCH

Tuterest Cost

Interest paid during the year

Less: Currenl snaiuritics of Compualsonly converlible
debentures classified as Short term borrowings
Closinng balance as on 31-3-2622

11T} Financial instrament classiticd as financial liabidity

Opening balanee as an 01-04-2020

Fair Valug loss on financial Habitity measured at FVTPLL

Closing balagee as o 31-3-2021

fess: Reclassified to shave capital and other cquity {Refer Note FoAILL)
Closing balanee as on 31-3-2022

Amount

528.76

15,344.90
[82.45

16.056.61

1,723.14
853.71

18,633.46

Amount

175.26

7016
(6247}
{18245}

Arount

49,529.69

10,544.53
(5,628.22)
554133

{11,761.77}

48,225.57

(75.5%)

5,089,040
(5,767.29)

{853.71)

40,618.92

75,8012.43

2,196.63

§6,999.06

{HELOU06)




Bharat Serums and Vacceines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")

Notes 10 the standalenc financial statements for the year ended 21 March 2022 (Contistued)

{Curnaney

17

Mole:

Indian repees in Lakhs)
Borrowings (eontinued}

Barrowings securcd against current assets for the vear ended 31 M

arch 2622

Anwount as per bosks af

Amounl as reported

Amaunl of

arter -' pank *articulary in the quarterly .
Quarte: Name of ban! PFarticulars account in the quarterly difference #
refurnd statement
Jun-2 LHRBL Bank (IRBE Bank . Axis Bank and DBS Bank N 40,081,246 H,400.51 167075
Sep-21 tventaries and 39417.04 38 647.66 76938
;:}?::;'] {]{?:;lll!;l:fck;f\xis Hunk 335 Bank ; THIFC Bank and Tri:dc{j{‘::;:;'ablcs 40,5?’i63 40:881:?5 _3“(]:6?
Marzal o A 41,500,140 42 198 8% -G48, 7Y

Rorrowing

s secured agsinsl current ussels for ithe vear ended 31 M

arch 2023

Amount as per hoolis of

Amuount as reporied

Adnount of

Quarter Name of bank Particulars accoun( in the quarterly difference #
relutn/ statement
Jun-20 Juveiaties and 32,541.89 32,294 85 247.04
e X 470 28,4572 190,34
];ifjg REI. Bank 1131 Bank jAxiy Bank and DRES Bank Tradc{:{‘:;:::;abfcs ;2;:1;2 321?3333 2 Ig;ﬁ
Mar-21 T 37,318.64 37,2960 20.04
i Note

The bank retums were prepared and filed belore the completion of &l financial statement closure activities, which led to these differences between the final
books of account and the bank retum which were based on provisional books of account.




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics I £1d")

Notes to the standalone financiad statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
{Currency @ ndian rupees in 1.akhs)

17 Borrowings (continned)

Non-Cnrrent Borrowing

17.1 Foreign Curreney Temns Loans were laken from Exing benk and were secured by way of the hypotheeation of movable assets and the first
pari-passi charge on immovable assets of the Compaey, sitnated at Ambemath Plant and second charge on corrent assets of the Company.
Terms of repaynient were as under:

Bank name Rate ol interest] No, of instalments| Enstalment Amount]  Commencement
i pending|per quarter {Amuount from

{As at 31 March 21) in UND Lakhs)
LExim Bank & menth Libor 1 2.54 Sep-17

17.2 During the previoss yeas coded 31 March 2021, the Company, allotted 10544527 Compuisarily Convertible Debentures (CCD) of face
value of INR 100 cach fullv paid-up [or cash 1o Ansamira Limited (Parent Company). Each debenture is convertible into fixed number of
equity shares of the Company ol Rs. 100 each autematically ar the end of Bth year from date of its sllotment 16 Septemirer 2020 Holder has
a right to convert (U1} isto squity shares anylime belore matarity. CCD are issued at variable rale of interest and interest is payable on semi:
annual basis with first date of interest acernal being 20 days prior to the end of ate year from date of allotment of CCD.

The Company has mcasured this as compound firancial instruments snd accordingly, equity and liabiiity component is recognised.

17.3 During the finateial year ended 31 March 20240, the Company, slfeticd [3.00.05.000 Compulsarily Comvertible Debentures (CCTH of face
valug of INR 100 cach fully paid-up for cash to Ansamirz Limiled {Parent Cowpiny). Each debenture is convertible inte fixed number of
cyuity shares of the Company ol Rs. 100 cach awtamasically at the end of 8th vesr from dute ol its alloiment 6 Tebruary 2020 Holder has o
right to convert CCLD into cauily shares anyiime before waturity. CUT are iasued at variable rate of inlerest and interest is payable on scni-
annuat basis with first dute of nterest aceruad betng 20 davs prior 1o the end of one year from date o sllotment of CCR.
The Company has measured this ay compound financial instruments and accordingly. equity and Hzbility component i@ recoptised,

Current Borrowing

174 Cash credit and Working capital demand foun from bunls are scewred Iy way of hypothecation of vaw material, packing malerial, materials
under process. finished goods, hook debts, machinery; and sceend purl passu charge on the immovable assets of the company situated at
Alnbernath Plant, Al these loans are repayable on denud.

7.5 Derails of Workmg Capital Denwnd Loww sre as follows

Ag at As af
31 pMarch 2422 31 March 2021
Sr. Mot Amount in Lakhs Due Date Enicresi Raie Amaunt in Lakhs Bue Dale Inierest Rate
[ 1,500.00 26-04-2022 4.45% 4 (HI0.0H 22-04.2021 6.55%
1,500.00 27-04-2022 4.45% - - -
3 3 000 00 29-05-2022 4. 90% - - -




Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
Nates to the standalonce financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
(Cwmeney ; Indisn mapees in Takls)

18  Other financial Habilitics

As at Asat
A1 dlareh 2022 31 March 2821
RES Nop-Current
Capilal crediors 72875
Nup- Current (odal R2R.7S -
1813 Current
Measnred at amaortised cost
[nterest zecred bt not dug on borrowings L4y -
Salary pavuble 1,435.10 36,72
Bomus payable 4560 ifn.a3
UInpiick fscentives 48277 EAERIE
Capital creditors 450,07 47242
Ot prayahles 354 13.52
Current el 2,784.78 2.010.38

3,013.53 2,010.38




Bharat Serums and Vaceines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Lid")
Notes to the standalone financial statements tor the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continucd)

{Curreney :

fndian rupees in 1akhs)

19 her liabilities

194

9B

Nan-Current
Neferred income

lLiceneing income
Noz-current total

Current
Advanges from customers
Statutery liabilities
TS payable
Others
Neferred income

Licencing tcome

Current tutal

As
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

174,43 F75.92
174,43 175,92
29292 255.01
Jtegl 230,20
§52.95 F26.64

11.90
761.88 624.41
936.31 800,33




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (I'ormerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
Nofes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2622 (Continued}

(Curreney © Indiun rupees in Lakhs)

20 Leascs

The amounts of righl-ofuse assels recognised and the movements during the vear ended 31 Mareh 2022 and 31 March 20210

Particulars Land Building I'lant and Machinery Office Equipment Totai
Balance as ut 31 March 2020 320105 1.345.46 - - 4,546,513
Addition - 459,10 - 42301 68211
Dreprecation {41.50% {A03.014) - (32.HY {476.74)
Balance a5 at 31 March 2021 3,159.55 1,401.52 - 1960.81 4.751.88
Addition - 415.04 133.72 - 551,76
epreciation (41.50} {3835 (6.17) (72,86} (546.073)
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2022 ERREAS) 1,434.06 127.55 117,95 4,797.61
Following 1s Lhe break up of the currenl and nom cwrenl lesse Babilitics as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
Partivuiars As oat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Currenl lewse Habiliticy 647,73 159,940
Nent - Curreent lease liabilities 1,165,117 1.161.65
Talal 1,752,490 £.320.75
Sct out below are the carrving amounts of lease Habifities and the movements during the year caded 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
Particulars
Balance as at 3F March 2024 1,380,581
Additton 68211
Finance cost 10121
[Lease paymient {843 .38)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,326.75
Addition 514.84
Finunee cost 108.60
Lease paymenl {191.29)
Bualance as at 31 March 2022 1,752.90
The details of contractual maturilies of lease Habilites as a1 31 March 2022 and 37 March 2021, on undiscounied basis are as [ollows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2622 31 March 2021
Less fhan 1 year T30.09 16524
{ine to {ive yeary L, 10047 1342.24
1,936.06 1,507.53

Total

Diuring the vear ended 31 Mareh 2022, Company has recognized in the statemoent of profit and loss -
a) Deprecistion expense from right-to-use of Rs, 506,03 lakhs (31 March 2021 1 Rs. 476 74lakhs),
1) Interest expense on leasc lishilittes Ry, 10860 takhs (31 March 2021 1 Rs. 10121 Jakhs)

¢ Expense relating to short termy leases of R, 87.98 lakhs (31 March 2021: R, 292,79 lakhs)




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited {Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Lid")

Notes to the seandalone financial statentents for the vear ended 31 March 2022 (Continned)
{Carrency : Indiag ropees in Lakhs)

21

22

Provisions

214 Non-current
Provision for employee benelits
Comnpentsated abmences (Refir Mot 28}
Gratuity {Reter Note 28}

Me-current total

21B Current
Provision for enysovee henefits
Compensuted ahseaees [Heler Naole 28)
Gratuily (Refer Note 28)

Telosww}

Curvent total

Provigion for antiipated sales returms (reley nute

Provision for anticipated sales returns {refer note

As ot
31 Mareh 2022

As at
31 March 2021

99:4.45 [AST 58
- 5060

475 K0 265.53
470,34 1,905.4
19.15 a10.92
516,38 49764
B45.6% 65213
1,399,19 1,556.69

Bulance as at 31 March 2020

Mote rAdditdonal disclosares relating to provision for sales return: (s per Indiss Accounting Staadard {Im) A% 371

1,125.55

Anonnt

Trade payalles

Provision made during the vear 43581
Sates Return during the year 34370
Balance as at 31 March 2021 917.048
Provisim made during the woar BUse.04
Sales Retumn during she year {(f52.10)
Balunce as at 31 March 2622 1.321.57
Trade payables
Asal As at

31 March 2022

31 Maveh 2021

Bue to Micro Enterprises and Swmwall Enterptises 2ZE6.57 ALIRA]
Other than Micro Enterpriscs and Smull Interprises 11.729.25 Q066725
12,015.42 4.864.20

As al 31 Mareh 2022

Qutstanding for lellowing periods from due date of

payntenl

Particulars Unkilled | Newt due Tenal
I.ess than More thun
E-2 vears 23 yeurs
1 year 3 years
{5 Micro Stall and Medium Tnterprises (MSME) . 11513 16866 0.8 189 (89 2H6.57
(i Other than Micro Small snd medivm Enterprises 483671 2470.75] 4,156.89 72.3% 14,42 5805 11,729.25
As ut 31 March 2421
Ouistanding for Tolowing periuds from due dale of
Particulars Unbilled { Mot due payment Total
Less than More than
1-2 years 2-3 years A
- | year 3 years
(1) Micre Sall and Medivm Enterprises (MEME} - 34,30 177.40 4.0 0.9 - 216,95
{if) Other than Micro Small and medium Enterprises JAESOUE AOTOEIL 3.52212 10.86 26.71 131.56 9,647,258




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipre Diagnostics P Ltd")
Nofes 10 1he standalone Muancial siatements for the vear ended 3§ March 2022 {Continued?y

12 Trade payables {Continucd)

Nrles
The intormation as reauired e be disclosed under the Micre, Siall and Medium Enterprises Developmest Ack, 2000 (MSMEDY Act)
s heer delermined o he extent =uch partics have heen identified on the basis of information availible with e Company.

Asat As at
31 Mareh 2022 31 Mareh 2023

Principal axnount and interest due:

{13 Briepal wmaount recrsamingg unpaid 28657 21645
{1} intecest due theveon remuining unpatd R 256
{iiiy Mterest paid by the Parent Company in terins of Section 16 of the MSMED

Act, aleng with the amount of the payment made Lo the supplics beyond the

appointed diny. -
fvy Imterest due and pavable Toe the peeied of deley inomaking payment {which

Tave been paid but beyond the appointed day during the petiod) but without

adding interest specitied under e MEMED Act - -

fep Aanounl ol Interest acerned and remaming oapaid at the end of accounting year [RR 882
iy Ingevess remaining due and payable even in the succeeding e, uniil sueh
date when the interest dues as nbove are actually paid 10 the sinall eslerprises {565 11.38

(vil) Amount of furtier mterest rermuining due sand payuble even in succeeding

WVOHTR




Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
Notes to the standalone PND AS financial sGaements Lor the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
towrreney s Indian rspecs in Lokhs)

13 Revenue from Operations

Particulars Yoear epded Year ended
31 March 2622 31 March 2021

{i) Finished Goods 45,425,4% TAR0Y
§iY Traled Goods 10.284.12 QRS540
Saie of Froducis (A) 1,05,713.61 80,177,417
{1y Exporl enlittements 2aTds 53417
{1y Onhers 144.44 24197
Other operating revenue (15) 387.49 796.14
Total (A)+(B) L6, 10110 80,973.31
Reconciliation of revenve from Operations with contract price

Contract 'rice 1031710 8262087
Lesss Adjustmoents For

Saleable Returns. Credit Nates, Damaged Heturng, Expicy Retarns, Near Txpoy {4,603.49) (2443 70
Felume s provision for saleabie/non salzableleapivy returns

Net Sales of Product L5, 71{3.61 80,177.17

23 5, Disaggrepated revenue informatinn

The Group disapgrepates its revenue based on 1l type ol gosds or services, the peographicat locations and the thnmg of transfer ot goods and secvices as

fuplivrass:

Year ended Yoeur ended
31 March 2022 31 Muaech 2021

iy Type of geods o0 services

Sale of products * 1. G5,713.61 0777
{Hher Cperating revenue fexcludes cxport enletierments} 1 44).54 24147
Total revense Mrom contract with custamncrs 1.05.854.85 841904

#ole: The Group 35 anguged inthe busizess of rescarelh, development, manutactring, marketing sod sales of biofogmcal wd phanmaceutical products
Ann vy kind of medicsl equipment in India and overseas mucket,

iy Gieographical location

tedia 7538715 33044013
Onetsiche ladia 30073595 2503307
Total revenue from conlracts with customcr 1,06,101.10 BLYT3.50

jily Timing of revenge reagg

Giouds trunsferred at point i tiswe P05 71561 80,077.07
Other operative Income earned at a pamt in time L7449 T4
Total vevenuy from contracts with customer 1,06,181.10 850,973.31

23 . Coulract Balances
The beiow table provides intonmation about contract Balunces of the Grosp:

At A1 March 2022 At 3] Muzrch

Particolars 1821
Trade Reveivables® 23,332.92 [9,3[5.52
Unbilled Revenue 23144 0%
Advance from customers (292.92% (235610
Net Contract Balanees 23,201.14 19,2904

*Nolo: Accounts receivables are recogised when the right to cunsideration becomes unconditional, These are non iideres! buartny




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
Nuotes to the standafone NI} AS financial stateiments for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
{Caneney Indian tupees in Lakhs

23 ¢ erformance obligation
The Company entess into cootlact with majonty of i clstomens to sale products for o considetation o a cost plus mack-up basis, The performanee
whligulion of sule of goads and ether oporating income is sutisficd wpoint in Ume and from rendering of serviees s soisfed aver the tmae.
23 4. Transaction price:
Contract price iy determined as per the ters
23 ¢, Fransaction price allocaied v the remai
The Company doss not have performance ohligations that are remainingunsatisficd (or partiadly unsatistiod} st Lhe end ol the reporling period,
23 £, Costs w obtain the contract and cost to fulfil the contract:
The Company does not thcor material costs to ablamn contracts with custemers and conteact fulfifment costs are peneraliy expensed a5 incwrred.

5 agreed with the costomer, and no further adjustmenis are made Lo the sune,

nig perfermance eblivations

24 Other income

Darticuiars Yeur ended Yeur ened
31 March 2022 3t Murch 2621

Interest incole on

- Bank deposits [74.62 BE.93

- ey finaneiad assets ut wmevtised cost w07 123.52
Exchange padt on foreigs cumreney Nuctuations {(nel) GH7.68 22532
Profit oo sale of fixed assets {net of stamp duties) - 1.57
Mel Gand {Loss) arising en Finuncial Assets designated al Fair Vahue Throuph Profis ov Loss

- Voreahsed Gaind (Lass) (H.08) §.08

- Realised Gaind (Loss) 20055 -
Wrile back of Propery, Munt and Equipment 305,83 -
Miscellanenws cone 242,62 268.09

1.602.06 T18.7%
25 Cost of materials consumed

Particulars Yoear ended Year ended

31 Mareh 2022 31 Maveh 2021

Raw materials cansumed

Oening Stock 40059 5492358
Furchiuses 2279648 18.5R0,38
Less @ Closing Stock 4.387.49 400593
Total Waw material consunied (A) 22.414.90 20367.05

Packing mzierlals consumed

Opening Sk i016.83 6106
Purchases 4.495,13 2.332.37
Less - Closing Stock 2,084.04 1.016.83
Tl Packing material consumed {#) 32702 2,276.60

Tatal consumption (AT 25,441,492 2204363




Bharat Scrums and Vaceines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipro Diagnostics I Ltd"™)
Notes to the standalone END AS financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022 (Continued)

(Comseney @ indian rwpecs in Lakhs)

26 Turchases of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars
Porchases of Stock-in-Trade
a. Injeclables

Tr. (hthers

Purchiuses of Sock-in-Trde

Year ended
31 Murch 2022

Year ended
31 Mavch 2021

0,335.37 473300
IR RAT.5H
T,413.34 5,580.58

37 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Particalars

Clusing juyenlarivs {4)
Finished poods
Work-in-progress
Stock-n-trade

Opening inventories (B}
Fintshed gands
Work-in-propress
Stock-tn-trade

{B)-(A}

Yeur ended
M Nlarch 2022

Year ended
31 Mareh 2021

2772736 303894
4T3R5 S036.75
2316.63 1R854
9,827.95 11,557.23
3,638.94 372526
5.036.75 4,720.83
2.H81.54 4,556.98
11,557.23 12,003,067
1,729.28 445.84




Bisarat Serams awd Vaceines Lamiled {Forpedy knawn as "Aksipro Magnostios P Led"}
Netes (o the standalone fimuicial statements for the year exded 31T March 2022 {Continucd)

fCwrmeney  Todian rapees s Lakis)
28 Emplovee bepefits expense

Particulais Year ended Year ended
31 Muarch 2022 31 March 2021

Salaries, wapges wul bouus 1796324 15, 35783
Contrtbution 1o provident funds amk other tands Q806 TARTR
Gralaty cxponse 25490 28382
Fmployee Stock Appreciation Rights expense 52,36 -
Employees” wellare expenses 586,44 295 K2
1930500 16,687.25

Disclosure of employee benefits as per [ndian Accounting Standard (INI AS 19)

I8A) Defined benefit plan:
it Coratuity

Gratuity plan

The Company operates & defined gratuity plan for its empleyees, Under the gratuity plan, every enployee who has completed [ive yows ar
more of service gets a grateity on death o resignation or setivesient al 15 days salary {tast drawn salary} for each compleled year of
service. The scheme is [bnded with an insurance company i e Jorm of qualifying insurance policy.

The fotlowing tables summarize the compancnts of net benefit expense recognized in the slatement of prolit and less and the funded
status and snwunts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

Statement of profid and ioss
Net employee benefit expenses regngnised in the emploves cosl
Grateily
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Expenses vecognised in the statement of profit and loss for the vear

Cluncne scevice cost 22387 22173
Tnlerest cost (net) 40.42 62,04
Expenses recognised in the statement of profii and loss 204,29 283.52

Remeasurements regognised in other comprehensive income

Loss 7 (Gan) recoppized for the year {138.46) (54.66)
Return on Plan Assets excluding net interest (30.46) {E70.31)
Expense / {income) recognised in other comprehensive imcome (168.92) (229.97)

Berefit wssets / liabititics

Present vatue of detined benefit obbigation { L RALHHDY {1853.82)
Fair valae of plan assets 1,324.52 1208.58
Plan asset / (liabitity) {536.38) (645,243

Reconciliation of present value of the dedined benetfil obligntion @

Opening defined benefit obiigation 1,853,823 194645
Current service cost 23T 221,73
Interest cost 116.54 13513
Provisian reversed during Lhe year - {049
Benelits pad (194.87) {3745.3%
Aciuarial {rains/ bosses recognised in other comprebensive income {135.46) (59,60}

Closing defined henefit olifigation 1,860.90 1,853.42




fharat Seruma and Vaceines Lanited (Foreeely knewn as “Adbesiore Diagnostes P Lid")
Motes (o che srapdalone financial statements for dre vear ended 31 March 2022 {Continued)

(Currency - Indian ropees i Lakhy)

28A)

Defined benefit plan: Continued

Recoueilialion of present value of plan assets ;

Opening fir value of plan assets

Return on plan assels recognised 1o olhor comprehensive e
Interest Income

Contrilitions by employer

B3enefits paid

Cluosing fair value af plan assets

31 March 2022

1 Muarch 2021

Fhe mujor calegories of plan assels as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Gratuity fund (Kotak Mahindra Old Muotuad life Inswence Ltd)

Graluily

1,204.58 SR
30.46 17031
75,66 63006

8.82 -
. (5.59)
1,324.52 1,208.58
100% 0%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratoity for the Company’s plans are shown helaw:
1 1 1 £8

Yeurs of service
Edscount rale
Expected rate ol return on
agsels
Sulary csoalation rale (pad
Employee twmover (Y ears of service) Diw D vrs
1o L0 vrs
114 20 ys
21 and above

31 March 2022
6.70%,
5.0,

E00%
20.00%
15.00%
1.40%

3.00%

31 Mureh 2021
6.20%

f.20%

7.00%
24005
15.00%
F0.00%

5.0

The estimates of future salary increases, constderad in actwarial valuation, take zecount of inflation, scniarity, promation and other

relevant faclars, such ag supply and demand in the employment market.

Fhe overall expueled rate of refurn o assels ts determined based on the market prices provailing on that date, applicable to the period

over wliich the obligation is 10 be sertied.

Amounis for the current periods are as follows:

31 March 2022
Gratuity

[hefined benelit obligation 1,860.90

Plats wssels 1.324.52
Surplus / {deficit) {53638}
lixperience adjustments on plan 30.46

31 March 2021

1853 82

1,208 58
(645.24)

170.31

“Fhe management has relied on the overad] actuarial valustion conducted Iy the actuary.

Nole: On aceount of merger the Company kas disclosed figures for only two years,




Bliarad Serwns wnd Vaceines Limided { Formerly kaown as "Aksipra Diapnostics I 11d")
Notes to the standalane financial statements for che year ended 33 March 2022 (Conrinwed)

{Carreney  fodian rupees 1o Lalkdis)

ZRAY Detined benefir plan: Coatinned
The amount included in the halance sheet arising [row the eatity's obligation in cespect of i(s defined benelit plans is as oliows:
Disuvewtt rute: The disceunt rate 15 based on the prevailing market yiclds of Indian government securitjes as at the balance sheet date tor
the estinsted terrn of the obligations

Salary Escalation Rate: The estimates af futire salary incrcases, considerad i actuarial valuation, 1takes inte acceunt the inflation,
senority, prometion and other relevant factors such ag supply and demand in the enploviment markes,

Reusonably possible changes at the reporting date 10 one of the relevant actuarial assumpiions, holding other assumptions constant, wiould
have affected the defined henefit obligation by the amounts shown below,

Sensitivity Analvsis

Farticulsrs PPeriod ¥nded} Periad Ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Defined Nenetit Obdigation on Current Assumiplions 1,860.90 185382
Deita liffect of +1'% Change in Rate of Discounting (116,774 {11830
Deita Bffect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 132.43 134.94
Delta Effect of 11% Change in Rate of Salary [nercase 113.69 116.91
Detta Effect of - 1% Change in Rate ot Salary Increase (104,563 {106.69)
Delia Effect of t% Change in Rate of Emyploves Turnowver (10.41) (2130
Della Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Emploves Turnover 11.30 2375

Maturily Analvsis of the Benefic Payments: From the Tmployer
Propected Benelils Payvable ju Fulure Yoeurs From the Date of Reporting

ltarticulars Feried Ended Perigd Ended

31-Map-22 31-Mar-21
tst Vollowing Year 240.67 251.34
Ind Following Year 1594 [82.97
3rd Following Year 164,97 ted 53
b Following Year 19172 E42 (0}
5th Following Year 155.62 140,16
Suwi ol Years 6 To 10 739.01 791.25
Sum of Years 11 and above 1,596.25 1.476.38

t} Leave encashment

Amount of Rs. 11,66 Lakhs (31 March 2021 Ry, 288.21 Lukhs) is recogmised as an expense and included in "Employec benefits" in e
Statement of profit and Joss.

Acluarial assumptions 31 March 2022 31 March 2621
Discount yate £.70%, 5.26%
Salary escalation rate {p.a.} 8O0 7.00%
Leave svaibment rate (pa} LR RO

288} refined contribution plans:
The Company makes contributives lowards provident fund, Employvee Penston Scheme and Employee Stale Insurance Scheme tw &
defined contribution retivement benedit plan for quadifving amployees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll cost to the retitement bengdit plan w fand the beactits, The provident fund and Employec Penston Scheme is
operated by the Government administered employss provident fund, Eligible employees reeeive the benefiss from the said provident fund,
Emptoyee Pension Schente and BEmployee Stale insuranee Scherme,
Amount of Rs. 918,06 Lakhs { 31 March 2021 Rs, 74978 Lakhs) is recopnised 85 an expense and included in "Bmployec benedtts! in the
Statement of profit and loss




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly knoewn as "Aksipro Diagnosties I’ Ltd")
Notes to the standalone financial statcments for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

{Currency : Indian ruspees in 1,skhs)

28 ¢ Employee Stock appreciation rightys
The Sharehiolders, vide Annual General Meeling (AGM) dated 27 Auyast 2021, spproved o Stock Apprecistion Rights Scheme named the Employec
Stock Appreciation Rights {"ESARs Scheme’) that allows the Company 1o grant stock appreciation rights fo the eligible emptoyees of the Compaty
and 1ls subsidieries. The ESARs Scheme will be admimistered by 1 Nommation acd Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Campany{'Committec'y. The Committee, vide resolution dated 10 March 2022 approved to grant nof exceeding 2,263 ESARs o the propused eligible
employees (“ESAR Grantees™} exercisable into such number of cquity shares of the Company of face value of Rs. 100/~ each filly paid-up as
detenmined as per the terms of the Plan,
As per the tenus of the ESARs Scheme, the Vested ESARs can be exercised by an LSAR Grantee in connection with/ upon happening of Tiguidity
Fvent and within such peried as shall be notified by the Committee in this regard. Based on management estimate of probability of sertlement these
ESARs have been sceounted as equity settled. The Board! Conmnitiee 1s authorized to issue to the Dmployees, such mumber of ESARs under
Employee Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2021 {ISARP 2021) exercivable into not more than 2,263 lully paid-up Shares {a the Company, in
ageregate, of face vatue of R, 1004 each, at such ESAR Price or ESAR Prices in enc or more tranches and on such terms and conditions, as may be
determined by the Committee in accordance with the provisions of ESARP 2021 and in due compliance with other Applicable Laws and regulations,
The Nomination and Remuncration Comntittee is entitled to determine the vesting schedule for stock appreciation rights as the committee deetns fit,
Stock appreciation rights that are not exercised within the applicable exercise period will aulomatically lapsc.

The carrying amount of the tability refating to the ESARs at 31 March 2022 was Rs 82.36 {akbs. The total mtrmsic value of ESAR #f 31 March 2022
was Ry Nil

Particulurs 31 Murch 2022
Expenses arising from caquity-settied share based payment transaction 8236
Total expense arising from share based pavment transaction 82.36
Details Datc of No. of stock | Exercisc price Graded vesting period Welghted
grant appreciation per right 15t Year 2nd Year | 2rd Year | 4th Year | Averagefair
richts sranted {Rupces) value of rights
(Rupees)y
Fixed ESARy 16:03/2022 735 6,30, 17081 23,440,629 14774149 10,37.265 748,555 1,97,350.64
Incremental ESARs 1032022 734 6,360,170.81 - - - 26,32,96% 1,97,350.64

Vesting ratio:

30% a1 the end of the vear 1

2090 at the end of the year 2

25% ! the end of the year 3

25% at the end of the year 4

EWeighted average lair value of rights as per Black -Scholes Prictng model at the grant date.

Particulars Year ended 31 Mareh 2022
Number of Wed, avp,
stock exercise price
appreciation per right
rights {Rupues)
Chutslanding at | Aprit 2021 - -
Granted doving the year 1,469 6,36, 170,81
Lxpired during the vear
Outstanding at 31 March 2022 1,469 -

Exercisable at 31 March 2022* - -

Particutars lixercise price Wid, svg. remaining
Rupees contractual fife
( in vears}*

Lxercise price and weighted averape remaining contractual tife. 6,36,170.81 3 years- 4.03 vears

*Caleslsted based on the expiry date determined considening the liguidity cvent sssumption taken at the time of grant date valuation,

d
CHARTERED A1)
WCCOUNTRNTS




Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Formerly known as "Aksipre Diagnostics P Ltd")
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

{Curreney : Indian rupees in 1akhs)

28 ¢ Emplovee Stock appreciatior rights (Continued)

Srock appreciation rights granted during the vear, the weighted average farr value of those rights al the measurement date and information on how that
faur value was meastived.

Variablcs Details

Date of grant 10-Mar-23 1-Apr-23 I-Apr-24 t-Apr-25
Stack price (Rupees) {per SAR) 636 17081 43617081 6361708 63617081
Expected Volatdity (%) 12 74% 32.65% 32 21% 31.35%
Risk-troe rate (%) 3 46% 5.46% 5.68% 3 R7%
Exercise price per right {Rupees) A 367081 636170811 636170811 63617081
Fxpected ife of right { in vears) 300 3.3 13 4.03
LExpected dividends 1% 0% % 1%
Fair value of per vest 1,84.626.12 + 18534 B2 | 202 550,57 | 217027 14

‘The Company have used [3ack-Scholes option pricing maodel for the purpose estimating fair value of the rights granled during the vear.

Vefatility: The measure of volatility used in the Black Schokes Model 15 the annualized standard deviation of the continuaus rales of return on the
stock over a period of tme. There i no rescarch that demonstrates conchusively how long the histarical period used to estumate expected long term
futre volatility should be. However, the period to be considered for volatibity has Lo be adequale to represent a consistent teend in the price
movernents. The fair value of the right is very sensitive to this variabie. Higher the volatlity, higher is the Gair value.

Volatility of comparable companies is used for this valuation exercise Volalibily with the historical terms equivalent o the expected term of the nights
have been considered in the analysis.

Stock price: As Bharat Scrums and Vaccines Limited is not a listed Company, the stock price 15 based on the business valuations conducted for
issuatice of ESARS.

Excreise priee: For the grants made, the exercise price considered 15 as provided i the prant fetters issued

Risk-Tree rafe: The risk-lree interest rate being considered for the caleulation is the interest rate applicable for maturity equal to the expected life of
the rights based on the rero-yiefd curve for Governmeni Securities

Expected term: Timc to Maturity £ Expected Life of niphts s the pertod tor which the Company expects the rights ta be Hve. The minemum hife of «
rights is the minimum period before which the rights cannin be exereised and the maximum fite is the period atter which the rights cannot be
exercised '

The expecied FHfe of an awatd of rights shall take into account the toliowtng factors—

i, The expeeted Dite musl at Teast include the vesting period.

it. The average kengths of time of similar grants have remained vutstanding in the past IMthe company does net have a sufticiently long history of
rights granted. the experichee of an appropriately conparable pecr group may be taken into consideration

iii. The expeeted life ol rights should not be tess Lhan half o the exercise petiod of the rights issued untit and unless the same 15 supported by historical
evidences with respect 1o rights issued by the company eartier

Expected Dividend vield: The Company has not made any dividend payments in the past and there are no future plans to pay dividends during the
cxercise period. Henee, the company has assumed an expected dividend vicetd of zero for the cateulation of fair vatue of the nights.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
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29

29A

Other expenses

Particulars

Accessories and conswmables
Adimal feeding and maintenance
Cemlract Fabour charges
Powaer and tucl
Freteiy and finwarding charges
Rent
Tatles and tuxes
Repairs and maintenance:
- Plunt and machiery
- Buildings
- Others
Advertising and sales promaotion
Sales Conpuission
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional feey
Printiog and stalionary
Payment to auditors (Reter Note : 29A)
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for doubtful advance and deposits
Fesearch and development expenses
Biologieal assets wrilten off
Intangibles under development written off
Tixed asscts writton off
Sundry balanees wrtlen off
istribution Hxpenses
Camarate Social Responsibility (CSRY expenditure {Refer Note 295)
Ponution
Director Remuneration
Analytical and inspoction charaes
Insurance
Write oif of Property, Plant and hquipmenl
Bank charges
Wliscellaneous expensay

Yoear ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 Mareh 2821

1,234 85 TI598
15.43 FRALTH
108,37 32045
1,G625.5¢ 1A21.65
2,114.85 1,580.18
7.8 292,79
148309 49586
55120 405,29
344.52 25919
tin.13 2419
4.814.88 1,793.19
203344 Laew Sh
2,i14.5] 1,333.77
186423 4,23894
194,34 179,10
11424 139,16
29 54 200,90
182,00 53.26
490588 2,227
- S
- TG
- 3.4l
0.49 19.96
43,78 1RE.G2
IR 24534
9,90 -
43,00 -
(56.43 466,66
53694 47184
- 610.22
- .69
121379 1,174.52
2K.462.76 21,606,494

Payment to auditors

IParticulars

Audilors’ remuncration

Statutory Audit foes

Fees tor certification

Reunburscment of oul-of-pocked capenses
[Payments to tax auditors

Taxation maiters

Other datlers

Year ended
31 Darch 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

3050 5832
IFR 1.05
(1.10 819
533 5.0
6.00 [
34.00 £8.00
114.20 13816
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29B Corporate Social Responsihility

itl)

31

As per Seetion 135 of the Act. o CSRE commistee has been farmed by the Company. The areas for CSR activities are training te promote
natiosally recognised sports and Glympic sports and woemen healtheare; promotion of Sports activity: educstion and preventing healtheare:

skill development and proineting roral Ri negative women.

The gross smount required during the year to be spent by the company was Rs, 3113 Lakhs (31 March 2021 Rs. 1532 Lakhs)

Particulars of amown spent during the period on:

[n cash Yel to be paid Total
Censtruction / Acguisition of assets - - -
On purposes other than (1) above 19.00 - 19,60
{245.34) - (245.34)
Tolal for the Year ended 31 March 2022 19.00 - e At
Total fow the Yewr eaded 31 March 2021 (245.34) - {245 34y

Farticulars

Year ended
31 March 20622

Yoear ended
31 March 2021

Amount reguired 10 be spent by the company during the yvear 31.11 $3.32
Amount of expenditure incurred 19,04 24534
less: Amount set off out of excess CSR amount spent in carlicr vears, not recopnised in

books 12,11 -
Shortf{Excess) CSR amount speni - (230,02
Nature of CSR activities Refer note a below Refer note b below
Pelatis of related parly trunsactions, €.£., contribution to a trust controlled by the NA NA

company in relation to U8R expenditure us per relevant Accounting Standard

ay Training to promele nationadly recognised sports and Qlympic sports and women healthesre
b} Promolion of Sporls activity: education and proventing healtheare; skill development and promuwting reval Rh negative women,

Finance costs

PParticulars

Interest ex PENsEs On

Yeur ended
31 March 20622

Year ended
31 March 2021

- Rank averdraft and athers 20271 219.90
- Compulsurity Convertible Debeniures 089,90 554133
- Tntarest on forward contract llalily - 472.047
- 1.casc liability (Refer Note 24 L0k 101.21
Other bemrowing cosl 19591 128.34
559712 6.462.85
Depreciation and amertisation expense
Particulars Yeur ended Year ended

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment {Refer Note 5}
Brepreciation of Righi to Use Asset (Refer Note 3A)

Change in fair value of biologica] asset

Arsortisation of intangible sssets (Refer Note 6)

31 Mavch 2422

31 daech 2021

1,252.43 1,327.18
506.03 476.74

. 453
3,631.90 5,501.57
5.420.36 7,310.61
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

(Currency @ Indian rupees in Lakhs)

32  Earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021
T.oss afler tax for calculation of Tasic EP'S (A) {1,199.28) {50,158.31)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating EPS {B) 64,659 62,877
Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs 100 each (A)/(B) (Rs.) (1,854.78) (79,772.88)
Diluted carnings per share of face value of Rs 100 each (A)/(B) (Rs,) (1,854.78) (79,771.88)

Note:

it As per para 23 of Ind AS 33, mandatorily convertible instrument should be considered for basic EPS from the
date of the contract. Accordingly, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures{CCD) and Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares(CCPS) issued by the Company has been considered for the calculation of basic EPS.

ii. Potential equity shares on settlement of emplovee stock appreciation rights are anti dilutive in nature and hence

dituted BPS is same as basic EPS.

33  Proposed dividends on Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2622 on 351,43,195 Compulsorily convertible preference share of 1060
each @ 0.001% amounting to Rs 35,144 (31 March 2021: Rs Nil } recommended by the board of directors subject

to approval of sharcholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.
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34

tad
n

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Conlingeul Lialiliiies

Sr Parrienlars As al As at
A1 BMarchi 2022 31 March 2421

A, Claims against the comipany nol aclnowledged as debis

1 Service tax demund dispated in appaal; advances paid in dispute R 75 Lakhs U688 796 88
(31 March 2021 Rs 75 Lakhs}
2 Income tex demand disputed in appeal; sdvances paid in dispute s Nit 1,184.68 L1350
{31 March 2021 Rs Nid)
R. Guarattees given by Company in favour of Subsidiaries to Banks (Refer Nuvile 37) 4.227.84 28625
6,204, 3,218.23
Noles

Management considers that the service 1ax and income tax demands received from the autheritics are not tenable against the Compuany, and
therefore no provision for these tax contingencies have been mada.

The Company has reviewed all #1s pending litigations and proceedings and has adeguately provided far, where provisions are reguired and
disclosed as contingent Habifitics wherever applicable, in ity financial statements, The Company does net expeet the outcome of these
proceedings te have materfally adverse cffect an its financial slaterents,

The Bank Guarantees given are for husiness purposc,

Commitments
Particulars - As at As ul
31 March 2022 31 AMuareh 2021
Vstimated amount of contracts remaining o be exeeuted on Capital Accounts -net 452.97 45743
oft ¢ Advance paid Ry, 383291 Lukhs as ot 31 March 2022 and By 378.99 Lakhs as at
31 March 2021

Segment Reparting

The Company is ngaged in sale of Biopharmaceutical and refated products, all the activitics of the company revolves around this mais business,
The Company Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the internad repurts prepared based on an aggregation of fimancial information
for ali entitics in e Company (adjusted for intergroup eliminalions, adjustments cle.} on a periodic basis, Therefore management views
Company's business activity as a single segment. Sepmenl performance is cvaluated based on profit or Juss and is measured cansistently with
profit or loss in the financial statements.

Major Customer
The Company did not have any exteran] revenue from & particadar customer which exceeds 10% of total revenue during the year.
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Guoodwill
Goodwill arising upon business combinations i not amertised but tested for mmpatrment at least annually, No impairment charges were idemified for FY
202122,

Significant Cash Generating Units (C{lis)
The Campany ts engaged in sale of Blopharmaceutical and refated products, and considering the natwre of products and the predominant risk and return
of the product are similar, the group bas only onc operating segment. Accordingly, Goodwill is allocated to the said operating scgment.

As al As at
Particulars Aarch 31, 2022 Marcl: 31, 2021
Gooduall 2.08,620,10 2,08,620.19

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating unit has been assessed using a value-in-use model. Value-in-use 18 generally calvulated as the net preser
value of the projected post-tax cash flows plus a terminal value of the cash gencrating unit to which the poodwill is allocated. lnitially, a post-tax discour
rate is applied to calculate the net present value of the post-tax cash flows. ’

Key assumptions upon which the Company has hased its determinations of value-in-usc include: a) Ustimated cash flows for five vears, based o
managemen's projections with anoual growil rate of 12% and EBITDA margin of 29.47%. b) A terminal value arrived at by extrapolating the fas
forecasted vear cash flows to perpetuity, using 4 constant long-term growth rate of $%. This long-tenm growth rate takes into constderation extern:
macreeconunie sources of data. Such long-term growth rate considered does not exceed that of the relevant business and industry sector, ¢ The afler ta
discount rates usced are based on the Company’s weighted average cost of capital. d) The pre tax discount rates used is 12.30% for various casi generatin
unitz. The Company belicves that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which a recoverable amount is based would not canse th
aggregate carrying ameunt o exceed the aggregae recoverable amownt of the cash-gencrating unit

The protections cover a pertod of five years, as the Company believes this (o be the most appropriate timescale over which to review and constder annuaf
performances befere applying a fixed terminai value madtiple to the final year cash flows, The growth rates and segmental marging used to estimate cash
flows for the first five years are based on past performance, and on the Company’s five-year strategic plan.

Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) = Risk free return -+ {Market risk premium x Beta (or (e Company),

The Company has performed sensitivity analysts around the base assumptions and has concluded thal ere are no reasonably posstble changes (o key
assumptions that would cause the carrving amount of a CGL o exceed its recoverable amount,
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37 Related party transactions

Infueniadion s cebdedd pucty transuetions as regquiced by Tedian Aeenuoting Stundurd 24 {lad A8 2d3 an velured parsy disclosares o
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376 Detaily of Transactions witl Related "arties

AL 381 Mavch 2623

A ATs Mareh 2621

Sr Na Particubars Jckutbonsbip
1 Satle of serviees
fubvy Chemicals #43 Ld
BSY Bissvienee Pailippinegs T Subsedizry 3
vaara | abs Private Limined Fatity in which ?am thair
closs rzlateas heve sagreficant
andluenee
Fotal
2 Parchise of Services
Sxzo Clinpharm 190 Sl Ty in wehich FE or thedr
vloss retatives ave significan
il nue
Addvy Chernical Pl 218 Entity in whigh K er their
closc reiacves have significant
inlluznee
135% Rinscienes [ne. Snhsidiny
Total
K Frofessionad fees expensys
Biarar ¥ Tultary
Gautwm ¥ Datary
B0 Cliashers Frivale Limited inwhich BT o e
clime relatives have significact
inlnence
Tatal
< Ralary paid
e Ananva & Havingul Lielatsve of KMP
K Corporate Guarantes lacnme
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ives bave saganticant
Advy Chenicals Jupan Brtity in which £8P or ther
lose pelatives Save ignifican
s
Tatad
7 Sale of Produets
BEY Tiosuiumee Phélippines e Subszdiary
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Ansanica Linsied Pacent {umpamy

ZS0.60

HR

437.55

IEERIl
ILFRLE

3.0

I

SR

524028

3.474.7Y

206

4t

54407

IMHNEH

i.o0
104,01

405

MAST

L1776

75.00
7500
1663

[66.65

et
a
b

)

3EI0ER

234

e

93464

323

uan
WA
HEREY

IR

PORAE
a1
[Vt

LTRRIS

4590

10,544.53




Bharat Serums and Vaecines Limited {Formerty known as “Aksipro Diagnostics P Ltd")
MNedes (o the standalone financial staterments for the vear emifed 31 Muarch 2022 {Continued}
Curremey ! Tnedtun rugees in Lakhs)

ATi

AT

KRl

Retated party transactions {Continged)

At 3t March 1022

At SEatdarch 2621

r Na Tarticudars
12 Ipdires] esprese ne dighdlity compoeern of CCT
Avsuiirg Lirled Ifrent oy
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A7 Related party iransactions (Continued)

2022 AT 215t March 2021

Partivalurs Helutinnship Ad BT Mar

i Dyestanding Payubales
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38 Finagpcial instruments — Fair values and sisk management
A Acconnting classification and [air value
Tha CGroup uses the foliowing hivrarelic stuctre of valuation methods to delcomine and disclose infosnation sboud the Tair value of financial
fove] 30 Ohseevable prives in active wackets for idenlivad sssers and fabilitics,
f.eve] 2: Ohservable inputs alher than quated prices o active markels fir identical assets and fiahilitges;

Level 3: Unobservabile fuputs that are supported by Tittle or no kel activity and that are sigmiticant o the Fair vabie of the assets and labililies

Tl carrying amouts and fair vabues of fmangtal instroments by calegoey are as follows:

n. Financint assets
Carrving Amount Fair Vauloe
Particulars FVTPL. FV{X} Amertised faevel | Livel 2 Luvel 3
Cust
As at 31 March 2422
Nan Curtarnt - [arns - - 2,235.80 - - -
Current - Leans - - 40074 - - -
Nap Curren( Investmenls i §94,30 - - - - T1¢H1 38
Trade reveivables - - 2333292 - - -
Cash und cash equivalents - - B 92671 - - -
Other Bank Balances - - 240,40 - - -
Other financial asseis - - 133591 - - -
Onher curment finumedat sssels - - 46783 - - -
Tolal 190,30 - 39.962.40 - - 190.30
As at 31 March 2021
Nan Current - Loany - - 2,238.53 - - -
Current - Loass - - G771 B - -
Curent Investiments [WUtL R - - 100898 - -
Trade receivables - - 19,315.52 - - -
Cash and cash eguivalenrs - - 455328 - - -
Other Bank Bafunces - - 493,45 - - -
Other non-current financinl aysetls - - 1,029.25 - - -
Olhee current financial assets - - 7017 - - -
Tolal 1, 008.98 - 29,383.9] 1,898 - -

# Excludes investments in subsidiacies weasured at cost {Refer Kute 8. For lavestient measured al FYTPL, the carrying value represents the fair
value as mvestment was done towarnds the vear cnd.

th Iinancial lizhil
Carrving Amounnt Tair Value
Particulars FyirL VOO Amortised Level l fovel 2 Level 3
Cost
As at 31 March 2022
Edabifity compenent of Compulsonty Canvertible - - 50,234, 44 - - -
Debentures
Cunent Borrowings - - 601798 - - -
Fease Hubility - - 1,752.40 . - -
Trade payables - - 1201582 - - -
Ocher non current finaneial liabititics - - 278478 - - -
Orher current tinancinl liabililies - - B28.75 - - -
Total - - §2,634.6 - - -
Ax al 31 March 20021
Eiahiliy component of Cumpulzorily Coaverible - - 59,957.34 - - -
Debentares
Non Current Borrowiags * §0,900 06 - - - - #0,999.00
Cusrent Borrowings - - 4,794 84 - - -
bease Hability - - 1,320.75 - - -
Trade payables - - 9.864.20 - - -
Other carrent financial liabilities - - 2,010.38 - - -
Total 50,994,006 - 77.471.51 - - Bi.999 16 |

+Phi non eurrert bomawings wre faic valued at estimated presens vedue of amaunt payable on settlemuent,

The fair valie of the financial assets and labifiics is ineluded at the ameunt at which (he instraza could be exchanged in a cumrent trensaction
hetween willing partics, other than inoa ferced o liquidation sale,

There have been no tragsfers between Level | and Level 2 during the pericd.
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=

Financial instruments — Fair viloes and risk manageient (Canringed) .

Financial risk saanagenient objectives and polickes
The Company’s Buard of THreelors las overall responsibiliy 6

< be extablishment and eversight of e Conpuny’s cisk managemen famework, The oard of

direetars is responsible for developing and muondonng e Company™s sk manapement policies.

Fha Compuny’s risk mutagement policies are established to identily and analyse the visks laced by the Company, Lo set appropriale tisk timils and vontrols and o
monitor risks and adhereace e te B, Risk maragement policies and systems are reviewed segulaety to reflect chanpes in market conditien: and the Company’s
activities, Fhe Company, taough its eaining and management standards and procedures, aine to naintain @ disciplined and constructive contrue] envisonment in

wlich ult empleyees undeostand theer oles and oldigations.

The sudit conunittes oversess Law management monitars compliance witl the company’s sk napemsnt policies and procedures, and revivws the adequacy of
sz vink vssgernent framewerks s relation o the risks faced by the Company.

The Company's principal financial linbilties compriscs ol foreim vurreney foan. loan frem related partics, Compulsorily convertivle debeatures. lease fiahililies,
trade payabbes and borrowings. The Campany’™s principal Gnancial assets clude trade receivables, loans, cash & vush equivalents and margin money 1hat devive
diregtly from its operalions.

The Company has expasure to the following risks arising {rom Gnancial instruments:

- Credit Risk

- Liquidity Risk

- Mlurke Risk

Credil Risk

Credit risk i the risk of Tnuacizl less 1o e Cowpany i a customer or counterparty to a fizaneial insirmnent (il to imeet its contractual abfiyations. The Campany
is exposed to credit eisk Trom fLs uperaling activates (primacily trade reccivables) and from s finsneingfdivesting activitics, including investments in deposits with
bunks. The Company bas wo sipnificant concenttation of eredit risk with any counterpay.

Thie carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximnm eredit cxposure:

Trade Recvivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Compeny™s ciposare 1o ¢redit risk is inflacneed mainly by Lhe bwdividual characteristics of
cach customer, However, managoment also censiders the factors thut may inftuenee (he coedit risk of its customer base, invluding Lhe defanlt risk of the industry and
countly inwhich customers operate,

The managemenl has established a credit policy under which cach new custeaner is analysed individualiy for creditworthiness hefore the Company’s standard
payment and delivery terts and conditions are otfered, Sale limits are cablished for cach customer and reviewed quarlerly.

The maximam caposire o credit rick for tude receivables by geograplic tegion was as follows.

Particulars 38-Mur-22 3-Mar-21

I 12,441 87 DIVt

Crastade [ndig-vthers 10,891.05 FG035.74
23.332.92 19,315.52

Tl Company’s expusare to credid tisk for trade veceivables by type of conenler parly 15 us foblows:

Particulars 31-Mar-22 3-Mar-21
Stockists 4.485.19 4 BRLOK
Tstitudion 795368 439814
Expars #,447 34 TEGG. TR
Subsidiary 248371 292896

23,332.92 19.315.52
fpaitient

As pur sitnplificd approach the Company nakes provision of gxpected eredit losses oo Lrde reveivable sing @ provision matrix 1o mitigute the risk of default
pavment and make appropriate provision at each reporting date.
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38 Financial instruments — Fafr values and risk manugement (Continwed}

Thie Comnpany allocates cach exposure so a credit tisk grade based on a variety of data that is deternnned to be predictive of the tisk of boax (Snvheding bl sol limied
ur externad ratings, sudited Nnancial stalements, nagement aceounts and cash flow prijeclions wid availablde press intormalion abowt customsers) and applying
expericoved credit judgeient. Credit risk grades are defined using qualindive wwd quantitative factots thil are indigative of the risk of loss wnd are aligned 10
external credit rating de Lnitions,

Fapoeled eredil loss (BOR) assessoens fir lrade receivables ws on 31 March 2022 and 31 Mureh 2021 35 s follows:

Exposures wilhin cach eredit vk grade are sepimented by geographic region and industry clussification and an expectsd credit loss rale s cateolaied tur each
sewnent fased on definguency status and actual credit luss experience over the pist tree yeurs, These rates ane multiptisd by sealar aciors woreflect differences
buetween ccenumic conditions duing the period over whick the historiv data hes keen colfected, current conditions and ihe Compamy's view of econenic cunditions
over the expected lives of the receivalle:

Management betieves that the unimpaired smewmts thad ace pust due by soee than 180 days are still collectihbe in tull, based on lusterival payment belavions und

extensive pnadysis of custorer cradit risk, ineluding undurlying custoaness” credis ratings it they are pvaitabte.

The movement in the allowance for impainment in respect of trade recetvables during the year was as feflows:

Furticulars 31-Mar-22 3-Mar-21

Balancs as at the bepginning R79.00 &759.400
fpainnent Joss tecopnised 29.54 20040
Balance as ai the end of the year 909.44 £§70.90

Loan to sabsidiaries

The Campany hac an exposire of s, 2,235 14 Lakhs as 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Ks. 2.232.72 Lakhs), Such loans arc clessified us Gnancial asset measired
at amartised cest, The Company did net have any amounts that wers st due but nol fmpaiced at 31 Maorch 2022, The Companry hus no cellateral i respect of these
[eans.,

Cash and eash equivadengs and bank deposits
Credit risk on cosh and cash equivalents, deposits with bawky s peneratly low as the said deposits have been made with the hanks who bave been assigned Tigh credit
rating by international and delaestic eredit rating spengics.

Fhe Company has invastment in Mutuzl Fuowds of R Kiloas on 51 barch 2022 (Rs FLO0R.98 Lakhs - 31 March 2021 and fuvestiuent in subsitiavics of Re. 1840119
Eukbis as oo 30 Murch 2022 (Re. 1840100 Lakbs @ 31 March 2021),
i} Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the 1isk that the Company will encounder difficully in meeling the cbligations associated with it= fmancial Habifilies Ut ave settied by delivering
cash o another financial asset. The Company's approzch tw munuging Lguidity is to ensure, as far as possibic, that it will bave sufficiens liquidity o meet its
o conditions, withoul jucusting unaccepahle Josses or visking damage to the Company's Teputation.

liahilities when they are due, nnder kath normal and s

The majority of the Company’s trade receivables ace due for maturity within 7- 21 duys for stockicst and 90 days (o institution and cae 10 case basis for exports
froan tie dute of hillng to e customee, Fuelher, the general credit terms for lrade payables are approximately 50-45 days, The difference belween the above
menlicned coedil pesiod provides sulficient headroom e meet the short-term working capital needs for day-lo-day aperalions of the Company. Any short-term
surplus cash penerated if any, over and above the amount recpriced for working capitsl managemsnt and olher eperational requirements, are ietained as Cash and
Irvestrnent in mutual fund and shoet term deposits with hanks. The said investiuents ace made i instruments with uppropiale mutwrities and sufficient Tiguidity,
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38 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continied)
Exposure to liguidity rigk
Tl Foflowing are Gie cemuining contractuul metarities of Granciad Sabilities a1 tie reponting date, The amenants are gross and wndiscounted, wid ineduds extimated
mlerest payients und eaclude the mpact of neltiog agreements.

3i-Mar-22 Contractual Cash Tlows

Carrving Total On demand Less than 1-5 vears Mare thun 8 years

Amount contractuwst YOar

pndisevunied
cashilony

Non-derivative financial Hiabilities
Short term Borrowings 18,63340 18,634.46 6,117 us [2.01548 - -
Mon Current borrowings AhAIR Y2 63,264,240 - - 4553571 12,735.58
Trade payahles 1241582 12001582 B F201582 - -
Leuse Linkility [,752.40 1,936.06 - T30, 0% 1,199.97 -
Other financial labilities Non-carrent Ryl 22875 - - B25.75 -
Other financial liabilities cueeent 2.784.78 378478 - 278478 - -
Tetad §2,634.63 9946816 6,017.98 28,152.17 47,504.43 17,733.58
3-Mar-21 Contractual Cash Flaws

Careving Talal O demand Less than 1 -5 vears More than 5 vears

Amooinl contractual your

undiscounted
cashflow

Non-devivative finaneiat liahilities
Short term borrowings 16,036,061 (LR 448295 11,873.66 - -
Non Cureent borrowings 1.29,224.03 1,50, 30051 - - 1,26,534.77 2382374
Trade payables O kG420 9 KA 20 - 436420 - -
Tguwse Liabitity [,3200.75 1.307.53 [65.29 1.342.24 -
Other fimemcial lahilities comem 261038 201038 - 200038 - -
Total 1.58,476.57 1797423 4,182.45 13,913.53 §,27.877.41 23.825.74

fif) Market Risk
Mlurket risk is the risk that chunges o marker peices — suel as foreien exchiange rates, imlerest rates ote, coubd affeet the Compny s ncune or the value of its
Tssldings of financial instruments iocluding cash Qo The objective of maket tisk management is to manage and condrel murkel visk caposures within sceeptable
paratnctecs, while mandmising the retuny.

The Company as a pelicy dossu’t enver fue any devivative financial instrements such as forcign caclunge forward contracts 10 mitigate fig risk of chanjes o
exchange vates on foreign currency caposures. The exchange sle hetween the Rupee aad foreign currenscies las kept constand in the dast year and as por Company
iy be stable in the fulure. Consequently, the resuls of the Company’s operations are affected as the Rupes apprecintes! depraciales against US duliar (USD), Euo
(12URY, and British Pound (GHE) cle.
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kL Financial instruments — Iair vafues and risk management (Continned)
{a} Foreign Uxchange Dervivatives and Exposares putstanding at the yoar end
Tlete are te forward exchange contracts {deing derivative insroment=), cxposure durieg e yest ended st Marcl 2022 andd 3 st March 2027,
Lurreney Risk
The Company is exposed o currency tisk 00 account of ifs cash and cish equivalents, borrowings, otfier payables, receivabies, other lEnancial sssews and loans &
advauces i1 Toreign cartency. The Tuoctional costency of the Company is [ndisn Rupee The Congpany L exposure to UST RURO, CHF aand 18PY.
Exposure to Curreney Risk

The civrency profile of firancinl assels and financiad Babilitics in there tespective currencies are ps below:

Particulary 31 March 2022 31 Mureh 2021
Amuount in Amount in Amanat in Amuunt in
foreign currency  foeal currency  foreign cuvrency  local correncey
{Lakhs} {L.akhs)

Financtal asscis
Nou current Financial Assefs

ELRO) 1700 143174 370 FAST3S
181 160 30337 .60 47
Trade receivaldes

Ush [26.8] EREL]) 12392 059,74
LEMD 12,50 105275 11.3%8 a75.84
Cash and Cash Equivaicnts

usn 2.63 199.33 121 S22
EUR(D 34 2863 .11 9.43
Qther current Financial assets

ELRO - -
LISEY 036 PN 1.24 G358

Finzncial liakilitics
Long term borrowings

LsD - - 2534 PR5.70
Trade and other pavables

ELRO [t 44,85 .78 [0
Lsh 1142 BRG.OE A2 1.8%2.74
{’HF - - .35 A42.65
Net foreipn corrency exposurs x5 at 33 March

ELIRO 2907 2.348.27 22T 237613
S0 13178 AT AL 11335 828702

CilF - - (0,55} 42.65)
Tatal 1243587
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iR Finanecial inscruments — Fair values and risk management {Cosirinned)

Lo the purpase of financial staiement reporling, the currensy expesare are measured al the foblewing year-end exchange yafes.
. Yeur end spal rate
INK

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
LRJRCY #4.22 RETE
1sn KN A
CHF 8203 71558

Seasitivity analysis

A reusonably possible strenmhening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against various forvign currencies at 31 March 2022 and 31 Murch 2021 would huve aflvened
the weastrement of finneial insruments denominated i forein curreacies and sifeeied cquity and profit or loss By the amounts shown belowe. This unalysis
ussthimes that all afher variables, in partiewdar fnlerest cutes, remain constant and igaores uny bapact of forecast snles and purchises.

M-Mar-22 3I-Muar-21
Trofil & (Toxs) Belove tax Strengthentng Weakening Sirengthening  VWeakening
O ovenent
FLIRE) 24443 (241.8%) 23761 (237.61)
LSy Yos.Te (GOE.TA) HIH. 70 (828.70)
CIHY - - {427} 427

(b} Interest rate risk
[nterest Late risk can be either fair vadue interest rute risk or casl flow interest vate visk. Fair value interest rate visk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed
interest bearing investments, borrawings and loans beeause of finctuations in the mterest veles. Cash flow intercs: rate risk is the risk that the futre cisly Mows of
floating intercst bearing investments, barrowings and loans will fluctuate becuuse of uctuations in the interest rates. The Company’s cxposure to the visk of
changes i market intorest rates relates prisnurily to the Company's longetenm COR und vther borrowings with variable inlerest rates as follows:

Yarfable Rate Instrowmcents As at 31 March As at 31 March
2022 2021
Compubsurily Converlible Bebentures 59,234,490 5998734
Forvign Curcency Loan - 18295
Tatul 59.234.48 6,1 70,29

[rterest rate scusitivity analysis shown below with 1% thal an increase / decrease in tloating Bterest rates would result m decreuse £ ancrease in the Company's
profit and equiry by -

Asat 31 March 24122 Asut 35 March 2821
Particutars Lip Move Ihrwn Bblove LUp Move Doven Mave
Fmpat on lHquity - Increasef{decrease) (5H69.1%) SE6DLR {5124} 57.24
Etpeat on profit{loss) {628.05] O2E.05 {57.24) 57.24

Fhe risk estinmtes provided assume » change of [% inferest rate ot Lhe interest yaic benchmurk as applicable 1o the borrowings summarieed above. This ealoulation
also assumes that the change oecurs al the hatante sheel dule sod Jias been caleuluted buscd oa risk exposures eutstanding ws at thut dute, The year emd hakances are
1t necessarily representative of the uveriyge dubt vulstanditg during the year. Also ehove saunbers are excluding impucl of lx.

0 Capital Management
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital buse 5o ws W waintaiy investor, creditor and macket confidence and to sustain fulure development vf the
business. Management moditars the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary slareholders.

The Compuny monitoss capital using o ratio of “adjusted net debl” 1o “wlad equity”. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is detined as total debt, comprising interest-
brearing loans and borrowings, less cash znd cash equivalents. Totsl equity comprizes 4l compuoeats of equity.

The Cowpany s adjusted ner del to eguity ratin is us Tollees:

A at Axal

31 March 2022 30 Mareh 2021

Tuolal debl {5,252 38 1,45,251.24
teas - Cushoand cash egubvalent {15,026.71) (4,533.28)
Met debt {A) 5332567 1,40,747 94
Tetal equity (B) 31073810 2,94%,755.72

Net debt 1o equily ratio (A/B) 0.17 .64
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40 Ratios

Formula Asut Ax at
Partienlars . 31 March 2022{ 31 March 2021 |,y oo Reason for varince
Numerator enominater Ratios Ratios
Current Ratio Curgent assets Current liabilities 1.58 .04 S3A6MINA
Due to extinguishment of {inaneial
Hability of 200 stake in FY 22 and
issitance of equity snd CCPS 10
Sharcholder's shareholders in FY 22 apamst financis
Debt-iquity Ratio Totad debt cauity (422 0.67 -67, | 6% [Hiability of 20% stake,
larmings avaitable
Debi Service Coverage Ratio flor debt service Dbt service 1.47 1.38 0.32%
Average
sharcholder’s Dic to Impainncnt of Invesiment and
Return on Equity Ratic Net Loss after tax | eguity -(1.45% -21.37% 247 89%{ Inlangibles of Rs 629 Crore in last year,
Average Due o beller inventory management in
Irventory arnover ratin Cost of Good Sold |lnventory 201 1.59 26,42 curvent Y.
Trade Recervables turnever Average trade
ratio Sule of products  |receivable 4.96 4.70 5539 NA
Net Purchases amd [ Average trade
Trade payables turnover ratio jother expenses pavables 572 5.80 -£ 3% NA
lnerease due to Increase in the revenue
in current year as compared to previous
Nt capital tarnover ratio Safe of praducts [ Working capilal 4.61 4,01 14.964% fyeal.
Met profit ratio have variation due to
one time exceptional charge on
impairment on itangibles und
Met profit ratio Net Loss after tax [Total Income -1.11% -61.40% SO 9% investmenl in FY 2]
D to impairment of Intangibles in 'Y
Eatning before 2| Furlher EBIT has improved from
Return on Capital employed  finterestind luxes  fCapital employed 2.09%, S14.80%]  -114.02%|1.5% o 12.5 % in FY 22,
Averupe
Return on invesiment- Income carncd on | Investments in
Unguoted Muwal Funds Mutual Funds .10% 0.89% 236040 NA

1 Tolal Debt ~ Cument borrowings + Non Current borrowing | Lease lisbility,

2 Eamings avaifable for dobt service — Net Profit after taxes + Depreciation and Awottisalion Bxpenses ¢ impairment of Intangibies 1 Tmpaivment of
Investment + Finance cost + lossATrofin} on sale of Fixed asscts,

3 Debt serviee - Finatee Cost + Principal repayment of bomowings and Lease Liability
4 Cost of goods = Cost of materials consumed, Purchase of Stock in Trade and Increased{decrease] in inventorics of finished goods and work-in-progiess

5 Warking capital = Current Asset - Current lsbilitics

& Net purchases and other expenses= Purchase of material packing material, stock in trade and other expenses

7 Eamings before inlorest and taxes— Profit before tax | Depreciation and Amorlisation Expenses | fmpairment of Intangshles
2 Capital Emploved = Sharcholder's cquity | horrowings + Deforred Tax liability

9 Averape — (Opening balances | closing balances)y2
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41, The Company has transactions with eonpanics struck off under Section 248 of the Companics Act, 2003 or Section 564 of Cormpanics Act, 1956

and disclosed as under

Mame of the struck off company

Nature of

Balance

Relativuship with

Balance outstanding

Retalionship with

transsctions with outstanding as|the struck off as atithe strack off
struck off eompany at|eompany, if any, to 31 March 2021{company, if any,
31 March 2022|he disclosed to he disclosetd
8.J. Lile Seicoces Private Limiled  [Payables 115 |NA 4.07 |NA

42

Bisclosure under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

£u) The details of joan woder Scction 186 of the Act read with the Companivs (Mectines of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 arc as follows:

Details

31 March 2022

Name of ihe entity / parties Loan repayment Purpose Rate of Interest At At
terms 315§ dlarch 2022 Mst March 2021
BSY Rioscience GMBH Repayable on Working Capital 6,940%, 1,431.74 1.457.75
demand
BSY Bioscienee Philippines hie Repayable on Wolking Capital 6.590% #03.37 T74.97
demand
Raut Scrums India Pyt Ltd Repayable on Hustness urposc H.00%, - 216.63
dernud
Sri Anauetha Padmanabha Swamy Repayvahle on Husiness Purposc LG.00% .00 304,06
Phanma Pvi Ltd demand
Sri Anantha Padmanabba Swamy Repavable on Business Purpose 11.00% 75.00 7300
Pharma Pyt Lid demand
Tutal 2.6i4.11 2,828.40
(b3 Details of investments made under section 86 of the Act are given in Note 8 “Tnvestments™.
(¢} Guarantees vatsianding
As at As at

31 March 2621

Corporate guaranice given in respect of credit facility sanctioned by bank in fwvowr of subsidiary
company aggregating to Ewro 502 mitlior (31 March 2021 Ewro 150 million )

4,227 84

1,286,258
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43 Business Combination

44

(i}

(i

{iii}

fivd

vl
(i)

On lath August 2020, the Bourd of direetors of the Company had approved Scheme of Amalgamation ("the Sefieme’) of Bharat
Serums and Vaccines Limited (Tramsferor Company 1% and BSVLIFIE Private Jdmited {Transferor Cempany 2) with Aksipro
Diugaostics Private Limiled 'the Company' or ’ Trapsferee compuny’). In furtherance of this, the Company iund filed for the Scheme
under section 23 and 232 and other applicabls provisions of Cempanies A, 2013 willt the Natona) Company Law Tribunal {NCLT)
on 20 Augnst 2020 and the appraval order for same was received on U2nd August 2021, The Scheme is effoetive fram “appeinted date”
ried on by the wansforar companies and in onder (@

tath February 2026, The main objec! of mevger is fiw consolidation of business
maintain a simple corporate structure and eliminate duplicats verporate procedure.

Merger of Bharat Serums and Vaceines Limiled {Transterar 11 has been secounted as por provisions of acquisition accounting under ind
AS 103 Dusiness Combination in the cwrlier vear as the appointed date of acquisition is 14th Telr 2024, wiltereas the acguisition of
HSVLIFE Frivate Limited {Transforor 23 has been Lreated as an assel acquisition cifective on date of merger order Lhal iz §2nd Angust
20210,

Adlditional disclosure with respect fo amendments to Schedple 1|

The Company doss not have any Benwund properly, where any proceeding hag tieon initiated or pending sgainst them fue holding any
Benamt property.

The Campuny does not have uny tansaction which is not recorded i tae hooks of accounts that has been swrrendered or diselosed as
income during the wear in the tax assessinents wnder the Tncome Tux Act. 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any wther refevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company bas not been declared a wilfub defanlter by wuy bank or fimancial institstion or other Tender {as defined wnder the
Companics Act, 2013 or conseatii thereaf, in accordunce with the guidelines on willul defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of Tndia.

The Company does nat Tave uny charges or saistaction which is yet to be teaistered with Registar of Compunics (ROC) beyond the
stalulory pertod,

The Company has no traded or invested in Cryplo Currency o Vitual Curcency during the {inancial year.

{a} Mo funds have heen advanced or draned or invested {either from bartowed fuds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
fatuls) by the Company to or in any other persia(s) of catity(ics), including foreign cntities {“Infermediarics”) with the understanding
that the Totermediary shulf lend or invest in party identifted by or an behull of the Company {Ultimate Bencficianes).

{h) The Company has not received any fund from uny party(s) (Funding Farty] wids the unduerstanding that the Company shalt whether,
directly ot indirectly fend or invest in ather persons or cntitios identificd by or on brhalf of the Company {“Ulimate Bentliclarics’™} or
provide any guarantee, seeurity or the fike on behallof the Ultinzate Beneficiartes,

4% Provious years figures for the previvus year hive been reprouped wherover neeessacy w saerespond with the current year's clagsifeation i

disclosure.
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